12th International Symposium on Computer Science in Sport

Moscow, Russia

8-10 July, 2019

12th International Symposium on Computer Science in Sport, 8–10 July, 2019, Moscow, Russia Book of Abstracts

Edited by Alexander Danilov

Co-Edited by Martin Lames, Egor Timme, Yuri Vassilevski

 \bigcirc 2019 by the authors of the abstracts

ISBN: 978-5-901854-24-2

Preface

The 12th International Symposium of Computer Science in Sports (IACSS 2019), took place July 8–10, 2019 at Marchuk Institute of Numerical Mathematics of the Russian Academy of Science and the Moscow Center of Advanced Sports Technologies (MCAST), both situated in Moscow, Russia. The symposium continued a tradition of conferences starting in 1997 at Cologne, Germany, which were held biennially and travelled through many countries and continents since then.

Though the topics of the presentations have changed, the aims of the symposium are still the same. The symposium engages in building links between computer science and sports science, and showcases a wide variety of applications of computer science techniques to a wide number of problems in sports and exercise sciences. Moreover, it provides a platform for researchers in both computer science and sports science for mutual understanding, discussing the respective ideas, and promoting cross-disciplinary research.

This year the symposium addressed the following topics:

Computer Science

- Modeling and Simulation
- Sports Data Acquisition Systems
- Image and Video Processing
- Sports Data Analysis
- Machine Learning and Data Mining
- Visualization and Visual Analytics
- Presentation, Communication
- Decision Support
- Robotics
- Virtual Reality
- Digital Games

We received 118 abstract submissions and all of them underwent reviews by the Program Committee. The final book of abstracts includes 87 works. Six keynote speakers and the authors of the accepted abstracts presented their contributions in the above topics during the 3-day event.

A get-together reception, a guided tour through MCAST, and a boat trip on the Moskva river with the conference dinner were the highlights of the social program.

We thank the participants from 16 countries for coming to Moscow and hope that it was an enjoyable and fruitful event for all participants. We also thank the Program Committee members, the Local Organization Committee members, the reviewers, the invited speakers, and the presenters for their contributions to make the event a success.

- Sports and Exercise Science
 - Biomechanics and Neuromuscular Control
 - Exercise Physiology and Sports Medicine
 - Performance Development and Analysis
 - Training, Coaching and Feedback
 - Modelling of Adaptation, Fatigue, and Performance
 - Optimization of Strategies for Best Performance
 - Movement, Motor Control and Learning
 - Sports Management

Organizing Committees

The conference is organized by the International Association of Computer Science in Sport (IACSS), Moscow Center of Advanced Sport Technologies (MCAST), Marchuk Institute of Numerical Mathematics of the Russian Academy of Sciences (INM RAS), Russian Association of Computer Science in Sport (RACSS), and Sechenov University.

IACSS organizing committee

Martin Lames	Technical University of Munich, Germany	
	The President of IACSS	
Philipp Kornfeind	University of Vienna, Austria	
Michael Stöckl	University of Vienna, Austria	
Hui Zhang	Zhejiang University, Hangzhou, China	

Local organizing committee

Marchuk Institute of Numerical Mathematics, Co-chairman of the
Local organizing committee
Moscow Center of Advanced Sport Technologies, Co-chairman of
the Local organizing committee
Marchuk Institute of Numerical Mathematics, Secretary of the
Symposium
Russian Association of Computer Science in Sport
Sechenov University
Sport Science Association

Program Committee

Martin Lames	Technical University of Munich, Germany				
	Chairman of the Program Committee				
Egor Akimov	Akivino, Sports High Performance Corp., USA				
Arnold Baca	University of Vienna, Austria				
Olga Bazanova	Institute of Physiology and Basic Medicine, Russia				
Alexey Bogomolov	Burnasyan Federal Medical Biophysical Center, FMBA, Russia				
Thierry Busso	Universite Jean Monnet, Saint Etienne, France				
Dmitry Dagaev	Higher School of Economics, Russia				
Jürgen Edelmann-Nusser	Otto-von-Guericke University Magdeburg, Germany				
Hayri Ertan	Eskişehir Technical University, Turkey				
Ewan Griffith	Swansea University, UK				
Alena Grushko	Lomonosov Moscow State University, Russia				
Otto Kolbinger	Technical University of Munich, Germany				
Nikolay Kulemin	Federal Research and Clinical Center of Physical-Chemical				
	Medicine, FMBA, Russia				
Rajesh Kumar	Osmania University, Hyderabad, India				
Vladimir Kurashvili	The Federal Training Center of Sports Reserve, Russia				
Daniel Link	Technical University of Munich, Germany				
Keith Lyons	University of Canberra, Australia				
Chikara Miyaji	Japanese Institute of Sport, Japan				
Jürgen Perl	University of Mainz, Germany				
Oleg Popov	Russian State University of Physical Education, Sport, Youth and				
	Tourism (SCOLIPE), Russia				
Tiago Russomanno	University of Brasilia, Brazil				
Dietmar Saupe	Universität Konstanz, Germany				
Michael Stöckl	University of Vienna, Austria				
Egor Timme	Russian Association of Computer Science in Sport, Russia				
Josef Wiemeyer	Technical University of Darmstadt, Germany				
Kerstin Witte	Otto-von-Guericke Magdeburg, Germany				
Hui Zhang	Zhejiang University, Hangzhou, China				

Contents

Training Theory	1
Whether cybernetics in sport existed in the USSR? – Models released in 1965 Egor Timme, Alexander Dayal and Yuri Kukushkin	2
Quantification of positive and negative effects of training with a secondary signal model for adaptation during intensive training in athletes Thierry Busso and Sebastien Chalencon	4
A probabilistic model of maximal mean performance Alexander Asteroth and Melanie Ludwig	6
Multi-objective optimization of the training plan with the use of approxima- tion and visualization of Pareto frontier Egor Timme, Alexander Dayal and Yuri Kukushkin	8
Determination of performance level based on training impulses Denis Gudkov and Dmitriy Butkov	10
Online courses providing insights into how doping may affect performance in tennis Arnold Baca and Jürgen Perl	12
PA Applications	14
Performance of performance indicators in football Tiago Russomanno, Daniel Link, Max Geromiller and Martin Lames	15
Assessment of premier league clubs' offensive and defensive strength Yue Zeng and Hui Zhang	17
A multi-dimensional analytical system of table tennis matches Zheng Zhou and Hui Zhang	19
Evaluating the comprehensive performance of foreign players by foreign players indicator in football leagues Junxian Jiang and Hui Zhang	21
A quantitative assessment of global football player migration Feida Zhao and Hui Zhang	23

Physiology	25
Energetic costs and analysis of the strategy of human locomotions under changed weight loadings on musculoskeletal system Alexey Shpakov, Anton Artamonov and Andrey Voronov	26
Determination of possibility for using data from medical information sys- tem for the prognosis of Russia national team athletes' health status Andrey Zholinsky, Vladimir Feshchenko, Mkrtich Ogannisyan, Pavel Artamokhov, Vladimi Zavialov, Sergey Bazanovich, Mikhail Yadgarov and Svetlana Shchelykalina	28 ir
Application of correlation adaptometry technique to biomedical and sports research Mikhail Shpitonkov	30
Estimation of physical performance level of man in long space flight based on regular training data Anton Eremeev, Pavel Borisovsky, Yulia Kovalenko, Tatiana Kukoba, Natalia Lysova, Dmitri Shatov and Elena Fomina	32
Body composition studies in athletes: history, methodology and prospects related to computer science Sergey Rudnev	34
The effects of menstrual cycle phase on the psychophysiological indices of the athletic performance: systematic review Olga Bazanova and Lubov Gubareva	37
Mechanical stimulations of the blood flow Sergey Simakov and Timur Gamilov	39
Diagnostics of endothelial dysfunction in athletes by the pulse wave Dmitry Usanov, Anatoly Skripal, Nailya Brilenok, Sergey Dobdin, Andrei Averianov, Artem Bakhmetev and Rakhim Baatyrov	41
Influence of UCP2 Ala55Val and UCP3 -55C/T polymorphisms on heart rate variability in young oarsmen Andrey Melnikov and Artem Bobylev	43
Biomechanics	45
The biomechanical analysis of the technique of weightlifters of high qual- ification with application of mathematical modelling and high-speed video recording Leonid Khasin	46
Functional design of recognition system for descent point trajectory of the badminton Ya-wei Song, Jiang Li and Shuwen Liu	48

Measurement and performance evaluation of lob technology in badminton matches	50
Lejun Shen, Hui Zhang, Yawei Ren and Kang Li	
Research and application of location service LBS-based real-time tracking service platform for motion trajectory Feng Qi, Mingnong Yi and Weitao Zheng	52
PA Modeling	54
A flexible approach to football analytics: assessment, modeling and imple- mentation Philipp Seidenschwarz, Martin Rumo, Lukas Probst and Heiko Schuldt	55
Fitting motion models to contextual player behavior Bartholomew Spencer, Karl Jackson and Sam Robertson	57
Sequential association rule mining in elite beach volleyball Sebastian Wenninger, Daniel Link and Martin Lames	59
Who will score next? About the predictive power of performance indicators in soccer Steffen Lang and Daniel Link	61
Validation of optimal pacing strategies for uphill road cycling time trials Alexander Artiga Gonzalez, Raphael Bertschinger, Stefan Wolf and Dietmar Saupe	63
Sensors	65
Performance analysis and load monitoring in highly dynamic sports by in- ertial measurement units Thomas Jaitner and Marcus Schmidt	66
Performance analysis in sprint using intra-cyclic speed Tiago Russomanno, Thomas Seidl and Martin Lames	68
Unobtrusive estimation of in-stroke boat rotation in rowing using wearable sensors Benjamin H. Groh, Julia Schottenhamml, Bjoern M. Eskofier and Ami Drory	70
Insole sensor design for ski boot using piezoresistive material Alpaslan Yılmaz	72
Comparing two data methods when assessing sleep patterns with the el- derly using the Fitbit Flex 2 Alanna Weisberg, Tanzeel Bhaidani, Alex Campelo and Larry Katz	74

Pedagogy	76
Visual perception of robot movements – how much information is required? Gerrit Kollegger, Marco Ewerton, Josef Wiemeyer and Jan Peters	77
Learning table tennis using structured video on iPads incorporating peer to peer evaluation Di Feng, Emad Abdelrasoul and Larry Katz	79
Development of a fully automatic scouting technology based on pattern recognition in teacher training Stefan Tiedemann, Jürgen Edelmann-Nusser, Elke Knisel and Helge Rupprich	81
Using drifting Markov chain to model the individual dynamics of motor learning John Komar	83
Evaluation of motivational effects of running games based on intelligent feedback devices Philipp Kornfeind, Johannes Stögerer, Martin Dobiasch and Arnold Baca	85
Development of an Erasmus+ dual-career-program for athletes and coaches Stefan Tiedemann, Katharina Petri, Sophie Mattert, Arnold Baca, Kristiana Kazandzhieva, Andrej Pisl and Kerstin Witte	87
Sports Applications	89
Designing a mobile app for treating individuals with dementia: combining UX research with sport science Bettina Barisch-Fritz, Marc Barisch, Sandra Trautwein, Andrea Scharpf, Jelena Bezold and Alexander Woll	90
Guiding runners through speed-based tasks. A pilot study Julia Daxenbichler, Michael Stöckl, Arnold Baca and Martin Dobiasch	92
Can positioning systems replace timing gates for measuring sprint time in ice hockey Daniel Link	94
Information system for operational planning of training load, rehabilitation and medical control in cyclic sports Sergey Mamchur and Aleksey Proshin	95
Archery	96
Hit distribution patterns in recurve archery: an exploratory spatial analysis Havri Ertan, Eikret Er and Andrew I. Callaway	97

ix

The factors that determine the dynamic changes in the precision of archers under the influence of competitive load Tatiana Baidychenko	99
The relationship between arrow positioning and bow/draw arm EMG activity in archery Ipek Eroglu Kolayis, Andrew J. Callaway, Axel J. Knicker, Hayri Ertan, Murat Cilli and A. Ruhi Soylu	101
Auditory evoked brain potentials during archery shooting Hayri Ertan, Suha Yagcioglu, Alpaslan Yılmaz, Pekcan Ungan and Feza Korkusuz	103
Flow experience as a predictor of archers' autonomic cardiac recovery fol- lowing an arrow shooting session Nihal Dal and Serdar Tok	105
Training Applications	106
From sensor data to coaching in alpine skiing – a software design to facili- tate immediate feedback in sports Richard Brunauer, Wolfgang Kremser and Thomas Stöggl	107
Direct mobile coaching & a software framework for the creation of mobile feedback systems Martin Dobiasch, Michael Stöckl and Arnold Baca	109
Train4U – mobile sport diagnostic expert system for user-adaptive training Ingolf Waßmann, Nikolaj Troels Graf von Malotky and Alke Martens	111
Systematic comparison of club management information systems (CMIS) Thomas Blobel and Martin Lames	113
Effects of 8-weeks whole body vibration training on ITN scores and serve speed of adolescent tennis players Ismail Bayram and Hayri Ertan	115
Automatic load control in endurance training Katrin Hoffmann	117
Miscellaneous	119
Artificial intelligence in sports: actual state, trends, and future challenges Oleg Solozobov	120
Big data in sports medicine. Machine learning and precision prediction Michael Kljuchnikov and Alexander Samoylov	122

Towards a generic framework for serious games Josef Wiemeyer	124
Using virtual reality technology for bobsleigh simulation Margarita Belousova, Viktor Chertopolokhov and Anna Kruchinina	126
Fantasy football meets machine learning: the dynamic game case and a note on strategy Arseniy Stolyarov and Gleb Vasiliev	128
eSports betting market inefficiency Dmitry Dagaev and Egor Stoyan	130
Polygenic modeling of muscle fibers composition Oleg Borisov, Nikolay Kulemin, Ildus Ahmetov and Edward Generozov	132
Practical application and interpretation of iskinethetic tests' results for es- timation of athletes' muscle fiber type composition Elena Fedotova	134
Estimation of anaerobic threshold by dynamics of EMG activity and deoxy- hemoglobin content in working muscle Evgeniya Orlova, Dmitrii Prilutskii and Anatolii Borovik	136
Evaluation of foot kinematics during distance running on different surfaces in real world environments Markus Zrenner, Christoph Feldner, Ulf Jensen, Nils Roth, Robert Richer and Bjoern Eskofier	138
Reliability analysis of foot scan in the measurement of plantar pressure parameters among normal young people Jia-Ying Yang, Ya-Wei Song and Jiang Li	140
Information system of sports orientation of children 6 to 12 years in Moscov Andrey Kartsev, Ekaterina Butkova and German Lurie	w 142
Poster Presentations	144
Analysis of the competitive activities components of Russian men biath- letes and biathlon teams of the main rivals at the world cup stages Pavel Myakinchenko, Nikita Adodin, Natalya Yeremich, Vasily Kuzmichev and Evgeny Myakinchenko	145
Technology of the analysis of data of aerobic and anaerobic distribution of	

volumes of physical activity in the different high-speed ranges in soccer147Vyacheslav Godik, Mark Godik and Andrey Leksakov147

Effect of 20 minutes treadmill aerobic exercise at varying intensities on heart rate, electrocardiograph and mood state response among sportsman Syed Ibrahim, Ather Syed Ahmed and Azhar Syed Ahmed	149
Influence of physical activity and the FTO A/T polymorphism on the body composition of adolescents and young adults Olga Parfenteva	151
The model of psychological diagnosis and training in football Alyona Grushko	153
Characteristics of exponential equation of heart rate recovery in young ath- letes after exercise as indicators of physical loading intensity Petr Prusov and Maria Shatenok	155
On technology of physiological avatar with optimal training process plan- ning in cyclic sports Yuri Solodyannikov and Alexander Proshin	157
Data analysis in evaluation the effectiveness of governance in sports Yuri Petrunin and Yuliya Siluyanova	159
Complex for optimization of rowing Sergey Gontarev	161
Forecast of physical performance of skyhall sportsmen by indicators of heart rate variability Sergey Razinkin, Anna Kish, Mikhail Bragin, Mikhail Dvornikov and Timofey Matyshev	163
New methods for real time control of vegetative balance on a heart rate variability Oleg Anosov and Ilya Tyuvaev	165
Types of myocardial remodeling in athletes and physically inactive individ- uals with Wolf-Parkinson-White syndrome Marina Sharoyko, Evgeniia Ketlerova, Varvara Noskova and Elena Turova	167
Do pang of conscience affect judge's behaviour? Yegor Zaitsev and Ilya Schurov	169
Towards the highest performance in sport: the scope for target-oriented modeling in cross-country ski Angelica Lunina, Alexey Batalov, Alexander Grushin, Danil Akimov and Andrey Golov	170
Complex dynamic estimation of the functional condition of sportsmen in sports: from junior to champion Sergey Klyuchnikov and Andrey Zholinskiy	172

Psychological type of human constitution, the relationship and impact on the tolerance of training loads – Justification problem Eduard Zurin, Andrey Kriuchkov and Lilia Shuvalova	174
Effect of plyometric exercises for development of speed among cricketers of Osmania university in India Yerraguntla Emmanuel Shashi Kumar	176
Effect of plyometric exercises for development of speed among hockey players of Gulbarga university Hanmanth Jange	177
Muscular endurance, explosive strength and suppleness: influence of taek- wondo drills on the male subjects Hamed Abu-Hilal and Syed Ibrahim	178
Digital technologies in refereeing of championships for skills competence "physical education, sport and fitness" based on the standards and refer- eeing criteria of worldskills Russia Eduard Zurin, Elena Skarzhinskaya, Kristina Oblog and Anastasia Shchegoleva	180
Monitorization of a male basketball player after reconstructive ACL surgery: a case study Ismail Bayram and Hayri Ertan	182

Training Theory

WHETHER CYBERNETICS IN SPORT EXISTED IN THE USSR? MODELS RELEASED IN 1965

Egor A. Timme^{1,2}, Alexander A. Dayal^{1,2}, Yuri A. Kukushkin²

 ¹ Moscow Center of Advanced Sport Technologies (MCAST)
 ² Russian Association of Computer sciense in Sport (RACSS) Sovetskoy Armii st. 6, 129272, Moscow, Russia
 e-mail: timme.ea@mossport.ru, alexrhea9999@gmail.com

Keywords: cybernetics in sport, mathematical modelling in sport, sport science in USSR

Abstract. The article describes two mathematical models - the model of energy metabolism in humans during muscle activity and the model of fatigue accumulation during physical work and recovery during rest, invented by soviet scientists in the early 60s, which were presented at the first conference in the USSR "Cybernetics and sport" in 1965.

1 INTRODUCTION

The history of Cybernetics in our country (first the USSR and then Russia) is full of dramatic events. The rise of Cybernetics as a science began in the early 50s and by the 60s this wave came first to physiology, medicine, and then to sports. The history of formation of the scientific directions connected with application of Cybernetics in sports in the USSR is interesting. Since the 60s of the last century in the USSR there has been an increase in the use of mathematical methods and cybernetic approaches in various fields of sports, including modeling, programming and control of sports training based on physiological laws using digital information obtained from devices. This period formed a system approach in the management of sports training. Over the years, many ideas have been generated, and some well-known Soviet researchers created scientific schools in the field of sports science, the influence of which we still experience.

2 FIRST CONFERENCE "CYBERNETICS AND SPORT" IN USSR

First conference "Cybernetics and sport" in the USSR held in November 1-2, 1965, in the SCOLIPE and was devoted to the application of mathematical approaches to the analysis and control of sports activities (Novikov, 1966). It was held in a format similar to symposia IACSS. The conference was attended by about 700 specialists, 120 papers were submitted of which 68 were accepted for presentation. Participants of the conference were scientists in the field of biomechanics, biochemistry, morphology and physiology of sports, engineers, specialists in mathematics, as well as coaches and teachers of physical education. During the conference it was shown that cybernetic methods were most effectively used for research and modeling of physiological processes in muscle activity and dynamics of physical condition of athletes, assessment of fitness, simulation of impact of training on performance, data collec-

tion and analyses in sports. At the opening of the conference, one of the founders of the cybernetic direction in physiology Professor Nikolay Bernstein (the founder of modern biomechanics of human movements and the theory of movement control, the founder of the physiology of activity) spoke about the role of cybernetic research in human motor activity. Presentations were made by well-known scientists - V. Zatsiorsky, N. Volkov, Yu. Verkhoshansky, M. Godik, V. Farfel, D. Donskoy, I. Ratov, L. Chkhaidze and many others. The conference participants unanimously noted the need to create a special department to coordinate research on Cybernetics in sports and the rational use of the potential of research teams. This department was soon created -the all-Union scientific Committee on Cybernetics at the Scientific and Methodological Council of the Union of Sports Societies and Organizations of the USSR. This department successfully functioned until 1968-the moment of dissolution of the Union of sports societies was reformed and became the Union-Republican Committee on Physical Culture and Sport under the Council of Ministers of the USSR.

3 MODELS

At the conference, sports physiologist Nikolai I. Volkov presented a kinetic model of the processes of energy metabolism in humans in muscle activity, describing the consumption of oxygen and the formation of lactate in physical work and explaining the known facts about the regulation of metabolic changes over time (Volkov, 1966). This model was a prototype of the well-known model of human bioenergy developed by R.H. Morton, which he refers to in his article (Morton, 1985).

Mathematician Sergey Kislitsyn presented a model called "fatigue-rest", which describes the process of fatigue during physical work and recovery during rest (Vorobyov, Kislitsyn, 1965). With the use of this model, along with the task of obtaining the maximum work for a certain period of time, the inverse problem can be solved – finding the optimal mode of operation. Unfortunately, the model was not properly developed and applied, and now completely forgotten.

Both models are not only of historical interest, but can also be used to assess the physiological cost of training loads and sports training control.

REFERENCES

- A.D. Novikov, It's started! (Cybernetics and sports) *Theory And Practice of Physical Culture*, 4, 11-12, 1966 (in Russian).
- A.D. Novikov (Ed.), Cybernetics and sports. *Materials of the scientific conference*. Moscow: SCOLIPE, 1965 (in Russian).
- N.I. Volkov, The creation of a mathematical model of the processes of energy metabolism during muscular activity. *Theory And Practice of Physical Culture*, **5**, 37-43, 1966 (in Russian).
- R.H. Morton, On a model of human bioenergetics. *European journal of applied physiology and occupational physiology*, **54(3)**, 285-290, 1985.
- N.N. Vorobyov, S.S. Kislitsyn, A.S. Mikhailova, Model "fatigue-rest". *News of the USSR Academy of Sciences. Technical cybernetics*, **1**, 21-27, 1965 (in Russian).

QUANTIFICATION OF POSITIVE AND NEGATIVE EFFECTS OF TRAINING WITH A SECONDARY SIGNAL MODEL FOR ADAPTATION DURING INTENSIVE TRAINING IN ATHLETES

Thierry Busso¹, and Sébastien Chalencon²

¹Univ Lyon, UJM-Saint-Etienne, Laboratoire Interuniversitaire de Biologie de la Motricité, EA 7424 F-42023, Saint-Etienne, France busso@univ-st-etienne.fr

> ² Club des Dauphins de Guilherand-Granges F-07500, Guilherand-Granges, France seb.chalencon@gmail.com

Keywords: Modeling and simulation, Swimming, Fatigue, Performance

Abstract. The aim of this study was to test the suitability of using an indirect response for modeling the adaptation to training in athletes. We formulated different models which assumed that increase in performance results of the transformation of a signal secondary training dose. These models included different formulation for the negative effects of training and were compared to one current model. They were tested using data over a 30-week training period in 10 swimmers.

1 INTRODUCTION

The model proposed by Banister et al (1975) considers that the performance response to a work session is the combined results of the negative and positive effects of training. The two antagonistic components were modeled in an identical fashion using first-order kinetics. In these two models, the gain in adaptation is entirely produced immediately after the training session and dissipates with a first-order rate constant. It is recognized, however, that the adaptation results of physiological processes intervening during post-exercise recovery. A better description of positive effect of a training session could be provided by considering that it results of the transformation of a signal secondary to the primary training stimulus (Busso 2017). In this earlier report, negative effect of training was found to be better described by an inhibition of production of positive effect than fatigue with first-order kinetics. Nevertheless, the lack of fatigue component in this model could be not suitable in athletes when their performance capacity diminishes during an overload period.

The aim of this study was to show that indirect response model is relevant for modeling the adaptation to training in athletes if fatigue resulting of the accumulation of training is also considered. To test this hypothesis, we have re-used data from a larger study on the autonomic nervous system responses to training in ten young swimmers (Chalencon et al 2012 and 2015). This experiment was designed with two consecutive 15-week training cycles comprising a period of intensive training with a decrease in performance before a rebound effect when training loads were reduced during the last weeks of both cycles. Different model formulations were

tested using data collected in swimmers followed during 30 weeks of training with performance measured each week.

2 MODELS

We have tested 4 models which assumed that change in performance results from training effect counterbalancing loss of adaptation because of an indirect response to the primary training stimulus : Model T without any negative component, Model TI with training session inhibiting positive effects of previous sessions, Model TF with fatigue described by fist-order kinetics, Model TIF with inhibition process added to fatigue as in Model TF. In our previous report (Busso 2017), the initialization of the model variables was done according to performance measured before the experiment. In the current study, we added a further best-fitting parameter for estimating the starting point of the computations. These indirect response models were compared to the model proposed by Banister et al (1975).

3 RESULTS

Because of decrease in performance during overload periods, Model T failed to describe change in performance in 9 swimmers. The fit was statistically significant in each swimmer with all the other tested models, Model TI showing the lowest adj-r². The bias-corrected AIC gave evidence in favor of Model of Banister relative to the other models. Additionally, we assessed the reliability of the prediction of performances during the second 15-week cycle (validation dataset) with each model using the parameters estimated with the data of the first 15-week cycle (training dataset). No statistical difference in accuracy of the prediction of performance was observed between Models TI, TF, TIF and Banister.

4 CONCLUSION

This study showed that secondary signal model was relevant for modeling the change in performance during intensified training in athletes if negative effect of training (*i.e.* fatigue) was considered. Further work is needed to better consider the initial athlete's status and its implications in model computations. Nevertheless, indirect response models did not show an ability to predict performance in athletes better than model proposed by Banister et al (1975).

REFERENCES

- Banister, E. W., Calvert, T. W., Savage, M. V. & Bach, T. (1975). A systems model of training for athletic performance. *Australian Journal of Sports Medicine*, 7(3), 57-61.
- Busso, T. (2017). From an indirect response pharmacodynamic model towards a secondary signal model of dose-response relationship between exercise training and physical performance. *Scientific Reports*, 7, 40422, doi:10.1038/srep40422.
- Chalencon, S., Busso T. Lacour, J.R., Garet, M., Pichot, V., Connes, P., Gabel C., Roche, F., Barthelemy, J. C.(2012). A Model for the Training Effects in wwimming demonstrates a strong relationship between parasympathetic activity, performance and index of fatigue. PLoS One. 7, e52636, doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0052636
- Chalencon, S., Pichot, V., Roche, F., Lacour, J.R., Garet, M., Connes, P., Barthelemy, J. C., & Busso T. (2015). Modeling of performance and ANS activity for predicting future responses to training. *European Journal of Applied Physiology*, 115(3): 589-596.

A PROBABILISTIC MODEL OF MAXIMAL MEAN PERFORMANCE

Alexander Asteroth¹ and Melanie Ludwig¹

¹Bonn-Rhein-Sieg University o.a.s. Grantham Allee 20, Sankt Augustin, Germany e-mail: {alexander.asteroth, melanie.ludwig}@h-brs.de

Keywords: critical power, probabilistic model, Gaussian processes, performance modeling

Abstract. A probabilistic model of maximal average performance in endurance sports is presented. The joint distribution of three variables namely interval length, average power, and average heart rate is modeled using Gaussian processes. The model allows for prediction of maximal average performances even based on data from submaximal efforts.

1 INTRODUCTION

Since the introduction of critical power concept (CP) by Monod & Scherrer (1965), a variety of extensions and modifications to this model have been proposed, cf. Morton (2006). These models estimate the maximal average power \hat{P} an athlete is able to sustain for a given duration T. The original model assumed work $\hat{W} = \hat{P} \cdot T$ to be a linear function, while others made a nonlinear assumption. To get a good estimate of \hat{P} , maximal efforts of different training durations must be available. The lack thereof is the main limiting factor to use these models. Nevertheless in recent years with training software and portals becoming more and more popular, such models are now widely used. However, because most people use training data to fit the model, maximal efforts are not always available, and even if so, it is difficult to distinguish maximal efforts from submaximal ones. The purpose of the presented approach therefore is to overcome this shortcoming and allow prediction of \hat{P} even from submaximal efforts.

2 METHOD

The general idea is to model the joint distribution Prob(P = p, HR = hr, T = t), as average power (P) can be used as a measure of the objective effort an athlete produces over some interval duration T. Average heart rate (HR) marks the subjective effort of this athletic performance. In maximal average performances, we assume both measures to be maximal simultaneously. Historic training data of an athlete is used to determine frequencies of pairs (P, HR) for all durations T; Fig. 1 (a) shows example frequencies and the estimated distribution. Training samples are generated using a moving average filter. The filter allows generation of a sample for every point in time, thus resulting in a sufficient number of samples. Estimation of probability densities can now be based on this data.

3 EVALUATION

As a first approach, by means of a Gaussian process (cf. Rasmussen (2004)) we approximate:

$$g(hr, p, t) = Prob(HR = hr \mid P = p, T = t)$$
(1)



Figure 1: (a) Estimation of density from sample frequencies; (b) Distribution of predicted \hat{P} based on submaximal training data. Classical CP model prediction shown for comparison; (c) Maximal mean power outputs of a cycling training including a 20 min time trial; (d) Average relative prediction errors of probabilistic model for 6 athletes.

$$f(p, hr, t) = Prob(P = p | HR = hr, T = t)$$
 using Bayes' rule. (2)

As we assume that maximal average power occurs at maximal heart rate, the distribution of \hat{P} is $f(p, hr_{\max,t}, t)$. Here, $hr_{\max,t}$ can be derived from g as the maximal value of HR with nonzero probability ($hr_{\max,t} = \max\{hr \mid \exists p : g(hr, p, t) > \varepsilon\}$). Fig. 1 (b) shows an example of the resulting distribution of \hat{P} . As can be seen, a distribution of maximal power outputs is predicted for every interval duration. The prediction is based on submaximal training only. Nevertheless prediction is quite accurate. As an example we used time-trial experiments to predict actual performance over 20 minutes. As Fig. 1 (c) shows, the mean value of the predicted \hat{P} accurately models the athlete's performance. To evaluate the approach we used training data from six professional cyclists. Prediction of maximal power was based on a random subset of training data. \hat{P} was estimated using the proposed method as well as using the complete dataset, which we assume to contain at least one maximal effort for 10 different durations. For all but one predicted durations, the maximal performance deviated on average around 5% from the observed value in the complete dataset (Fig. 1 (d)).

4 DISCUSSION AND FUTURE WORK

In the presented work we were able to show that probabilistic modeling of mean maximal power allows including heart rate measurements into the modeling process. By this means it was possible to predict \hat{P} based on submaximal training data. In the evaluation it turned out that prediction works better for some athletes than for others. In future work it will be investigated whether this is caused by the method or by the evaluation strategy using data of more athletes. Summarizing, the approach seems to be a very promising extension to the classical CP model.

REFERENCES

- Rasmussen, Carl. E., Gaussian Processes in Machine Learning. *Advanced Lectures on Machine Learning*, Springer, (pp 63–71), 2004.
- Monod, H & Scherrer, J. The work capacity of synergic muscle group. *Ergonomics*, (pp. 329-338), July 1965.
- Morton, R. Hugh. The critical power and related whole-body bioenergetic models. *European Journal of Applied Physiology*, Vol. 96, (pp. 339–354), Springer 2006.

MULTI-OBJECTIVE OPTIMIZATION OF THE TRAINING PLAN WITH THE USE OF APPROXIMATION AND VISUALIZATION OF PARETO FRONTIER

Egor A. Timme^{1,2}, Alexander A. Dayal^{1,2}, Yuri A. Kukushkin²

 ¹ Moscow Center of Advanced Sport Technologies (MCAST)
 ² Russian Association of Computer sciense in Sport (RACSS) Sovetskoy Armii st. 6, 129272, Moscow, Russia
 e-mail: timme.ea@mossport.ru, alexrhea9999@gmail.com, info@racss.ru

Keywords: training plan, training volume, fitness-fatigue model, multidimensional multicriteria optimization, performance optimization, Pareto-optimal solutions, Pareto frontier

Abstract. The article presents an approach to the formation of optimal training plans, based on models of performance depending on the training effects and the method of multidimensional multi-criteria optimization - approximation and visualization of the Pareto frontier.

1 INTRODUCTION

When a coach plans a training load, he tries to find a compromise between several goals. Goals (criteria) can be formed, for example, by minimizing the total training volume for the period under consideration and maximizing the performance for the same period simultaneously. The goals are antagonistic and cannot be achieved together.

Studies on the optimization of training plans have already been conducted [1]. Authors used a variety of optimization algorithms to generate optimal training plans and evaluated the quality of the solutions, but they were based on finding the maximum of one objective function, while the remaining conditions were considered as constrains.

In presented study, we develop an approach to the optimization of performance, based on one of the methods of multidimensional multi-criteria optimization - approximation and visualization of the Pareto frontier. The solution is Pareto-optimal if the value of any of the criteria can be improved only by worsening the values of the other criteria [2].

2 RESULTS

An algorithm for finding Pareto-optimal training plans for a given set of criteria for certain Fitness-Fatigue models is constructed. For the analysis of training plans and subjective choice of the best method we use construction and visualization of Pareto frontier in the space of criteria by means of usage of two-dimensional maps of criteria [3].

3 CONCLUSION

By analyzing the visualized set of Pareto-optimal solutions, the coach can choose the best training plan for the desired training volume for a certain period, leading to a given performance by the end of this period or to a given target performance, he also can choose the optimal training plan with a minimum training volume, leading to the desired performance.

REFERENCES

- 1. Schaefer, D., Asteroth, A., & Ludwig, M. (2015). Training plan evolution based on training models. Paper presented at the International *Symposium "Innovations in Intelligent Systems and Applications" (INISTA)*.
- 2. Lotov, A.V., Bushenkov, V.A., & Kamenev, G.K. (2013). Interactive decision maps: Approximation and visualization of Pareto frontier (Vol. 89): Springer Science & Business Media.
- 3. Lotov, A. V., & Miettinen, K. (2008). Visualizing the Pareto frontier. *In Multiobjective optimization* (pp. 213-243): Springer.

DETERMINATION OF PERFORMANCE LEVEL BASED ON TRAINING IMPULSES

Denis A. Gudkov¹, Dmitriy A. Butkov¹

¹Federal Research Center of Physical-Chemical Medicine of the Federal Medical & Biological Agency, Moscow, Russia e-mail: gudkovdenis@gmail.com

Keywords: Performance, training impulses, TRIMPs.

Abstract. This paper provides a method to estimate performance of athlete as the sum of the indicators of different systems of his body.

1 INTRODUCTION

There are many factors affecting the performance of the runners, including the different directions of training efforts, their combinations, the general condition of the athletes. The coaches are not able to consider all the factors in developing a training plan. The forecast of the peak of fitness is an important part of the preparation for the main start of the season.

2 METHOD

This article describes the results of a study of some runners who trained for 6 weeks according to the proposed training plan.

To evaluate the performance, a training impulse recording system, TRIMPs, has been proposed, which considers the total increase in fitness and fatigue throughout the entire training process. This system was modified: *a*) individual coefficients were introduced, describing the dependence of serum lactate concentration on the training load, b) fitness state divided by components, describing aerobic and anaerobic work, c) total performance was calculated as the sum of these components. The equation in general form is shown at fig. 1. The coefficients were determined using 2 types of exercises: running in aerobic and anaerobic regimes.

$$p_n = p^* + k_1 \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} w_i e^{\frac{-(n-1)}{\tau_1}} - k_2 \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} w_i e^{\frac{-(n-1)}{\tau_2}}$$
$$w(t) = T \times \frac{\text{HR}_{\text{ex}} - \text{HR}_{\text{rest}}}{\text{HR}_{\text{max}} - \text{HR}_{\text{rest}}}$$

Fig.1. The basic equation for calculating performance, where p_n is total performance, p * is the initial performance value, k_1 , τ_1 and k_2 , τ_2 are individual fitness and fatigue coefficients, respectively, w(t) is training impulses (HR_{ex} is the heart rate during training, HR_{rest} - at rest, HR_{max} - maximum).

3 MAIN RESULTS

The dependences of athlete's performance on the value of TRIMPs were built (fig. 2 shows an example of dependence for one of the athletes). Individual lactate-coefficients were determined during load testing. The other coefficients were determined by the regression method of a polynomial of the 3rd order when comparing the theoretical and experimental values of fitness and fatigue.



Fig.2. The dependence of performance, calculated by TRIMPs (•), and measured using tests (•) on time.

4 CONCLUSIONS

The system for assessing athlete's fitness has been improved. The main advantages are individuality, higher predictive power. This system can be used to estimate the effectiveness of the training process.

REFERENCES

- Clarce, D. C., Skiba, Ph. F. (2013). Rationale and resources for teaching the mathematical modeling of athletic training and performance. *Adv. Physiol. Educ.*, 37, 134–152.
- Hayes, Ph. R., Quinn, M. D. (2009). A mathematical model for quantifying training. *Eur. J. Appl. Physiol.*, 106, 839-847.

ONLINE COURSES PROVIDING INSIGHTS INTO HOW DOPING MAY AFFECT PERFORMANCE IN TENNIS

Arnold Baca¹, and Jürgen Perl²

¹University of Vienna Auf der Schmelz 6A, 1150, Vienna, Austria e-mail: arnold.baca@univie.ac.at

² University of Mainz Staudingerweg 9d, 55128, Mainz, Germany e-mail: Juergen.Perl@t.online.de

Keywords: Anti-doping, educational program, PerPot

Abstract. Within the frame of an Erasmus+-project funded by the European Union (EU), online course modules are developed for obtaining a better understanding of how doping may affect performance profiles.

1 INTRODUCTION

One main focus of the Sport Chapter in the Erasmus+-Programme of the EU is to tackle cross-border threats to the integrity of sport, such as doping. As part of the funded collaborative-partnership-project "Match Point" respective online course modules are developed.

2 ONLINE COURSE MODULES

The course materials will be made available as open educational resources in the form of two innovative modules: "Doping and Performance" as well as "Doping and Performance in Tennis". Our main goal is, that athletes and coaches (in particular from tennis) working through the courses obtain awareness that there are methods evolving, which allow to detect suspicious performance.

The learning objects consist of content items and practice items. They are designed in a way that they can be integrated into a learning management system (Moodle) and are realised as digital videos and/or pre-recorded powerpoint presentations. All materials can be accessed from any computing device having internet access, independently from space and time.

3 TRAINING AND PERFORMANCE

The central question considered within the modules is: "Is it possible to generate certain performance profiles with and/or without doping?". The system dynamics part of the question

is mediated using methods from modelling and simulation. By means of a performance-potential meta-model (PerPot; Perl, 2010), some of the phenomena of decreasing fatigue and unbelievable high levels of performance are demonstrated. From a better understanding of which performance may be expected from training, users may get insights on how peculiarities may be detected.



Figure 1: Expected heart rate profile (green) compared to heart rate profiles based on simulated performance parameters (gray).

Figure 1 demonstrates, how detection of faked performance parameters could work: Depending on the original performance parameters (delays of fatigue and recovery), the athlete should show an individual heart rate profile (green) caused by the velocity profile (red). Examples 1 and 2 show two deviating heart rate profiles caused by deviating parameter values. This way, parameter variation and heart rate simulation can help for understanding unexpected performance.

4 INTERACTIVITY

Users of the modules may perform simulations based on parameter variations. Potential causes of observed results and effects of parameter variations may thereby be studied. In case of having observed suspiciously low heart rate profiles like in examples 1 and 2 of Figure 1, for instance, one can interactively or by means of algorithms find the best fitting pair of performance parameters, which, compared to the original or expected ones, can give information about irregularities.

5 ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The project is funded by the European Union: Ref: 602998-EPP-1-2018-1-BG-SPO-SCP

REFERENCES

Perl, J. (2010) PerPot: A metamodel for simulation of load performance interaction. *European Journal of Sport Science*, 1(2), 1-13.

PA Applications

PERFORMANCE OF PERFORMACE INDICATORS IN FOOTBALL

Tiago Russomanno¹, Daniel Linke², Max Geromiller² and Martin Lames²

¹ University of Brasilia Campus Universitário Darcy Ribeiro, Brasília, Brazil e-mail: tiagorussomanno@unb.br

² Technical University Munich Georg-Brauchle-Ring 60/62, Munich, Germany e-mail: <u>martin.lames@tum.de</u>

Keywords: Model building, Performance analysis, football, performance indicators.

Abstract. Performance indicators play a big role in football nowadays, and the choice for the better indicators is always a big question. In this work we try to elucidate which ones are the best performance indicators.

1 INTRODUCTION

Performance indicators are a key part in today's sports analytics, traditionally in US-sports but increasingly also in other game sports like football. A variety of indicators was created to explain behavior and performance in football. Only recently, with the advent of positional data in football, totally new families of performance indicators came into reach.

A closer look at performance indicators in football reveals a certain development towards an increasing complexity. Whereas in earlier days simple counts and percentages in the action domain and aggregations of kinematic variables in the position domain were prevalent, today's research focuses on performance indicators that try to operationalize constructs used by practitioners to analyze football with (Carling, 2013).

Nevertheless, there are only few studies that compare performance indicators for example in predicting success in matches or over a season. This study aims at comparing the predictive validity of performance indicators of the two types mentioned above, more simple ones and more sophisticated ones introduced only recently.

2 METHODS

A sample of 279 football games of the German Bundesliga in the Season 2016/2017 was analyzed, i.e. a full season with only few matches missing because of non-reported PIs.

Performance indicators under scrutiny were: number of shots, number of shots on goal, number of passes, number of successful passes and the rate of ball possession (www.opta.de). Representing more actual indicators, total and relative shot ratio (Semeliker, 2013), expected goals (Rathke, 2018), packing-rate, defender packing rate, and packing per pass rate (Kicker, 2018)) were examined.

To analyze criterion or predictive validity, Spearman's rank correlations between the performance indicators (season mean for each of the 18 teams in German Bundesliga) and the final ranking of the teams were calculated. Wilcoxon tests were performed for each performance indicator testing for differences between winners and losers in the matches that did not result in a draw (n=215). Moreover, the inter-correlations between the performance indicators were calculated using Pearson's correlation after making sure via Kolmogorov-Smirnov test that normal distribution was given for each indicator.

3 RESULTS

The highest predictive value for the final ranking was found with successful passes and passes ($r_{\text{Spearman}}=0.777$ resp. 0.774). Packing performed at a comparable level (total: 0.763; defender: 0.746). The next indicators follow only after a considerable gap: Expected goals: 0.572; shots on goal: 0.530.

The winner-loser comparison showed the highest discriminative effect size with d=0.72 for defender packing, whereas total packing performed much weaker with d=0.39. Shots on goal (d=0.66) and shots (d=0.44) discriminated much more than the other indicators.

The results of the inter-correlations between performance indicators revealed several interesting findings. For example, the recently introduced packing shows a very high correlation with the number of passes ($r_{Pearson}=0.948$) very much like expected goals with shots (0.947). In general, the inter-correlations are quite high (>0.90) with only few exceptions below 0.80.

4 DISCUSSION

The predictive power of most performance indicators for predicting the final ranking is rather poor, at least when the season average is taken. Most of them fall below $r_{Spearman}=0.50$. The same holds for the discrimination between winners and losers, a seemingly rather simple task, where, nevertheless, mostly medium effect sizes were found. The inter-correlations show a rather to very high agreement between different performance indicators.

It is interesting to note that the recently introduced performance indicators performed only marginally, sometimes not at all better than the older ones.

5 CONCLUSIONS

As some indicators seem to express certain aspects of the game more than others, it is advisable to consider more than one to get the full picture of a match.

The rather poor predictive power of most performance indicators is in agreement with a notion of a football match as emergent interaction process (Lames & McGarry, 2007) where the outcome of single matches as well as the ranking of a whole season as has been shown is only hard to predict by performance indicators based on match behavior.

REFERENCES

Carling, C. (2013). Interpreting physical performance in professional soccer match-play: should we be more pragmatic in our approach? *Sports Medicine*, 43, 655–663.

Kicker (2018). www.kicker.de

Lames, M. & McGarry, T. (2007). On the search for reliable performance indicators in game sports. International Journal of Performance Analysis in Sport. 7, 62–79.

Rathke, A. (2018). http://alexrathke.net/expected-goals/

Semeliker, A. S. (2013).). http://www.abseits.at/in-depth/taktik-theorie/statische-metho-denzur-leistungsbewertung-im-fussball-die-total-shot-ratio/

ASSESSMENT OF PREMIER LEAGUE CLUBS'OFFENSIVE AND DEFENSIVE STRENGTH

ZENG Yue, ZHANG Hui

Department of Sport Science College of Education, Zhejiang University, Hangzhou, China e-mail: 11803033@zju.edu.cn

Keywords:Premier League, Offensive Strength, Defensive Strength, TOPSIS, Comprehensive Index

Abstract. This paper provides a scientific calculation method to calculate and measure the offensive and defensive strength of teams in the Premier League.

1 INTRODUCTION

There are many factors affecting the performance of the Premier League, including League management, Club financial resources, foreign aid level, physical fitness, coaches and even referee level, but technical strength is undoubtedly the core factor.

2 SAMPLE AND METHOD

2.1 Sample

This paper chooses the data of 4548 Premier League matches in 2012/2013-2017/2018 season as the samples. All data come from Sina Sports website (<u>https://www.sina.com.cn</u>).

2.2 Method

Firstly, nine indicators reflecting the offensive strength and eight indicators reflecting the defensive strength of football matches are screened through the algorithm of discrimination and multiple correlation coefficient. Secondly, the entropy method is used to empower the attacking and defensive indices, and the weight coefficients of each index are obtained. Thirdly, using TOPSIS (Technique for Order Preference by Similarity to Ideal Solution) and comprehensive index method, 17 teams who participated in at least four Premier League season were analyzed. (2012/2013-2017/2018)

3 MAIN RESULTS

3.1 Offensive and defensive rankings for the 2012/2013-2017/2018 season

The TOPSIS method is used to rank the teams. In the 2012/2013-2017/2018 season, Arsenal's offensive strength is the best, and defensive strength ranks third. Manchester City ranked second in offensive strength, and fifth in terms of defensive strength. Liverpool rank

third in offensive strength and seventh in defensive strength. Manchester United ranked first in defensive strength, fifth in offensive strength.

3.2 The Dynamic Change of Attack and Defense of Teams in Each Season

The comprehensive index method is used to evaluate the offensive and defensive strength of each team in each season. There are obvious differences in offensive strength between the top teams (ranking 1-6) and the middle teams (ranking 7-12), and the weak teams (ranking 13-17)(Fig.1). The difference between the top teams (ranking 7-12) and the weak teams (ranking 13-17) is relatively small. The defensive strength of the top teams (ranking 1-6) and the middle teams (ranking 7-12) and the weak teams (ranking 13-17) is relatively small. The defensive strength of the top teams (ranking 7-12) and the weak teams (ranking 13-17) in the Premier League is obviously different. The defensive strength gap between the middle teams (ranking 7-12) and the weak teams (ranking 13-17) is relatively small. It shows that in the Premier League, there are obvious differences in offense and defense between the top team and the other two classes. The offense and defense strength of the top team and the Weak team is relatively balanced, indicating that if we want to achieve good results in the Premier League, we need to simultaneously improve the offense and defense strength. (Fig. 2)





Fig.2.Ranking 1-6 in defensive strength

4 CONCLUSIONS

The TOPSIS ranking and comprehensive index method based on 9 attacking and 8 defensive indexes are closely related to the actual ranking of League clubs, and can better distinguish, evaluate and analyze the offensive and defensive strength of each club in the Premier League.

REFERENCES

- Castagna Cetal, M. (2003). Activity profile of young soccer players during actual match play, *J Strength Cond Res*, *Nov*; 17(4): (pp. 75-80).
- Choong-Ki Lee, Yong-Ki Lee, BongKoo Lee, M. (2005). Korea' s destination image formed by the 2002 World Cup, *Tourism Research*, *Vol.32*, *Issue 4*, (pp.839-858).
- Christopher Carling, A. Williams, Thomas Reilly, M. (2005). Handbook Of Soccer Match Anlysis, *Oxon: Routledge*, 1, (pp. 35-37).

A MULTI-DIMENSIONAL ANALYTICAL SYSTEM OF TABLE TENNIS MATCHES

Zheng Zhou, Hui Zhang

Department of Sport Science College of Education, Zhejiang University, Hangzhou, China e-mail: zheng.zhou@zju.edu.cn

Keywords: Table Tennis, Multi-dimensional Analysis, Elite Players

Abstract. This paper takes the technical and tactical indices of table tennis matches to construct a multi-dimensional analytical system with data mining algorithm. On this basis, 10 matches between Japanese table tennis player ITO Mima and Chinese players are analyzed systematically. The results show that: (1) the function of video interaction in the analytical system can help players and coaches understand tactics more quickly and meticulously; (2) the frequently-used effective tactics of ITO Mima are more diverse and aggressive in the serve round than in the receive round; (3) In the serve round, the main tactic of ITO Mima is serving the ball to short, and striking with topspin actively, while in the receive round, the key to win is continuous attack.

1 INTRODUCTION

Table tennis match analysis including descriptive, computer-aided and model analysis methods, plays an active role in helping coaches and players understand table tennis matches. Video data (multi-dimensional indices) collection and analysis is the bottleneck that hinders the development of table tennis match analysis (Fuchs et al., 2018; Zhang et al., 2018; Zhang et al., 2017). In recent years, Japanese player ITO Mima has defeated Chinese players for many times, becoming a big threat. This paper attempts to create a table tennis match analysis system to analyze technique and tactics in multiple dimensions, and further enrich the theory and methods of table tennis match analysis.

2 SAMPLE AND METHOD

2.1 Sample

10 matches between Japanese table tennis player ITO Mima and Chinese players including Ding Ning, Zhu Yuling, Chen Meng, Liu Shiwen, Wang Manyu and Chen Xingtong in 2018 were taken as samples.

2.2 Method

A collection system was set up based on the nature of table tennis matches and the internal logic of each index, which include 12 stroke placements, 14 stroke techniques, 6 stroke positions, 6 stroke scenarios, 5 stroke effects, 6 stroke spins and 2 results.

A multi-dimensional analytical system was established with data mining algorithm, video interaction and data visualization. Due to the small amount of data, this paper took the most important indices in table tennis matches – stroke technique and placement for analysis in case the data are too scattered.

© DETAILS		= Wetch List	•
	NULLIN YANK FUR ALCO. NY THE ATLEN THEAT IN THEATER AND A		
Immuno 2 moment 3 connection 6 moment 6 moment 7 connection 6 moment 8 moment 8 moment 8 moment 8 moment 8 moment 7 connection 8 moment moment <thmoment< th=""> <thmoment< th=""> mom</thmoment<></thmoment<>			×
moverne ropuper opper volas ropuper Ablas Topper Ablas Steriete Sterierte Ablas Steriete Sterierte Sterier	CONCEPT Terre state: Blace Hare: Marce Hare: Statemate: - Laver 3 - Sint: -		×

Figure 1-2: Multi-dimensional Collection and Analytical System of Table Tennis Matches

3 MAIN RESULTS

	Se	erve round (Stroke1-3)	Receive round (Stroke2-4)		
Player	Sum	Tactic type	Ave. scoring	Sum	Tactic	Ave. scoring
Mima ITO	199	85	62.7%	134	100	62.5%
Chinese	163	79	62.5%	111	75	67.9%

Note: Tactics represent scoring rate over 50.0%, usage rate over 1.5% and 1.0% respectively

Table 1: Basic data of effective and frequently used tactics between ITO Mima and Chinese players

	Tactics	Usage	Scoring
	Tactics	rate (%)	rate (%)
Serve round	P_A Reverse serve \rightarrow Short Forehand, P_B Push \rightarrow	6.5	53.8
(stroke ₁₋₃)	Long Backhand, P_A Topspin> P_A Scoring		
Receive round	(Long middle), P_A Attack \rightarrow Long Backhand,	8.2	54.5
(stroke ₂₋₄)	P_B Topspin \rightarrow Long backhand, P_A Attack> P_A		
	Scoring		

Note: PA and PB represent ITO Mima, Chinese players, respectively

Table 2: Effective tactic and the most frequently used of ITO Mima

4 CONCLUSIONS

The function of video interaction in the analytical system can help players and coaches understand tactics more quickly and meticulously.

REFERENCES

Fuchs, M., Liu, R., Lanzoni, I. M., Munivrana, G., Straub, G., & Tamaki, S., et al. (2018). Table tennis match analysis: a review. *Journal of Sports Sciences*, (3), 1-10.

- Zhang, H., Zhou, Z., & Yang, Q. (2018). Match analyses of table tennis in China: a systematic review. *Journal of Sports Sciences*, 36:23, 2663-2674.
- Zhang, H., & Zhou, Z. (2017). An analytical model of the two basic situation strategies in table tennis. *International Journal of Performance Analysis in Sport*, 17(6), 970-985.

EVALUATING THE COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE OF FOREIGN PLAYERS BY FOREIGN PLAYERS INDICATOR IN FOOTBALL LEAGUES

Junxian Jiang, Hui Zhang

Department of Sport Science College of Education, Zhejiang University, Hangzhou, China e-mail: junxian_jiang@ zju.edu.cn

Keywords: Football, Foreign Players Indicator, Top 5 Leagues.

Abstract. To explore the comprehensive performance of foreign players in different leagues (or contributions to the leagues), this paper constructed a foreign player indicator (FPI) and applied it to the European Top Five Leagues from 13/14 to 17/18. The results show that there are significant differences in the performance of foreign players in the Top Five Leagues.

1 INTRODUCTION

Foreign players in clubs participating in the competitions are an important feature of the sports professional league, some studies evaluated players' performance in one specific league (Dellal, 2010), and other studies compared the performance of individual players using technical and tactical indices (Alexandre, 2010). However, it is difficult to evaluate the comprehensive performance (or contributions to the leagues) of foreign players in different leagues with these simple indices due to the different number of players and their different positions. Therefore, the FPI is proposed to solve this problem.

2 SAMPLE AND METHOD

2.1 Sample

This study collected the data of all foreign players in Europe's Top 5 Leagues (Premier League, LaLiga, Serie A, Bundesliga, and Ligue 1) within the period of 13/14-17/18. All the data was collected from the website of Transfermarkt (https://www.transfermarkt.com/) and FIFA World Ranking (http://www.fifa.com/fifa-world-ranking/ranking-table/men/).

2.2 Method

The FPI (Foreign Players Indicator) is composed of two parts: the Nation Index (N) and the World Ranking Coefficient (θ). The formula is as follows:

$$FPI = \sum_{i=1}^{n} (NI_i * \theta_i) \tag{1}$$

n is the total number of the nations/regions registered in FIFA that the foreign players come from and *i* refers to the number *i* nation/region. $(i=1,2,3,\dots,n)$

The Nation Index (NI), based on the players' playing time, is a ratio:

$$NI = \frac{t_i}{T} \tag{2}$$

 t_i is the total playing time of players from the number *i* nation/region and *T* is the total playing time of all foreign players in the league.

The formula of the World Ranking Coefficient (θ), which used the Opponent Strength Index of the FIFA World Ranking System (2006-2018) for reference, is:

$$\theta = \frac{(200 - \text{ranking position})}{100}$$
(3)

World rankings of the 150th or below were assigned the coefficient of 0.5. The Ranking position was collected from FIFA World Ranking.

The one-way Anova and Tamhane's T2 test (a pairwise-comparison test based on the t test) was adopted to make comparisons among the FPIs of Europe's Top 5 Leagues. Statistical significance was set at p<0.05.

3 MAIN RESULTS

The FPIs of Europe's Top 5 Leagues in 2013/2014-2017/2018 are as follow (Fig. 1).



Fig. 1: FPI of the Europe's Top 5 Leagues.

The one-way ANOVA and Tamhane's T2 test of FPI of the Europe's Top 5 Leagues (2013/2014-2017/2018 seasons) is as follows (Table 1).

Leagues	Mean	SD	95% CI	F	Р	η_p^2
LaLiga	1.781 ^{Aa}	0.010	(1.768,1.795)			
Serie A	1.773 ^{ABa}	0.024	(1.744,1.803)			
Premier League	1.728^{ABab}	0.028	(1.693, 1.762)	54.094	0.001	0.9154
Bundesliga	1.704^{Bb}	0.013	(1.688,1.720)			
Ligue 1	1.582 ^C	0.036	(1.537,1.628)			

Table 1: Tamhane's T2 test of FPI of the Europe's Top 5 Leagues.

4 CONCLUSIONS

There are differences in FPI among different leagues, LaLiga and Serie A's FPI are relatively higher, while that of Ligue 1 is the lowest.

REFERENCES

Travlos A, Dimitropoulos P, Panagiotopoulos S. Foreign player migration and athletic success in Greek football [J]. Sport Business & Management An International Journal, 2017, 7(3).

Pawlowski T, Breuer C, Hovemann A. Top Clubs' Performance and the Competitive Situation in European Domestic Football Competitions [J]. Journal of Sports Economics, 2010, 11(2):186-202.

A QUANTITATIVE ASSESSMENT OF GLOBAL FOOTBALL PLAYER MIGRATION

Feida Zhao, Hui Zhang

Department of Sport Science College of Education, Zhejiang University, Hangzhou, China e-mail: zhaofeida@ zju.edu.cn

Keywords: Football, Player Migration, Imported Players, Exported Players.

Abstract. This paper constructs a player migration index (PMI) to quantitatively assess the migration of global football players. The results show that Europe and Asia are player importers, which receive more foreign players; Center North America, South America and Africa are player exporters, which export more foreign players.

1 INTRODUCTION

Player migration has led to an unbalanced distribution of players all over the world, impacting on the development of football in various countries. The flow of excellent players in the world is driven by capital, because excellent foreign players are beneficial for a club's performance (Antonios Travlos, 2017). Besides, some researches indicate that having more players working in stronger leagues abroad is conducive to the strength of the national team (G. J. Allana, 2014). However, player migration also brings some negative influence. For example, with a large number of foreign players entering the Premier League, the opportunities of indigenous English players have been undermined (Steve Bullough, 2016). Thus, this paper tries to measure player migration among continents or countries.

2 SAMPLE AND METHOD

Research indicators include the quantities of imported players and exported players who work in first-tier leagues in the five continents (Europe, Asia, South America, Africa, Center North America), data collected from Transfermarkt website (<u>https://www.transfermarkt.co.uk/</u>) in 2013-2018.

PMI is a ratio that equals dividing the number of imported players by that of exported player:

$$PMI = \frac{\Sigma n_{I_j}}{\Sigma n_{E_i}} \tag{1}$$

 n_{I_j} is the number of imported/foreign players from country *j* working in country *i*. n_{E_i} is the number of exported/native players from country *i* who work in a foreign country. In theory, the number of all imported players is equal to that of all exported players in the whole world, so the global *PMI* value is equal to 1. Base on this, when a country's *PMI* value <= 1, it means that this country has more exported players than imported ones, and can be called a player exporter; Otherwise, it can be called a player importer.
3 MAIN RESULTS

Player migration in different continents is different in 2013-2018 (Table 1). Europe and Asia have more imported players, while Europe and South America have more exported players. Additionally, total imported players (IP) are not equal to total exported players (EP), because the number of exported players of Oceania is not included and the data of some countries in early years, such as 2013, are missing.

	/	0		
Country	IP	Per.	EP	Per.
Europe	7267	76.94%	4739	50.18%
Asia	1016	10.76%	489	5.17%
South America	352	3.72%	1943	20.57%
Center North America	477	5.05%	390	4.12%
Africa	333	3.53%	1847	19.56%
Total	9445	100.00%	9407	99.60%

Table 1: global player migration in 2013-2018.

PMI values of different continents are different (Fig. 1). *PMI* values of Center North America, Africa and South America are below 1, while those of Europe and Asia are above 1.



Fig. 1: PMI value of the five continents in 2013-2018.

4 CONCLUSIONS

Player migration in the five continents is different. Europe, Asia and Center North America are player importers, which receive more foreign players; South America and Africa are player exporters, which export more foreign players.

- Antonios Travlos, Panagiotis D, e.g (2017). Foreign Player Migration and Athletic Success in Greek Football. *Sport, Business and Management: An International Journal*, 7(3), 258–275.
- G. J. Allan, J. Moffat. (2014). Muscle drain versus brain gain in association football: technology transfer through player emigration and manager immigration. *Applied Economics Letters*, 21(7), 490–493.
- Steve Bullough, Richard Moore, e.g. (2016). Player migration and opportunity: Examining the efficacy of the UEFA home-grown rule in six European football leagues. *International Journal of Sports Science & Coaching*, 11(5), 662-672.

Physiology

ENERGETIC COSTS AND ANALYSIS OF THE STRATEGY OF HUMAN LOCOMOTIONS UNDER CHANGED WEIGHT LOADINGS ON MUSCULOSKELETAL SYSTEM

A.V. Shpakov¹, A.A. Artamonov¹, A.V. Voronov²

¹Research Institute for Space Medicine of Federal Research Clinical Center of Federal Biomedical Agency of Russia. 28, Orechovy Boulevard, Moscow, 115682, Russia e-mail: <u>avshpakov@gmail.com</u>
² Federal Research Center of Physical Education and Sports, 1/10, Elisavetinskiy Lane, Moscow, 105005, Russia e-mail: voronovimbp@mail.ru

Keywords: video analysis, musculoskeletal system, joint angles, double step, gravitational unloading.

Abstract. 15 volunteers participated in the study. Biomechanical parameters of human walking under different gravitation (weight) loadings on the musculoskeletal system were analyzed. The volunteers walked at a locomotor treadmill at pace 90 steps/min under various weight loadings: 1) 100% body weight support in given weight loading on the musculoskeletal system corresponds to terrestrial walking conditions; 2) 38% body weight support is specific for a person who is on the mars surface; 3) 17% body weight support is specific for a person who is on the moon surface. Changes and regulations of weight loading on the musculoskeletal system were performed with vertical hanging. Angles and angular velocities were recorded in joints of the hip, knee, ankle joints. Besides, after analyzing changes in phase trajectories one can define the strategy of locomotion performance under reduced weight loadings on the musculoskeletal system.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

Fifteen volunteers participated in the study. They were practically healthy male volunteers aged 20-36 years (25.1 ± 5.2 years), body weight from 72 to 90 kg (78.5 ± 6.6 kg), body height from 172 to 192 cm (179.7 ± 6.3 cm). All volunteers underwent a medical examination before the experiment and, according to the Helsinki Declaration signed an informed consent for their participation in this study which complies with generally accepted requirements for the arrangement of such researches. Biomechanical parameters of walking on treadmill at pace 90 steps/min. Testing's were performed on treadmill "H/P/Cosmos Mercury 4.0". Each subject had three types of locomotor tests with different gravitational loading on musculoskeletal system: 1) 100% body weight support. Walking under the given weight loading corresponds to that on the Mars surface; 2) 17% body weight support. Weight loading corresponds to that on the Moon surface.

Biomechanical parameters of walking were recorded and analyzed with hardware-software complex VideoAnalysis-Biosoft-3D (Russia). Angles in joints of the leg were recorded in hip

joint, knee joint and ankle joint. To evaluate the locomotion strategy in modeled gravitation conditions, a complex analysis of phase trajectories was made.

RESULT

The subjects were divided into two unequal groups. The first group consisted of eleven people in whom forms of phase trajectories in lower extremity joints were almost identical. This group has the locomotion strategy in which reduction of weight loading leads to phase trajectory area decrease both in knee and hip joints. The phase trajectories in these joints and its variability is reduced proportionally to loadings on the musculoskeletal system. However, variability of kinematic parameters in the ankle joint increases with the decrease in weight loading. We consider that these changes in ankle joint kinematics compensate the amount of movements in hip and knee joints under hanging since it allows to keep the given speed and pace of walking. This strategy is likely to be dominant and typical for the majority of people.

Four volunteers out of fifteen were in the second group. They had results similar to those that are seen in cosmonauts during their trainings when they are hanging in their spacesuits during space-flight. When the musculoskeletal system is considerably unloaded some subjects completely rely on the hanging system. In case of maximum hanging (up to 17% of body weight), phase trajectories shift toward smaller joint angles and, as a result, the posture becomes of a «slightly bending» type.

CONCLUSIONS

1. The results demonstrate different strategies in performing locomotion's.

2. The first one, lies in less angle variations and angular velocities in hip and knee joints under reduced weight loading. At the same time, variability of angular kinematics increases in the ankle joint. Such strategy ensures posture stability while walking.

3. The second locomotion strategy is characterized with slightly bending" type of walking. Such walking is less stable and effective when weight loading on the musculoskeletal system changes.

DETERMINATION OF POSSIBILITY FOR USING DATA FROM MEDICAL INFORMATION SYSTEM FOR THE PROGNOSIS OF RUSSIA NATIONAL TEAM ATHLETES' HEALTH STATUS

Andrey V. Zholinsky¹, Vladimir S. Feshchenko¹, Mkrtich G. Ogannisyan¹,
 Pavel V. Artamokhov¹, Vladimir V. Zavialov¹, Sergey A. Bazanovich²,
 Mikhail Y. Yadgarov², and Svetlana P. Shchelykalina²

 ¹ Federal Research and Clinical Center of Sports Medicine and Rehabilitation of Federal Medical Biological Agency
 B. Dorogomilovskaya st., 5, 121059, Moscow, Russian Federation e-mail: ogannisyanmg@sportfmba.ru

> ² Pirogov Russian National Research Medical University Ostrovityanova st., 1, 117997, Moscow, Russian Federation e-mail: svetlanath@gmail.com

Keywords: Medical information system, Prognosis, Health status, Elite athletes.

Abstract. This paper presents the primary analysis of textual data from the Medical information and analytical system on "Functioning and implementing an electronic register of the health status of athletes of national team of the Russian Federation" (MIAS).

1 INTRODUCTION

Currently there are many disparate medical information systems in Russia that form various databases: the register of diseases; description of drugs, etc. The data on medical examinations of Russia national team athletes are collected in MIAS. To date, no effective mechanism has been developed to extract knowledge from a given source and to analyze data, despite the value of the information presented in it. Understanding the structure of diseases, the main reasons for not allowing athletes to take part in competition can significantly optimize the training process in order to achieve higher results in sports competition and minimize the incidence of disease. The analysis of data from MIAS will make it possible to identify the shortcomings of the existing system of medical examination (ME) data collection and storage with a view to optimizing it.

The aim of this study was to determine the possibility for using medical information system data for the prognosis of health status of Russia national team athletes. The objective – primary analysis of MIAS database.

2 MATERIALS AND METHODS

The textual database contains information about the results of the ME of athletes from 01.01.2014 to 01.09.2018. The database contains over 250,000 records, the results of 15 568 MEs, conducted on 23 545 athletes are presented.

The following software was used for the initial analysis of the database: Microsoft Excel 2010; Microsoft Power BI Desktop.

3 RESULTS

The MIAS database contains information on 23,545 athletes aged from 8 to 80 years old at the time of the first examination. The median age was 19.6 years; the first quartile is 17.2 years, the third quartile is 23.8 years.

The database contains the results of 406,092 laboratory studies, 21,576 stress tests, and 48,031 psychological examinations. The database contains the results of 79,278 general blood tests, 64,508 general urine tests, 109,776 biochemical blood tests; 19,670 cardiac stress tests and 1,906 PWC-170 tests. The average number of laboratory, instrumental studies and psychological examinations per athlete for the entire time of database maintenance is 20.4, the median is 18.

An example of extracting knowledge from database is shown in Fig. 1 and Fig. 2 (the comparison of body mass index of athletes with population values).



Figure 1: Centile protocol: comparison of dependence from age of 25, 50 and 75 centiles of BMI of athletes (males of age: 14-37) with population values.

Figure 2: Centile protocol: comparison of dependence from age of 25, 50 and 75 centiles of BMI of athletes (females of age: 14-36) with population values.

4 CONCLUSION

The database of MIAS requires additional analysis to assess the possibility of using it for the prognosis of health status of national teams' athletes based on ME data. However, the amount of accumulated data gives hope for success.

APPLICATION OF CORRELATION ADAPTOMETRY TECHNIQUE TO BIOMEDICAL AND SPORTS RESEARCH

M.I. Shpitonkov

Federal Research Centre "Computer Science and Control" of RAS Vavilov st. 44, 119333, Moscow, Russia e-mail: mixash@bk.ru

Keywords: correlation adaptometry, correlation graph weight, Markovian process, athletes-rowers.

Abstract. The paper outlines the approaches to mathematical modeling correlation adaptometry techniques widely used in biology and medicine. The effectiveness of treatment of patients with obesity is evaluated using this technique. This technique was used to assess the intensity of training loads in the academic rowing for three age groups. It was shown that athletes of the youth group have worked with the highest efforts.

1 INTRODUCTION

Assessment of external impacts on biological populations is an urgent task for research in sports, biology, ecology and medicine. The General nonspecific reaction of organisms groups to changes in the conditions of existence is a change in the level of correlations of their physiological parameters. This effect provides a useful tool for comparative analysis of studies of biological populations – the correlation adaptometry technique. The purpose of this work is to show the possibility of using this technique for some sports and medical tasks.

2 MATHEMATICAL MODEL

The transition probability density of the Markov process, which can be related to the probability density u(x, t) characterizing a large population in the homeostasis domain, is assumed to obey the Kolmogorov-Fokker-Planck equation (Razzhevaikin, V.N., & Shpitonkov, M.I., 2008)

$$\partial_t u = -(\nabla, \vec{b}u) + a\Delta u \tag{1}$$

Here a > 0 is a dissusion coefficient, b is the drift vector modeling the external impact on the population.

For boundary conditions of impermeability

$$(bu - a\nabla u, \nu)|_{\partial\Omega} = 0, \tag{2}$$

here ν is vector of the external normal to $\partial\Omega$ exists a single stationary solution the problem (1) of the form:

$$u(x) = v(x_n) = v_0 e^{-\frac{bx_n}{a}}$$
 (3)

Usually, the criterion of the adaptation intensity of population to external influences is calculated by introducing an estimate of the connectivity of the analyzed parameters using the correlation graph weight G. This is the next value: $G = \sum_{i < j, i,j=1}^{n} |r_{i,j}|$, where $r_{i,j}$ is correlation coefficient between *i* and *j* parameters.

3 SPORTS EXAMPLE

The correlation adaptometry technique was used to assess the intensity of training loads in rowers of academic rowing of three age groups. The following parameters were studied: the percentage of muscle mass, the percentage of fat mass and several indicators of power. Weights of correlation graphs for these groups of athletes were calculated. Analysis of the data showed that the athletes of the second group worked with the greatest stress. Less stress at the third athletes group, i.e. athletes of the group easily to carry proposed loads.



4 CONCLUSIONS

The correlation adaptometry technique is a promising scientific direction in sports research. It is possible to evaluate the effectiveness of training loads for this group of athletes by correlation adaptometry technique. Also, by studying the temporal dynamics of this indicator, it is possible to control the state of overtraining of the study group.

REFERENCES

Razzhevaikin, V.N., & Shpitonkov, M.I. (2008). Correlation adaptometry. Models and applications to biomedical systems // Mathematical modelling. Vol. 20, No. 8. P. 13–27. (Original Russian paper: Korrelyatsionnaua adaptometriua. Modeli i prilozheniya k biomeditsinskim sistemam. // Matematicheskoe modelirovanie. 2008. Vol. 20, No. 8. P. 13–27.)

ESTIMATION OF PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE LEVEL OF MAN IN LONG SPACE FLIGHT BASED ON REGULAR TRAINING DATA

Anton V. Eremeev¹, Pavel A. Borisovsky¹, Yulia V. Kovalenko¹, Tatiana B. Kukoba², Natalia Yu. Lysova², Dmitri S. Shatov¹ and Elena V. Fomina²

 ¹Sobolev Institute of Mathematics SB RAS, Omsk Department 13, Pevtsov str., Omsk, Russia
 e-mail: eremeev@ofim.oscsbras.ru, borisovski@mail.ru, julia.kovalenko.ya@yandex.ru, d.shatty@gmail.com
 ² Institute of Biomedical Problems, Russian Academy of Sciences 76a, Khoroshevskoye Shosse, Moscow, Russia e-mail: cehbr@list.ru, fomin-fomin@yandex.ru

Keywords: Physical exercise, Physical performance, Long space flight, Locomotor training, Exercise, Regression.

Abstract. In this paper, we consider the problem of estimation of physical performance ability of man in long space flight, given the data collected during regular locomotor training exercises. The physical performance ability of a cosmonaut is measured in terms of "physiological cost" of work, which is calculated as a function of heart rate, running speed and axial load. The goal of the current paper is to enable estimation and forecast of the physical performance ability of a cosmonaut, using the data on the running speed, distance run, treadmill mode (active or passive), load and the heart rate. The analysis is based on data that describes the daily physical training of Russian cosmonauts on board of the International Space Station. Finally, we discuss the parameters identification for the linear regression model that gives a short-term forecast of the physical performance ability.

1 INTRODUCTION

Adaptive rearrangement of the human propulsion system in zero gravity leads to decrease of physical performance and requires adequate countermeasures in long space flights. Currently, prevention of decrease of physical performance level of cosmonauts is mainly attained by the locomotor training on treadmill with an appropriate axial load, supervised by experts on the ground (Fomina et al, 2016). The first on-board automated system of training process control was developed, based on an expert system (Son'kin et al, 2003). Unfortunately, this system demonstrated unsatisfactory results in Mars-500 on-ground modelling experiments (Fomina et al, 2011). We expect that successful development an on-board automated system is highly dependent on problem-tailored data analysis and machine learning methods to process the parameters collected in daily training, and one of the key parameters is the performance level of a cosmonaut.

Currently, the performance level of a cosmonaut and the efficacy of countermeasures are estimated by means of a standard treadmill-based loading (fitness) test designated as MO-3, which is performed approximately once a month. The performance level of a cosmonaut is

measured in terms of the so-called "physiological cost" of work, which is calculated as a function of heart rate, running speed and axial load. Regression modelling of the physiological cost of work on the basis of MO-3 tests and optimization of training parameters has been considered in Fomina et al (2018). The goal of the current paper is to enable estimation and forecast of the performance level of a cosmonaut, using *daily* training data on the running speed, distance run, treadmill mode (active or passive), and the heart rate.

2 INPUT OF THE PAPER

The first stage of our study involves identification of time intervals for reliable parameters estimation and censoring the input data. On the second stage, we consider the parameters identification for the linear regression model aimed at the short-term forecast of the performance level. The analysis based on daily physical training data of Russian cosmonauts on board of the International Space Station indicates that the estimates of the physiological cost obtained from the regular training tend to agree with those computed in the standard MO-3 tests. Finally, some similarities and differences in physical performance evaluation and modelling in sports and in conditions of a space flight are discussed.

3 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The work was supported by the program "Basic research for biomedical technologies", project 0314-2018-0001.

- Fomina, E. V., Sonkin, V. D., Faletenok, M. V., Zakharov, D. V., Babich, D. R., Surkova, N. Yu., Smoleevsky, A. E., & Kozlovskaya, I. B. (2011). Phisical training of different direction as the means of profilactics of negative effects of hypomobility in the course of on-ground modelling of interplanetary mission. In A. I. Grigor'eva, O. A. Kryshtal', Yu. V. Natochin, & R. I. Sepiashvili (Eds.), *Proceedings of the 3rd Symposium of Physiologists of CIS* (p. 193). Moscow: Medicine-Health. (in Russian)
- Fomina, E. V., Lysova, N. Y., Chernova, M. V., Khustnudinova, D. R. & Kozlovskaya, I. B. (2016) Comparative analysis of preventive efficacy of different modes of locomotor training in space flight. *Human Physiology*, 42(5), 539-545.
- Fomina, E. V., Grushevskaya, U. A., Lysova, N. Yu. and Shatov, D. S. (2018). Optimization of training in weightlessness with respect to personal preferences. In S. Belim, A. Kononov, & Yu. Kovalenko (Eds.), *Proceedings of the School-Seminar on Optimization Problems and Their Applications (OPTA-SCL 2018)* CEUR-WS Vol. 2098 (pp. 135–140) Aachen: RWTH Aachen University.
- Sonkin, V. D., Egorov, A. D., Zaitseva, V. V., Sonkin, V. V. (2003) Expert system on managing of physical training of crews in prolonged space flights. *Aviokosm. Ekol. Med.* 37(5), 41-46.

BODY COMPOSITION STUDIES IN ATHLETES: HISTORY, METHODOLOGY AND PROSPECTS RELATED TO COMPUTER SCIENCE

Sergey G. Rudnev

Marchuk Institute of Numerical Mathematics, RAS Gubkin str., 8, 119333 Moscow, Russia Federal Research Institute for Health Organization and Informatics Dobrolyubov str., 11, 127254 Moscow, Russia e-mail: sergey.rudnev@gmail.com

Keywords: Body composition, Sport, Athletes, Computer Science.

Abstract. In this work, the history and current state of body composition research in athletes are described. Contemporary methods, methodology and applications of body composition assessment in sports are presented. Computer science-related prospects are discussed.

1 INTRODUCTION

Body composition and physique are well-established determinants of health, nutrition and performance in athletes. There are a number of classical (Tanner, 1964; Bashkirov et al., 1968; Carter, 1982) and modern books (Stewart, Sutton, 2012; Lukaski, 2017) and numerous research papers on this topic. The aim of this work was to review current methodology and results in this area and to outline a set of issues related to computer science.

2 METHODOLOGY AND RESULTS

The current body composition methodology relies on the 5-level model of body composition which presents human body at the atomic, molecular, cellular, tissue-system, and wholebody organizational levels, respectively (Wang et al., 1992). The most commonly used in athletes are field methods of body composition assessment, such as anthropometry and bioelectrical impedance analysis (BIA). These methods are classified as double-indirect and based on a higher level ('more direct') and, generally, less accessible reference methods, such as airdisplacement plethysmography, deuterium dilution, double-energy X-ray absorptiometry (DXA), 4C model (e.g., as a combination of the above three methods), and computed tomography. Athlete-specific rather than general population equations are utilized for accurate assessment of body composition in this group when using field methods (Moon, 2013). New advanced methods of anthropometry are applied, such as 3D laser-based photonic scanning (Koepke et al., 2017) and A-mode ultrasound (Wagner et al., 2016).

Model characteristics of body composition for various sports using DXA as a reference method were assessed (Santos et al., 2014). However, interestingly, DXA was not accurate in the assessment of seasonal changes in body composition in elite male judo athletes as compared to the above mentioned 4C model (Santos et al., 2010).

Closely related to body composition studies is the assessment of somatotype, with the Heath-Carter scheme of somatotyping the most frequently used. Kandel (2017) found that the somatotype was a stronger predictor of Ironman race performance in male athletes than body composition. Our recent studies in normal children and adults (Anisimova et al., 2016; Sinde-yeva, Rudnev, 2017) revealed the usefulness of BIA for automatic somatotyping thus suggesting applicability of this approach in athletes.

In Russia, there exist a number of cross-sectional sets of anthropometric and bioimpedance data in athletes, and virtually no longitudinal data. The reference methods, such as DXA or 4C model, were not utilized. Until recently, the Matiegka tissue-system level body composition formulae were often used, despite the unknown accuracy. So, there is a need for validation studies in Russian athletes. One of the peculiarities is the availability of mass population BIA data on Russian children and adults and of the centile reference tables on BIA body composition which is necessary for data standardization (Rudnev et al., 2014).

3 SUMMARY AND PROSPECTS

The study of body composition in athletes is a dynamically evolved research area, with the ordinary anthropometry gradually tending to be replaced by 3D laser-based photonic scanning, and skinfold caliper measurements by ultrasound scanning. Reference data is accumulating on individual body composition changes during the athletic season and beyond which can be used to objectively control the training process and readiness. One of the important challenges is the inconsistency of data obtained using different body composition instruments. Preliminary results suggest the connectedness of body composition data after cross-calibration.

Computer science-related issues are generation of large prospective databases and related software utilizing body composition data which is needed to overcome 'the tyranny of low sample size' (Ward, 2018) for health monitoring and the possibility of in-depth data analysis in athletes. Of importance for the research methodology is the development of numerical technologies for high-resolution modeling of body composition measurements (Danilov et al., 2018). Other promising issues of athletic health and performance are structural-functional (Silva et al., 2018) and genetic/genomic associations of body composition.

4 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This work was supported by the RFBR grant no. 18-59-94015.

- Anisimova, A. V., Godina, E. Z., Nikolaev, D. V., & Rudnev, S. G. (2016). Evaluation of the Heath-Carter somatotype revisited: new bioimpedance equations for children and adolescents. In F. Simini, & P. Bertemes-Filho (Eds.) *IFMBE Proceedings, vol. 54*, (pp. 80–83). Singapore-Heidelberg: Springer.
- Bashkirov, P. N., Lutovinova N. Yu., Utkina M. I., & Chtetsov V. P. (1968). *Body structure and sport*. Moscow: Moscow University Press. (In Russ.).
- Carter, J. E. L. (1982). Physical structure of Olympic athletes. Basel: Karger.
- Danilov, A. A., Rudnev, S. G., & Vassilevski, Y. V. (2018). Numerical basics of bioimpedance measurements. In F. Simini, & P. Bertemes-Filho (Eds.) *Bioimpedance in Biomedical Applications and Research*, (pp. 117–135). N.Y.: Springer International Publishing AG.

- Kandel, M. (2017). Body shape vs body composition as predictor on Ironman race performance. *Int. J. Sports Phys. Edu.*, 3(3), 9–15.
- Koepke, N., Zwahlen, M., Wells, J. C., et al. (2017). Comparison of 3D laser-based photonic scans and manual anthropometric measurements of body size and shape in a validation study of 123 young Swiss men. *PeerJ.*, *5*, e2980.
- Lukaski, H. C., Ed. (2017). *Body composition: health and performance in exercise and sport*. Boca Raton: CRC Press.
- Moon, J. R. (2013). Body composition in athletes and sports nutrition: an examination of the bioimpedance analysis technique. *Eur. J. Clin. Nutr.*, 67(Suppl. 1), S54–59.
- Rudnev, S. G., Soboleva, N. P., Sterlikov, S. A., Nikolaev, D. V., et al. (2014). *Bioelectrical impedance analysis of body composition in the Russian population*. Moscow: Federal Research Institute for Health Organization and Informatics. (In Russ.).
- Santos, D. A., Dawson, J. A., Matias, C. N., Rocha, P. M., et al. (2014). Reference values for body composition and anthropometric measurements in athletes. *PLoS One*, *9*(5), e97846.
- Santos, D. A., Silva, A. M., Matias, C. N., Fields, D. A., et al. (2010). Accuracy of DXA in estimating body composition changes in elite athletes using a four compartment model as the reference method. *Nutr. Metab.*, 7, 22.
- Silva, A. M. (2018). Structural and functional body components in athletic health and performance phenotypes. *Eur. J. Clin. Nutr.*, Oct. 4 [Epub ahead of print]. DOI: 10.1038/s41430-018-0321-9
- Sindeyeva, L. V., & Rudnev, S. G. (2017). Age- and sex-related variability of the Heath-Carter somatotype in adults and possibility of its bioimpedance assessment (as exemplified by the Russian population of Eastern Siberia). *Morfologia*, *151*(1), 77–87. (In Russ.).
- Stewart, A. D., & Sutton, L. (2012). *Body composition in sport, exercise and health*. London: Routledge.
- Tanner, J. M. (1964). The physique of the Olympic athlete. London: Allen & Unwin.
- Wagner, D. A., Cain, D. L., & Clark, N. W. (2016). Validity and reliability of A-mode ultrasound for body composition assessment of NCAA division I athletes. *PLoS One*, 11(4), e0153146.
- Wang, Z. M., Pierson, R. N., & Heymsfield S. B. (1992). The five-level model: a new approach to organizing body-composition research. *Am. J. Clin. Nutr.*, 56(1), 19–28.
- Ward, L. C. (2018). Human body composition: yesterday, today, and tomorrow. *Eur. J. Clin. Nutr.*, 72(9), 1201–1207.

THE EFFECTS OF MENSTRUAL CYCLE PHASE ON THE PSYCHOPHYSIOLOGICAL INDICES OF THE ATHLETIC PERFORMANCE: SYSTEMATIC REVIEW

O.M. Bazanova¹ and **L.I. Gubareva**²

¹ State Research Institute of Physiology and Basic Medicine Timakova, 4, Novosibirsk, Russia e-mail: bazanovaom@physiol.ru

² State Educational Institution of Higher Professional Education "Stavropol State Medical University" 310 Mira Street, Stavropol, Russia, e-mail: l-gubareva@mail.ru

Keywords: Athletic performance, Menstrual cycle; EEG, EMG, HRV, Posture stability, affective and cognitive functions.

Abstract. The purpose of this study was to review articles that examine the effects of menstrual cycle phase on five selected indices of athletic performance: neurophysiological capacity, autonomic capacity, muscles strength, postural stability, and psychoemotional functions.

Objective

The aim of this literature review was to examine the effects of menstrual cycle phase on the psychophysiological features of the quality of the athletic performance.

METHODS

The data sources used were Medline, Excerpta Medica Database, SPORTDiscus, Scientific Electronic Library Online, Web of Science, Cochrane Library, and Scopus. We included all psychophysiological investigations focused on menstrual independently screened the records, examined full-text reports for compliance with the eligibility criteria, and extracted data.

RESULTS

The present review found 238 articles. We excluded 167 irrelevant articles and selected 32 titles to read. Twenty-five of these were excluded, leading to a total of 18 that met the eligibility criteria and were included in our analysis. The articles were grouped into 5 type of measurements of psychophysiological features of athlete performance. The psychophysiological features were neurophysiological (5 articles), autonomic (2 articles), biomechanical (5 articles), postural (1 article), muscular (2 articles), and psychoemotional (4 articles). Results and conclusions, methodological quality, and quality of evidence of each study were reported.

DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION

These results suggest that the cyclic increases in endogenous female steroid hormones of an ovulatory menstrual cycle may have a strong influence on EEG, EMG, HRV, postural and psychological features of sport performance in non-skilled women-athletes, with potential implications for individual performance.

MECHANICAL STIMULATIONS OF THE BLOOD FLOW

Gamilov T.^{1,2}, Simakov S.^{2,1},

¹Sechenov University
 19s1, Bol'shaya Pirogovskaya Ulitsa, Moscow, 119146
 ² Moscow Institute of Physics and Technology
 9, Institutsky per., Dolgoprudny, Russia, 141701
 e-mail: gamilov@crec.mipt.ru, simakov.ss@mipt.ru

Keywords: coronary blood flow, muscle pump, enhanced external counterpulsation

Abstract. A one-dimensional model of blood flow is proposed accounting for mechanical action to the blood vessels either due to the muscles contraction and cuff compression. The model is used for simulating blood flow during exercise and the impact of enhanced external counterpulsation (EECP) on the coronary blood flow on the basis of patient-specific data.

EECP involves surrounding patient's legs and lower abdomen with inflatable cuffs that are pressurized and depressurized during diastole (Ozawa et al., 2001). EECP impulses are synchronized with the heart beats using the electrocardiogram (ECG) and blood pressure monitors. It allows to direct the blood from the lower extremities towards the heart therefore improve blood supply of the heart and other tissues. EECP is low-cost, noninvasive treatment for the patients with chronic heart failure to relieve angina and decrease the ischemia degree. It also used in endurance-type sports for the faster athlete's recovery, and improvement of the exercise tolerance due to increase of myocardial perfusion and a decrease in cardiac work load. The positive EECP effects include improvement in cardiac index (Taguchi et al., 2004), endothelial function (Bonetti et al., 2003), oxygen consumption and peripheral training effects similar to exercise, lactate level, etc. (Manchanda et al., 2007). Side-effects include aneurisms formation and atherosclerotic plaques and aneurisms rupture. Thus, individual regimes should be applied.

In this work we use the approach (Simakov et al., 2013) of global dynamical 1D network hemodynamics simulation as a flow of viscous incompressible fluid through the network of elastic tubes.

$$\partial A_k / \partial t + \partial (A_k u_k) / \partial x = 0, \tag{1}$$

$$\partial u_k / \partial t + \partial \left(u_k^2 / 2 + p_k / \rho \right) / \partial x = f_{fr}(A_k, u_k), \qquad (2)$$

where k is an index of the vessel; t is time; x is distance along the vessel counted from the vessel's junction; ρ is blood density (constant); $A_k(t, x)$ is vessels's cross-section area; p_k is blood pressure; $u_k(t, x)$ is linear velocity averaged over the cross-section; f_{tr} is a friction force. Constitutive equation of the elastic vessel wall describes the response to the transmural pressure (the difference between blood pressure and pressure in the surrounding tissues)

$$p_k(A_k) - p_{*k} = \rho c_k^2 f(A_k),$$
(3)

where $f(A_k)$ is an S-like function (Simakov et al., 2013), p_{*k} is pressure in the tissues surrounding the vessel, c_k is small disturbances propagation velocity of the wall material in the relaxed state. The term p_{*k} is used to simulte external cuff or muscles pressure. We use computational domain extracted from physiologically correct data set. Arterial autoregulation and venous valve functioning for lower extremities model are included following (Simakov et al., 2013). Myocardial action in coronary part simulated by applying external pressure p_{*k} and increased resistance of the appropriate vessels. EECP regimes are implemented similar to the Ozawa et al. (2001). The cuffs action model is quite similar to the muscles contraction model presented in Simakov et al. (2013). In the numerical experiments we simulate one hour of EECP procedure. The effects of myocardial pressure, vessels' elasticity and autoregulation on the coronary circulation during EECP are studied. We also use the model to study another effect: blood flow throug legs under muscle pump stimulations.

We study the effect of EECP procedure on the blood flow in left and right coronary arteries (LCA, RCA). Average blood pressure dropped by 4% in LCA and by 5% in RCA. Average blood flow increased by 2% and 5% respectively. We repeat simulations for the case of autoregulation failure, which corresponds to the case of endothelial dysfunction. In this case average blood pressure increases by 18% in both LCA and RCA. It shows that administration of vasodilator drugs can have severe effect on ECCP procedure.

We use model to study effects of skeletal-muscle pumping on the blood flow in lower extremities. Skeletal-muscle pump effect is introduced as an external time-periodical pressure function applied to a group of the veins. Period of this function is associated with the two strides period during running. Computational study reveals explicit optimal stride frequency providing maximum blood flow through the lower extremities. Optimal stride frequency computed by our method strongly correlates with observations for the elite athletes. Deviation between calculated optimal frequencies and actual stride frequencies of elite runners do not exceed 10%. It seems to be a possible measure of sportsman effectiveness as far as ordinary organism simulations provide greater deviations from this value. Such comparison can't be presented in systemic way due to substantial variability for not trained persons.

- Bonetti, P. O., Barsness, G. W., Keelan, P. C., Schnell, T. I., Pumper, G. M., Kuvin, J. T., Schnall, R. P., Holmes, D. R., Higano, S. T., & Lerman, A. (2003) Enhanced external counterpulsation improves endothelial function in patients with symptomatic coronary artery disease. J Am Coll Cardio, 41(10), 1761–1768.
- Manchanda A, Soran O. (2007) Enhanced external counterpulsation and future directions: step beyond medical management for patients with angina and heart failure *J Am Coll Cardiol*, *50*(16), 1523–1531.
- Ozawa, E. T., Bottom, K. E., Xiao, X., & Kamm, R., D. (2001). Numerical Simulation of Enhanced External Counterpulsation. *Ann Biomed Eng*, *29*, 284–297.
- Simakov, S. S., Gamilov T. M., & Soe Y. N. (2013). Computational study of blood flow in lower extremities under intense physical load. *Russ J Numer Anal M*, 28(5), 485–504.
- Taguchi, I., Ogawa, K., Kanaya, T., Matsuda, R., Kuqa, H., & Nakatsuqawa, M. (2004). Effects of Enhanced External Counterpulsation on Hemodynamics and Its Mechanism. *Circ J*, 68(11), 1030–1034.

DIAGNOSTICS OF ENDOTHELIAL DYSFUNCTION IN ATHLETES BY THE PULSE WAVE

Dmitry A. Usanov¹, Anatoly V. Skripal¹, Nailya B. Brilenok¹, Sergey Yu. Dobdin¹, Andrei P. Averianov², Artem S. Bakhmetev², Rahim T. Baatyrov¹

¹Saratov State University named after N.G. Chernyshevsky Astrakhanskaya str., 83, Saratov, Russia e-mail: usanovda@info.sgu.ru, skripalav@info.sgu.ru, brilenoknb@yandex.ru, dobdinsy@info.sgu.ru, rahim_baatyrov@mail.ru

> ²Saratov State Medical University named after V.I. Razumovsky Astrakhanskaya str., 83, Saratov, Russia e-mail: andaveryanov@mail.ru,bakhmetev.artem@yandex.ru

Keywords: Athletes Vascular System, Endothelial Dysfunction, Pulse Wave, Computer Biomechanics, Sports Medicine.

Abstract.*The results of screening diagnostics of the arterial vascular system of athletes by the pulse wave recorded by the oscillometric method are presented. Muscular tone response to brachial artery occlusion was studied to determine endothelial dysfunction. From the 14 athletes with high sports ranks, 11 had a reaction to the occlusion of the artery, leading to an increase in the second derivative of the pulse wave amplitude, and 3 had a reaction to the occlusion of the artery, leading to its reduction. The results of athletes' testing for endothelial dysfunction were confirmed by the technique of duplex scanning of the upper limb arteries.*

1 INTRODUCTION

The important role of vascular endothelium in the development of various pathological changes in athletes is discussed in articles. Diagnostics of the functional state of the endothelium in athletes is based on various methods, which include: determination of the genetic predisposition of athletes to perform various physical activities, measurement of the concentration of immunoglobulins of the main classes, duplex scanning of arteries, measurements of reactive hyperemia index (RHI) and augmentation index (AI) (Green et al. 2012).

The analysis of the pulse wave shape recorded by the oscillometric method is one of the promising methods of endothelial screening diagnosis in athletes. The methods of ultrasound observation of blood flow dynamics, laser Doppler flowmetry, thermal imaging diagnostics of the vascular bed are the main competitive methods of diagnosis of the vascular system.

However, the development of diagnostic methods of the arterial vascular system, requiring technically complex and expensive system of visualization and measurement of the vascular bed, comes into conflict with the principles of development of screening diagnostics. In particular, this diagnostics is particularly relevant in assessing the risk of a collapse response of the body to stress and physical activity (Usanov et al. 2012).

The aim of the work was to substantiate the method of analysis of the arterial vascular system by the pulse wave, recorded by the oscillometric method, and screening diagnostics of the

arterial vascular system on the example of a group of athletes engaged in Canoeing, with high sports categories.

2 PULSE WAVE MEASUREMENT METHOD

A unique method of estimating the parameters of the pulse wave, which determines endothelial dysfunction and related pathology of the vascular system, currently does not exist.For screening diagnostics of arterial vascular systems we proposed the method of the second derivative of pulse wave amplitude, with the help of which the risk of cardiovascular insufficiency development under stress loads could be predicted.

In combination with the occlusion test of peripheral vessels (reactive hyperemia), the methods of assessing the elastic properties of the great vessels are most sensitive to various pathologies of the vascular system.

3 MEASUREMENT RESULT

The group of surveyed included 14 athletes engaged in Canoeing and having high sports categories. Before starting the diagnostic procedure the blood pressure was measured for each test subject on an automatic tonometer. Measurements of the pulse wave parameters were carried out using software and hardware based on the NI ELVIS station before and after the training.

To analyze the shape of the pulse wave, the amplitude parameter P_3 was used, which was calculated modulo the second derivative (Usanov et al. 2012). According to the results of the study of the pulse wave after a two-minute occlusion test for 10 seconds of observation in 11 athletes, the P3 index changed upwards. This means that there was a reaction to the occlusion of the artery, leading to an increase in the second derivative of the pulse wave amplitude (positive reaction of the vascular tone on the occlusion test). While in 3 athletes, the P3 index changed in the direction of decrease, i.e., there was a reaction to the occlusion of the artery, leading to its reduction (the negative reaction of the vascular tone to the occlusive test).

The results of testing students for endothelial dysfunction were confirmed by duplex ultrasound scanning of the arterial bed in order to study the dynamics of blood flow velocity. To do this, the method of Celermajer D. S. et al. with the study of flow-dependent PA vasodilation (endothelium-mediated reaction) was used(Celermajer et al. 1992).

The decrease in the blood flow velocity obtained by ultrasound and the reaction to the artery occlusion, which leads to a decrease in the second derivative of the pulse wave, recorded by the oscillometric method, were obtained. This indicates that we have developed a method of screening diagnosis of endothelial dysfunction of arterial vessels of athletes by pulse wave.

- Green D.J., Rowley N., Spence A., et al. (2013). Why isn't flow-mediated dilation enhanced in athletes? *Medicine & Science in Sports & Exercise*, 45,75–82.
- UsanovD.A. Protopopov A.A., BugaevaI.O., SkripalA.V., AveryanovA.P., VagarinA.Yu., SagaydachnyiA.A., KashchavtsevE. O. (2012).A device for estimating risk of occurrence of cardiovascular insufficiency during exercise stress.*Biomedical Engineering*, 46(2),75–78.
- Celermajer D. S., Sorensen K. E., Gooch V. M. et al. (1992).Non-invasive detection of endothelial dysfunction in children and adults at risk of atherosclerosis.*Lancet*, 340,1111-1115.

INFLUENCE OF UCP2 ALA55VAL AND UCP3 -55C/T POLYMORPHISMS ON HEART RATE VARIABILITY IN YOUNG OARSMEN

Andrey Melnikov¹, Artem Bobylev²

¹ Yaroslavl Higher Military School of Air Defense Moskovsky Prospect 28, Yaroslavl, Russia, e-mail: meln1974@yandex.ru

² Yaroslavl State Pedagogical University Respublikanskay 108/1, Yaroslavl, Russia e-mail: teki086artem@mail.ru

Keywords: UCP2 Ala55Val, UCP3 -55T/S, Polymorphisms, Heart rate variability, Athletes.

Abstract. This paper is aimed at studying the associations of UCP2 and UCP3 gene polymorphisms with the young oarsmen's HRV in the supine and standing positions. In conclusion, the UCP2 Val/Val and the UCP3 T/T of genotypes may be genetic factors, which can explain, at least in part, increased HRV of the highly trained athletes.

1 INTRODUCTION

It is assumed that in addition to physical training effects, genetic predisposition to increased HRV is highly important. Twin studies show that the inheritance of HRV is about 46-54% (Neijts et al., 2017). However, the genetic polymorphisms causing increased variability of the athletes' heart rate remain completely unclear. Thus, the purpose of this study was to evaluate associations of the uncoupling proteins 2 (UCP2) Ala55Val and 3 (UCP3) 55T/S polymorphisms with HRV in the trained oarsmen.

2 SUBJECTS AND METHODS

This study involved a voluntary participation of 23 young athletes (age 17.6 ± 1.6 years old), regularly going in for canoeing. Polymorphisms of the UCP2 Ala55Val and the UCP3 - 55T/C were genotyped by polymerase chain reaction and length analysis of restriction products. HRV indices (SDNN, HF, LF, VLF) of the young oarsmen were determined by impedance cardiography method in the supine (1-5 min) and orthostatic (7-11 min) positions.

3 MAIN RASULTS

3.1 Influence of the UCP2 Ala55Val polymorphism on HRV

In the supine position the following parameters were associated with UCP2 the Ala55Val polymorphism: HR (p = 0,001), SDNN (p = 0,006), RMSSD (p = 0,001), HF (p = 0,009), LF (p = 0,004), HFnu (p = 0.047), LF / HF (p = 0,044) and CI (p = 0.027). Major differences were connected with a lower heart rate and higher indices of HRV in the Val/Val genotype

carriers regarding to the Ala/Val. In the orthostasis position, associations' character did not change, but the number of significant differences and significance level decreased. In the standing position, the UCP2 Ala55Val polymorphism was associated with heart rate (p = 0.019), SDNN (p = 0.030), RMSSD (p = 0.008)

3.2 Influence of the UCP3 -55T/C polymorphism on HRV

In the supine position, the UCP3 polymorphism was associated with HR (p = 0.001), RMSSD (p = 0.006), HF (p = 0.032), LF (p = 0.053), VLF (p = 0.047) and SI (p = 0.085). These associations were due to the differences between the T/T genotype and the C/T genotype. Associations of UCP3 -55T/C to HR, HF and RMSSD indices were due to the differences between the T/T and C/C genotypes also. Comparison of the athletes with the -55C allele in the UCP3 gene (C/T + C/C) with athletes having the T/T genotype showed that HR was lower (p = 0.001), and levels of SDNN (p = 0.007), RMSSD (p = 0.002), HF (p = 0.008), LF (p = 0.014), VLF (p = 0.013) were higher in the testees with the T/T genotype. In the standing position, the -55T/C polymorphism was associated only with LF (p = 0.024), SDNNorto (p = 0.063) showed a similar trend (Table 5). However, the UCP3 -55T/C polymorphism showed associations with the HR response (p < 0.001; T/T vs C/T p < 0.001; T/T vs C/C p = 0.122) responding to active orthostasis.

4 Discussion

The obtained data show that high parasympathetic effects on the athletes' cardiac rhythm, as reflected by a reduced heart rate and elevated HRV indices (SDNN, RMSSD, HF), were associated with low uncoupling activity of the UCP2 proteins, i.e. with the Val/Val genotype and, conversely, with high uncoupling activity of the UCP3 proteins, that is, the T/T genotype. We suppose that the increased parasympathetic activities in the Val/Val genotype carriers may be due to increased energy production at the tissue level as a result of greater coupling of oxidation and phosphorylation. On the contrary, an increase in parasympathetic activity in the UCP3 -55T allele carriers may be due to the antioxidant activity of the UCP3 proteins, which reduces abilities of reactive oxygen species to activate the sympathetic nervous system (Danson et al., 2006). Moreover the allele 55Val in the UCP2 gene and the -55T allele in the UCP3 gene may contribute to an increased cardiac vagal activity, presumably through some mechanisms associated with high insulin sensitivity of the tissues.

5 Conclusion

The athletes with the UCP2 Val/Val genotype, as well as the UCP3 T/T genotype have elevated HRV. Consequently, these genotypes, often found in athletes and associated with high athletic and physical performance, can at least in part constitute a genetic basis that explains the increased HRV in highly trained athletes.

- Neijts, M., Van Lien, R., Kupper, N., Boomsma, D., Willemsen, G., de Geus, E.J. (2014). Heritability of cardiac vagal control in 24-h heart rate variability recordings: influence of ceiling effects at low heart rates. *Psychophysiology*, *51*(10), 1023-1036.
- Danson, E.J., Paterson, D.J. (2006). Reactive oxygen species and autonomic regulation of cardiac excitability. J. Cardiovasc. Electrophysiol., 17(1), S104–S112

Biomechanics

THE BIOMECHANICAL ANALYSIS OF THE TECHNIQUE OF WEIGHTLIFTERS OF HIGH QUALIFICATION WITH APPLICATION OF MATHEMATICAL MODELLING AND HIGH-SPEED VIDEO RECORDING

Leonid A. Khasin

Federal State Budget Educational Institution of Higher Education «Moscow State Academy of Physical Education» Shosseinaya ul., 33, GP Malakhovka, Lyuberetsky district, Moscow region, Russia e-mail: niit@mgafk.ru

Key words: Technique of a Jerk of a Bar, Biomechanical Analysis, Technique of Weightlifters of High Qualification, Mathematical Modeling of Human Motions, Microstructure of Weightlifters' Exercises.

Abstract. The technology of athletes of high qualification is described. High-speed video recording was used as method of registration of weightlifters' movements; mathematical modeling and filtering algorithms were used as methods of the analysis. Differences in the microstructure of the movement in successful and unsuccessful attempts were revealed. The vertical and horizontal forces applied by the athlete to the bar at all moments of performance of exercise were calculated.

1 INTRODUCTION

For many years we conducted investigation of the technique of athletes of high qualification with application of high-speed video recording, mathematical modeling and other methods of the analysis of data. New results which are beyond former representations and often contradict them have been received. It can be explained by evolving of the technique of athletes of high qualification, as well as by improvement of means of registration and the analysis of human motions.

2 SAMPLE AND METHOD

High-speed video recording of 250–500 fps was used as the method of registration. Mathematical modeling, filtering algorithms and other mathematical methods were used as methods of analysis. The exercise we studied was classical snatch. Work stages: mathematical modeling, programming, analysis of the video sequence and visualization of results.

3 MAIN RESULTS

High-speed shooting and modern mathematical methods allowed us to reveal the microstructure of weightlifters' exercises, to estimate space-time, kinematic and dynamic characteristics of the movement of the bar and the athlete and their connection with success of exercise performance. Video recording of more than 200 approaches of weightlifters of high qualification was analyzed.

The new phase structure of snatch is described; besides traditional phases, it includes micro-phases with average duration that doesn't exceed 0.02-0.03 seconds. These are switching phases which duration equals time from the end of extension prior to bending of the joint and vice versa, for example, the end of preliminary acceleration – the beginning of the transition phase and the end of the transition phase – the beginning of the phase of final acceleration.

The phase structure also includes the description of such elemental motions as early rising on toes in the transition phase, extension in the hip joint and tilting of shoulders back in the course of performance of the phase of absorption and at the beginning of the phase of final dispersal that provide powerful pushing away of a bar by hips and creation of strong horizontal and vertical forces, performance of the final part of the transition phase, standing on tiptoe. Now these elements are partially or completely inherent in the technology of the best athletes. However, according to investigations of previous years, such performance of exercises was considered wrong.

We carried out the analysis of the microstructure of the successful and unsuccessful attempts of athletes during the competitions. Characteristic significant distinctions (p<0.01) in the microstructure for successful and unsuccessful attempts were defined (Khasin et al., 2018). Motions, speeds and accelerations of the ends of the bar during snatch performance were calculated. The characteristic curve of vertical acceleration is presented in the article (Khasin, 2017). For calculation of acceleration of the ends of the bar the algorithm of filtration was used (Khasin & Burjan, 2017). Mathematical modeling on the basis of the beam deflection equation with use of algorithms of filtration allowed to calculate the vertical and horizontal forces is about 75% of the volume of forces calculated on acceleration of the end of the bar with assumption that the bar is absolutely rigid body. Horizontal forces at the moment of pushing away of a bar by hips reach 150–200% of bar weight.

4 CONCLUSION

Our investigations showed that the way of improvement of highly skilled athletes technique lies through studying of the microstructure of their movements, search of elements whose change will allow to improve the technique, and formation of more perfect movement skill.

- Khasin, L.A., Rafalovich, A.B. & Androsov, P.I. (2018). The comparative analysis of timespace characteristics of snatch of a bar in successful and unsuccessful attempts of weightlifters of high qualification. *Scientific theory journal "Uchenye zapiski universiteta imeni P.F. Lesgafta"*, 165(11).
- Khasin, L.A. (2017). The biomechanical analysis of technology of performance of snatch by modern weightlifters of high qualification with use of high-speed video filming and mathematical modeling. *Sports science bulletin*, (1), *13-19*.
- Khasin, L.A. & Burjan, S.B. (2017) Calculation of kinematic and dynamic characteristics of the movement of the bar. Certificate on the state registration of the computer program No. 2017613826, Date of the state registration in the Register of the computer programs – April 03, 2017

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN OF RECOGNITION SYSTEM FOR DESCENT POINT TRAJECTORY OF BADMINTON

Ya-wei Song¹, Jiang Li², and Shuwen Liu³

¹ Nanjing Sport Institute No. 8, Linggusi Road, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, China e-mail: syw0008@163.com

 ² Nanjing Sport Institute
 No. 8, Linggusi Road, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, China e-mail: 14358242872qq.com

³ Nanjing Sport Institute
 No. 8, Linggusi Road, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, China
 e-mail: 1846139300@qq.com

Keywords: Descent Point Trajectory, Software, Statistics.

Abstract. In recent years, with the increasing attention to badminton in competitive sports and the upcoming Tokyo Olympic Games in 2020, whether our badminton team can continue to break through and achieve good results has become a major focus of our research activities. Each badminton team has a high requirement for its athletes' movement skills, so it is crucial to provide timely and effective feedback of the flight parameters of badminton to the coach after the players hit the ball during training and competition. In this study, the landing point and trajectory of badminton were captured and analyzed, and a software operating system with technical and tactical guiding significance was designed to improve the training of badminton.

1 OBJECTIVES

In this paper, the landing point and trajectory of badminton are captured and analyzed, and a set of software operating system with technical and tactical guiding significance is designed to improve the training effect of badminton.

2 METHODS

The singles game video of the badminton shot on the spot is imported. The analysis and processing include an algorithm to automatically identify the landing point, over-net pace, flying trajectory of badminton, manually annotated landing point area, striking position area of athletes, techniques and actions of attack and defense for athletes. Statistics of actions, route, pace, landing point and other related technical indicators of attack and defense in the game can be obtained, and the statistical results can be used for the analysis of athlete's technical and tactical levels and characteristics.

3 RESULTS

(1) Flying trajectory of badminton: Based on computer vision technology in the field of artificial intelligence and according to the game scene and image features, sub- modules of algorithm is designed and realized, including badminton detection and identification, trajectory tracking simulation, etc. Finally, the final synthesis is conducted to obtain flying trajectory information of the badminton.

(2) Over-net pace: First, the position of the net is obtained through the court detection and stereo vision algorithm. And then, based on the badminton's flying trajectory acquired by the high-speed camera, the badminton's net trajectory is automatically intercepted and its displacement will be calculated. Finally, the corrected reference objects of the court is used to obtain the actual over-net pace.

(3) Automatic identification of landing point: Through many analyses on the landing point under different flying trajectories of badminton, the characteristics of trajectory direction, pace attenuation and bounce are proposed to design the expert system for landing point identification, realizing the judgment and the accurate identification of landing point for the badminton.

4 CONCLUSIONS

In conclusion, the specific performance of athletes in the game or training can be captured by this system, and parameters related to badminton can be tracked and analyzed, thereby providing a more targeted training reference to the coach. This system compensates to some extent the errors produced by the coach's subjective judgments in the field, and it can also provide effective facilities for scientific preparations during pre-match training and post-match adjustment.

5 ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

This work was supported by Science and Technology Research Project of the Department of Science and Education of the State Sports General Administration "Research on Physical Training Model and Technical Analysis System of Chinese Badminton" (No: 2018HT014)

- Yuan Yue. Deceptive movement analysis of badminton and the application of multimedia technology on identifying deceptive movement[J]. Advanced Materials and Information Technology Processing, 2014(87):673-675.
- Pei Ganghui. Technical analysis of forecourt actions for the badminton. Contemporary Sports Technology 2014; (4): 42, 44.

MEASUREMENT AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF LOB TECHNOLOGY IN BADMINTON MATCHES

Lejun Shen¹, Hui Zhang², Yawei Ren¹ and Kang Li¹

¹Chengdu Sport University Tiyuan Road, Chengdu, China e-mail: sljcool@sina.com

² Zhejiang University Tianmushan Road, Hangzhou, China e-mail: zhang_hui@zju.edu.cn

Keywords: Badminton, Computer vision, Ordinary Differential Equations, Lob

Abstract.

Badminton is a popular racket sport included in Olympic Games. Lob is a special technology because it causes an opponent to move and traverse their defensive space. Lobs can be classified into two categories, namely, defensive and offensive. The offensive lob is a flat trajectory toward the back of the opponent's court, and the defensive lob generates a rising trajectory. These lobs are difficult to quantitatively measure, analyze, and evaluate. Thus, the 3D shuttlecock trajectory is vital in badminton game analysis. In this paper, we propose a new physical model to estimate the 3D trajectory from a single camera video and evaluate the performance of lobs.

Aerodynamic model of the shuttlecock in a badminton match. The proposed motion model of shuttlecock is a set of coupled first-order ordinary differential equations (ODEs)

$$\frac{\partial x}{\partial t} = v_x, \frac{\partial y}{\partial t} = v_y, \frac{\partial z}{\partial t} = v_z, \frac{\partial v_x}{\partial t} = -\alpha v v_x, \frac{\partial v_y}{\partial t} = -\alpha v v_y, \frac{\partial v_z}{\partial t} = -g - \alpha v v_z$$
(1)

where (x,y,z) and (v_x,v_y,v_z) denote the position and velocity of the shuttlecock trajectory, v is the velocity $\sqrt{v_x^2 + v_y^2 + v_z^2}$, t is time, g is the acceleration of gravity (9.8 m/s^2), and α is the coefficient of air drag acceleration (=0.2152). Given a starting point S, initial velocity V_S , and flight time t, these equations simulate a numerical 3D trajectory $f_i(S, V_s, t)$, for i = 1, 2, 3.

Application of ODEs to monocular 3D reconstruction. First, we obtain the starting point $S = (x_S, y_S, z_S)$ and ending point $E = (x_E, y_E, z_E)$ by using the confirming point method (Shen et al., 2017). Second, the flight time t is the duration between the starting and ending point in the video. Then, the initial velocity $V_S = (V_{x,S}, V_{y,S}, V_{z,S})$ at the starting point S can be computed by a multidimensional root-finding method. The method finds the adjustment of the free parameters V_S to minimize the discrepancy between the ending point E and $f(S, V_S, t)$ to zero using the Newton-Raphson method (Press et al., 1992). The initial guess for the root is the solution of ODEs (1) without air drag force, i.e., $\alpha = 0$.

We build a Hawkeye dataset, in which the smash speed is collected from the television videos. The smash speed of this dataset is 102.39 ± 4.75 m/s. We then compare the difference between the Hawkeye dataset and reconstruction methods. The error of (Shen et al., 2015)

	~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~		
Method	Smash Speed (m/s)	Mean-Square Error	
	1 \ /	1	
(Shen et al., 2015)	25.14 ± 4.91	5988.99	
(Shap at al 2017)		1550 27	
(Shen et al., 2017)	-	1559.57	
Our method	96.83±14.11	179.73	

is maximal because it does not consider the air drag force. The error of our method is minimal. This evidence suggests that our method is reliable.

Table 1: Comparison of different methods.

Application of ODEs to badminton technology evaluation Given the starting point S, initial velocity V_S , and flight time t, the 3D trajectory can be represented by a series of line segments computed by the fourth-order Runge-Kutta method.



Figure 1: Difference between defensive and offensive lobs

We collected 8,699 strokes from 10 badminton television videos and obtained the players' hitting positions, the opponents' locations, and the shuttlecock's 3D trajectory. The height of the trajectory (H) is the maximum Z-value of the 3D trajectory, and D is the distance from the hitting point to the net. Fig. 1 shows that defensive lobs and offensive lobs can be divided by a horizontal line (H = 5). The majority of lobs are offensive lobs. This results indicate badminton players are more willing to attack than defend.

- Kolbinger, O., & Lames, M. (2013). Ball trajectories in tennis Lateral and vertical placement of right handed men's singles serves. *International Journal of Performance Analysis in Sport*, 13(3), 750-758.
- Press, W. H., Teukolsky, S. A., & Flannery, B. P. (1992). Numerical recipes in C (2nd ed.): the art of scientific computing.
- Shen, L., Liu, Q., Li, L., & Yue, H. (2015). 3D reconstruction of ball trajectory from a single camera in the ball game International. *Symposium on Computer Science in Sports (IACSS 2015)* (pp. 33-39): Springer.
- Shen, L., Liu, Q., Li, L., & Ren, Y. (2017). Reconstruction of 3D Ball/Shuttle Position by Two Image Points from a Single View. *International Symposium on Computer Science in Sport* (IACSS 2017) (pp. 89-96): Springer.

RESEARCH AND APPLICATION OF LOCATION SERVICE LBS-BASED REAL-TIME TRACKING SERVICE PLATFORM FOR MOTION TRAJECTORY (IACSS 2019)

First A. FENG QI¹, Second B.MINGNONG YI², Third C. WEITAO ZHENG²

¹ Affiliation of first author 461 Luyu Road, Hongshan District, Wuhan City, Wuhan, China e-mail: 137758641@qq.com

² Affiliation of second (and third) author
461 Luyu Road, Hongshan District, Wuhan City, Wuhan, China e-mail: { 620761015, 576316024 }@ qq.com

Keywords: Sports Consumption, National Fitness, LBS, GPS, Tracking Service, Specific Sports Events

1 INTRODUCTION

In recent years, the demand for location-based services (LBS) has been increasing. And with the continuous improvement of GPS positioning technology, communication technology and the overall performance of computer, it is possible to combine LBS with GIS and play an important role in professional and application fields. In addition, advanced sensing technology and Internet technology can effectively obtain the fitness information in the process of fitness, use big data analysis method to mine the data, analyze and evaluate the fitness effect.

2 RESEARCH OBJECTIVES

This paper focuses on large-scale and long-distance outdoor sports events, such as cycling, marathon, sailing, outdoor sports, etc., and we design and development of Location-based Service LBS-based Real-time Tracking Service Platform for Motion Trajectory. And make the platform become a big data analysis platform of track service for mass fitness.

3 RESEARCH METHOD

In this paper, the real-time trajectory tracking service platform based on LBS location service LBS is taken as the research object. Firstly, this paper analyses the overview and characteristics of B/S architecture, discusses the design idea of LBS real-time trajectory tracking service platform based on B/S, and puts forward the implementation strategy. Then this paper uses electronic technology, embedded system, GPS positioning technology, modern 4G mobile wireless transmission technology and software programming to realize data acquisition equipment and LBS location service platform. Finally, this paper applies the platform in various long-distance outdoor sports events.

4 RESEARCH CONTENTS

In this paper, firstly, we use advanced sensing technology, network technology and wireless transmission technology to develop a set of motion position acquisition equipment to accurately obtain the motion trajectory. Then, We use computer simulation technology, software programming technology and database technology, according to the obtained motion trajectory, virtual competition organization service, real-time broadcast service, competition data analysis service, fitness data analysis service are provided. LBS (Location Based Services) Software Service Platform for Services and Sports Social Services. And there are three points in this paper. First, develop a set of motion position acquisition equipment to accurately acquire the motion trajectory, real-time return the position information to the server in the cloud, and provide data support for real-time display of the motion trajectory. Second, develop a LBS real-time track service platform, according to the obtained track, provide all-round sports services, such as virtual competition organization service, real-time live competition service, competition data analysis service, fitness data analysis service, etc. Third, research on Application of Location Acquisition Equipment and LBS Real-time Tracking Service Platform in Sailing and Long-distance Running.

5 RESEARCH CONCLUSION

After two years of scientific research and tackling key problems, we have implemented the LBS motion trajectory service platform. In the process of platform live broadcast trajectory, the data packet loss rate of the platform is very low and there is no carton phenomenon. And the position positioning is more accurate, and position drift rarely occurs. And the time difference of data transmission is low, keeping within one second.

The LBS motion trajectory service platform can reappear the motion trajectory in real time. It meets the needs of real-time live broadcasting of specific sports events. It satisfies the requirement of coaches to monitor the training of multiple athletes. It realizes the value-based monitoring of various sports data in the process of training and competition. And it can not only help coaches formulate and guide training competitions scientifically, but also help athletes improve their competitive ability.

PA Modeling

A FLEXIBLE APPROACH TO FOOTBALL ANALYTICS: ASSESSMENT, MODELING AND IMPLEMENTATION

Philipp Seidenschwarz^{1,2}, Martin Rumo¹, Lukas Probst², and Heiko Schuldt²

¹Centre of Technologies in Sports and Medicine Bern University of Applied Sciences, Switzerland e-mail: firstname.lastname@bfh.ch

² Department of Mathematics and Computer Science University of Basel, Switzerland e-mail: firstname.lastname@unibas.ch

Keywords: Football, Modeling, Event Detection, Spatio-Temporal Data

Abstract. Quantitative analysis in football is difficult due to the complexity and continuous fluidity of the game. Even though there is an increased accessibility of spatio-temporal data, scientific approaches to extract valuable information are seldomly useful in practice. We propose a new approach to building an information system for football and show the potential for a transfer to other team sports. This new approach consists of a method to extract football-specific concepts from interviews, to formalize them in a performance model, and to define and implement the data structures and algorithms in STREAMTEAM, a framework for the detection of complex (team) events. This paper presents this approach in more detail and provides examples for its use.

1 INTRODUCTION

Over the past years, football has seen a steep increase in the availability of spatio-temporal data coming either from commercial providers (mainly based on manual analysis), from dedicated sensor systems, or from camera deployments. This development has given rise to novel types of questions analysts can ask these data (Spearman, 2018). However, it has also been shown that the questions currently posed and answered by sport scientists often have small influence on football practice (Drust & Green, 2013). Coaches still rely heavily on time-consuming qualitative video analysis for the creation of match plans, because their concepts and models are not represented in the information they get from the data. In order to encourage coaches to adopt a more data-driven approach for their analysis, a novel type of system is needed that is flexible enough to recognize many different patterns of play from spatio-temporal data. We propose such a methodology and show how it can be used for fast and flexible development of highly customized information systems in football.

2 APPROACH

Our proposed approach consists of four stages: i.) performance factors assessment, ii.) performance modeling, iii.) data modeling, and iv.) system implementation (see Fig. 1). To assess



Figure 1: Schematic representation of our approach: a) performance factors assessment, b) performance modeling, c) data modeling, and d) system implementation

the coaches' way of analyzing and interpreting the game, semi-structured interviews are conducted. Only coaches (n=6) with an active UEFA Pro Licence are considered for the interview process. After a transcription phase, anecdotal content is deleted and the statements concerning the decision-making process of the coach (n=417) are used for further analysis. In a next step, only statements which directly concern the information needed for the creation of the match plan (n=319) are transformed manually into specific questions the coach would ask before or during a match. For each question, a concept is extracted in a further step. At this point of analysis we identify 22 football-specific concepts. In the performance modeling stage, the gathered concepts are organized in four layers of abstraction: i.) atomic events (e.g., gain possession), ii.) phases (e.g., attacking play), iii.) continuous states (e.g., pressure), and iv.) profiles (e.g., a players' coordination or individuality). In the data modeling stage, events, phases, states, and profiles are modeled as objects with their corresponding attributes. As an example defensive play is modeled in more detail. In a last step, we present how atomic events as well as phases can be detected and how continuous states as well as profiles can be generated in STREAMTEAM, a system for analyzing team sports (Probst et al., 2018) on the basis of raw spatio-temporal tracking data.

3 CONCLUSIONS

With the presented approach we show how football coaches' concepts can be consistently and flexibly implemented in an individualized information system. Furthermore, the transfer to other sports is one of the major advantages of this approach as we currently work in a similar way in ice hockey.

4 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This work has been partly supported by the Hasler Foundation in the context of the project STREAMTEAM, contract no. 16074.

- Drust, B., & Green, M. (2013). Science and football: evaluating the influence of science on performance. *Journal of Sports Sciences*, *31*(13), 1377–1382.
- Probst, L., Rauschenbach, F., Schuldt, H., Seidenschwarz, P., & Rumo, M. (2018). Integrated real-time data stream analysis and sketch-based video retrieval in team sports. In 2018 IEEE International Conference on Big Data (Big Data) (pp. 548–555), IEEE (2018).
- Spearman, W. (2018). Beyond expected goals. In *Proceedings of the 12th MIT sloan sports* analytics conference (pp. 1–17).

FITTING MOTION MODELS TO CONTEXTUAL PLAYER BEHAVIOUR

Bartholomew Spencer¹, Karl Jackson², and Sam Robertson¹

¹Institute for Health & Sport, Victoria University Melbourne, Australia e-mail: {bartholomew.spencer, sam.robertson}@vu.edu.au

> ² Champion Data Melbourne, Australia e-mail: karl.jackson@championdata.com.au

Keywords: Spatiotemporal, Player-tracking, Team sports, Australian football

1 INTRODUCTION

Recent approaches to measuring the spatial control of players in team sports have produced discrete (e.g., Horton, et al., 2015) or probabilistic (e.g., Brefeld, et al., 2018) bounds fit on observed player displacements. The latter more realistically quantifies the probability a player would reach a location, however, when fit on all observed displacements in Australian Rules football, undervalues the likelihood of reorientation. We believe a contextual approach that considers event proximity to be more appropriate. In this study, we produce player motion models fit on player displacements in proximity to events of importance, more realistically modelling their behavior during contests.

2 METHODS

Spatiotemporal player tracking data was collected from 60 matches in the 2017 and 2018 Australian Football League (AFL) seasons. LPS devices recorded player position at a frequency of 10Hz. Play-by-play transactions (e.g., kicks, possessions, contests) were collected and consolidated with player tracking data to infer ball locations.

We fit motion models on player behavior during contests (defined as contested marks and spoils). At the time of the kick preceding the contest, player statistics and their commitment to the upcoming contest are recorded. Kernel density estimation was used to estimate the distribution of datasets containing the relative co-ordinates of contests that were committed to, and those that were not ($f_{c=1}$ and $f_{c=0}$ respectively). The distributions were combined (weighted according to event frequency, w) to produce $p_i(x)$, the probability that player *i* would commit to a contest at location x (Equation 1). Distributions are four-dimensional, considering player velocity (v), ball time-to-point (t), and the x- and y- co-ordinates of contests relative to player orientation (x).

$$p_i(x, v, t) = \frac{wf_{c=1}(x, v, t)}{wf_{c=1}(x, v, t) + (1 - w)f_{c=0}(x, v, t)}$$
(1)

Resultant motion models describe a player's spatial *influence*. A team's influence is considered the sum of player influence. *Dominance* is the proportion of space that a team owns,

relative to their opponent $(Dom_a(x) = Inf_A(x)/(Inf_A(x) + Inf_B(x)))$. We use these measures of spatial control to analyse the spatial characteristics of passing in the AFL.

3 RESULTS

Commitment models were produced on 46220 samples of player commitment (6392 for c=1 and 39828 for c=0). Player influence is visualized for two velocities in Figure 1. For time-to-point of 2 seconds, maximum spatial influence is 0.62. Peak player influence is negatively correlated with player velocity and ball time-to-point ($\rho = -0.80$ and -1 respectively). The reduced commitment at high time and velocity intervals could be suggestive of a preference to commit to future events, rather than immediate events. The shape of a player's influence inverts at higher velocities and the ability to reach negative space is diminished.



Figure 1: Commitment-based motion models for two players moving at a) 2 m/s and b) 6 m/s

Analysis of passing revealed that the dominance of receivers is bimodal with dominance peaks at approximately 0.5 (equal contest) and 1.0 (absolute dominance). Influence of receivers peaks at approximately 0.5 (mean=0.51, SD=0.27). These results suggest kicks are most commonly to individual players who are either unmarked or in a one-on-one contest.

4 CONCLUSION

We present a method for measuring the spatial control of individuals via modelling of their commitment to events. In doing so, we more realistically measure the probability that they would occupy important space. The approach was exemplified in the analysis of spatial control of pass receivers, where it was discovered that passes in the AFL are most commonly to individuals who are either unmarked or in one-on-one contests, indicative of risk aversion behaviours.

REFERENCES

Brefeld, U., Lasek, J., & Mair, S. (2018). Probabilistic movement models and zones of control. *Machine Learning*, 1-21.

Horton, M., Gudmundsson, J., Chawla, S., & Estephan, J. (2015). Automated classification of passing in football. In *Pacific-Asia Conference on Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining* (pp. 319-330). Springer, Cham

SEQUENTIAL ASSOCIATION RULE MINING IN ELITE BEACH VOLLEYBALL

Sebastian Wenninger¹, Daniel Link¹, and Martin Lames¹

¹Technical University of Munich Georg-Brauchle Ring 60/62, Munich, Germany e-mail: {sebastian.wenninger, daniel.link, martin.lames}@tum.de

Keywords: Data Mining, Association Rules, Beach Volleyball, Performance Analysis.

Abstract. In this paper, we present a sports data mining approach using a combination of sequential association rule mining and clustering to extract useful information from a database of more than 1450 high level beach volleyball rallies of a single player, gathered at FIVB events in the years from 2013 to 2016. We regard each rally as a sequence of transactions including the tactical behaviors of the players to allow the application of sequential rule mining. Hierarchical clustering is subsequently applied to the generated rules for easier analysis. Results indicate that sequential rule mining in conjunction with clustering can be a useful tool to reveal interesting patterns in beach volleyball performance data.

1 INTRODUCTION

In order to assist humans in extracting useful information from the growing amount of digital data, the field of data mining and knowledge discovery is concerned with the development of methods and techniques for making sense of large amounts of data (Fayyad, Piatetsky-Shapiro, & Smyth, 1996). As such, Association rule mining attempts to find common patterns of items in large data sets (Agrawal & Srikant, 1994). Association analysis is relatively light on the math concepts and easy to explain to non-technical people. In addition, it is an unsupervised learning tool that looks for hidden patterns so there is less need for data preparation and feature engineering. This is important for the coaches and scouts, who most likely are not proficient in computer science and are expecting results that are easy to interpret and to communicate to the athletes. The aim of this study is to evaluate association rule mining as a tool to search for interesting, previously unknown tactical patterns in beach volleyball. In accordance with the nature of data mining, we take an explorative approach and apply our method to a real-world dataset without any predetermined research questions.

2 METHOD

Our dataset consists of 47 games collected at FIVB world tour tournaments and championships in the years from 2013 to 2016. For each rally in a game, the scouts of the German national teams recorded more than 25 performance indicators, which follow a natural temporal order according to their appearance in a rally. We used the ERMiner algorithm (Fournier-Viger, Gueniche, Zida, & Tseng, 2014) with a minimum support parameter of 5% and a minimum confidence of 50% to generate sequential association rules based on those indicators. These rules were then grouped using hierarchical clustering in order to find thematically con-
nected groups of rules. A custom Hamming distance function in the clustering emphasizes the effect of the sequential patterns (the consequent, or right side, of the association rules). To find the optimal number of clusters for the data, the silhouette metric was applied. The resulting clusters were then manually analyzed to find interesting tactical behaviors.

3 RESULTS

The ERMiner algorithm produced 2430 rules that were afterwards clustered into 10 clusters with an average silhouette value of 0.354. Table 1 reveals the success rate of different attack directions with the technique *Smash*, high power attacks where the ball trajectory after hand contact follows a straight line.

Rule	SUP	CONF
Att_Tec_Smash, Att_Dir_Diagonal => Result_Success	18.4	55.1
Att_Tec_Smash, Att_Dir_Middle => Result_Success	8.6	70.2
Att_Tec_Smash, Att_Dir_Line => Result_Success	11.2	69.2

 Table 1: Small selection of interesting rules regarding the attack direction with the attack technique Smash contained in the clusters for the player. Support and confidence values are given in percent.

Even though the *Diagonal* direction has the highest support, which means is used most often by the player, its success rate of 55.1% is the lowest compared to the *Line* and the *Middle* direction. This drop in success rate can also be observed in a general dataset of over 400 games each for men and women, and is most likely due to the standard defensive formation used by most opponents. However, it is interesting that the player achieves high success rates with a *Smash* to the *Line* and especially the *Middle* direction, since these are directions the block is supposed to cover in the defense most of the time.

4 **DISCUSSION**

Judging the method from a performance analysis perspective, the association rules give a realistic picture of beach volleyball performance. The large number of rules generated by the algorithm makes it necessary to employ post-processing in order to make the rule set approachable for scouts or coaches. We solve this by the addition of hierarchical clustering, since it breaks down the rule set into thematically consistent groups. Future research could streamline the post-processing task to remove the need to manually analyze the clusters.

REFERENCES

- Agrawal, R. & Srikant, R. (1994). Fast algorithms for mining association rules in large databases. In *Proceedings of the 20th International Conference on Very Large Data Bases*, *VLDB '94*, (pp. 487-499)., San Francisco, CA, USA. Morgan Kaufmann Publishers Inc.
- Fayyad, U., Piatetsky-Shapiro, G., & Smyth, P. (1996). From data mining to knowledge discovery in databases. *AI magazine*, *17*(3), 37-54.
- Fournier-Viger P., Gueniche T., Zida S., & Tseng V.S. (2014) ERMiner: Sequential Rule Mining Using Equivalence Classes. In: Blockeel H., van Leeuwen M., Vinciotti V. (eds) Advances in Intelligent Data Analysis XIII. IDA 2014. Lecture Notes in Computer Science, vol 8819. Springer, Cham

WHO WILL SCORE NEXT? ABOUT THE PREDICTIVE POWER OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS IN SOCCER

Steffen Lang¹ & Daniel Link¹

¹Technical University Munich Georg-Brauchle-Ring 60/62, 80992 München, Germany e-mail: steffen.lang@tum.de

Keywords: Predictive Power, Performance Indicator, Data Mining, Dangerousity.

1 INTRODUCTION

Performance indicators play an important role in soccer match analysis. They can be used for estimating physical workload, analyzing tactical behavior and developing strategies for training and competition (Hughes & Barlett, 2002). Recent years have seen a new generation of so-called "smart" performance indicators. In contrast to traditional indicators such as shots on goal, number of passes, tackles won or team ball possession, these indicators model complex tactical aspects of the game based on spatiotemporal tracking data. Well-known examples are expected goals, pass effectiveness, space control or centrality (overview by Memmert & Raabe, 2018). These approaches hold the promise to describe the complexity of soccer in a better way and therefore are more valid for performance than traditional indicators.

The aim of this presentation is two-folded: firstly, we present an enhanced version of the Dangerousity metric proposed by Link et al. (2016). Dangerousity describes a quantitative representation of the probability of a goal for each moment in a soccer match, which is used for quantifying match performance of a team. Secondly, this paper explores the ability of a set of traditional and smart performance indicators, including Dangerousity, to predict goals. In contrast to other research in this area (e.g. Russomanno et al., on this conference), we focus on short-term prediction and ask whether a performance indicator is able to forecast the next goal. The results might help coaches and analysts to assess the validity of performance indicators better.

2 DANGEROUSITY

The main purpose of Dangerousity is to quantify success resp. performance in soccer. When we use the term "success" in the sense of performance analytics, we are not referring to the outcome of the game. Goals are scored only rarely in football and can be caused by individual mistakes due to lack of concentration or a very dominant team might simply be unlucky sometimes. We believe that the creation of situations in which there is a danger of a goal being scored or the prevention of such situations by the opponent, should be the central criterion in characterising tactical success, or "performance" in football.

Therefore Dangerousity describes the probability of a goal being scored for every point in time. The calculation in the original model (Link et al., 2016) uses the spatial constellation of the player and the ball and comprises the four components: (1) Zone describes the danger of a goal being scored from the position of the player on the ball, (2) Control stands for the extent to which the player can implement his tactical intention on the basis of the ball dynamics, (3) Pressure represents the possibility that the defending team prevents the player from completing an action with the ball and (4) Density is the chance of being able to defend the ball after the

action. In order to improve this approach, the model was extended by integrating (5) Off-ball scoring chances (Spearman, 2018), alignment of players towards the goal (6) and set pieces (7). From Dangerousity we derive a Team Dominance (TD) quantity, which represents the difference of the number and quality of dangerous situations created by the team in a timespan.

3 PREDICTIVE POWER

In order to determine predictive power of performance indicators, our procedure creates intervals of 1 min playing time (game interruptions excluded). For each team and each interval i we calculate the value of a performance indicator (PI) in the time window of t intervals before i and the success (S) of the team. S represents a dichotomous variable that indicates whether the team scored first in the time window of t intervals after i or not. Predictive power was evaluated for all existing time windows $t \in \{1,...,n\}$ by calculating the point-biserial correlation coefficient (r) of PI and S. As an example, Fig. 1 shows the predictive power of the performance indicator TD using a sample of 165 matches in German Soccer Bundesliga. It is evident that predictive power increases with window size.



Figure 1: Predictive power of Team Dominance based on Dangerousity

4 OUTLOOK

On the conference, we will be present a predictive power analysis of several traditional and smart performance indicators (e.g. goals, shots, shots on target, ball possession, expected goals, Dangerousity). We will also give insights into the Dangerousity model and discuss possible application scenarios for this metric, including performance analysis, media enhancement or betting.

REFERENCES

Hughes, M. & Bartlett, RM (2002). The use of performance indicators in performance analysis. Journal of Sports Sciences, 20(10), 739-54.

Link, D., Lang, S., & Seidenschwarz, P. (2016). Real Time Quantification of Dangerousity in Football Using Spatiotemporal Tracking Data. PloS one, 11(12), e0168768.

Memmert, D., & Raabe, D. (2018). Data analytics in football: Positional data collection, modelling and analysis. London, New York: Routledge Taylor & Francis Group.

Russomanno, T., Linke, D. Geromiller, M. Lames, M. (on this conference). Performance of Performance Indicators in Football. Submitted to IACSS 2019. Moscow, Russia.

Spearman, W. (2018). Beyond Expected Goals. MIT Sloan Sports Analytics Conference. Boston, USA.

VALIDATION OF OPTIMAL PACING STRATEGIES FOR UPHILL ROAD CYCLING TIME TRIALS

A. Artiga Gonzalez¹, R. Bertschinger¹, S. Wolf¹ and D. Saupe¹

¹ University of Konstanz, Konstanz, Germany e-mail: {alexander.artiga-gonzalez,raphael.bertschinger,dietmar.saupe}@uni-konstanz.de

Keywords: Optimal Pacing, Road Cycling, Pacing Control, Feedback.

Abstract. In simulations and laboratory studies, optimal pacing strategies have already shown their potential. We evaluated methods and tools for application of these strategies in the field in a first study with twelve subjects.

1 INTRODUCTION

In road cycling, the pacing strategy may be decisive for the outcome of a race, especially in solo events like individual time trials. State-of-the-art modeling techniques and optimization algorithms can provide mathematical optimal pacing strategies. These strategies have shown their potential in simulations and laboratory tests. Field studies are more complex, requiring an interdisciplinary team, technology for rider feedback, and additionally algorithms for adaptation to actual weather and road conditons. Our study is the first of its kinds.

2 METHODS

Our optimal pacing strategies are based on a physiological model for the cyclist and a physical model for cycling and provide for a given position on track exhaustion and nominal output in terms of speed and power (Dahmen & Brosda, 2016). Visual feedback for the rider and adaptation to environmental conditions is provided by our mobile android application (Artiga Gonzalez et al., 2018) as shown in figure 1.

We carried out a first study on a short hill climb of 3.8 km with an average slope of 5.1 % (1.3 % to 9.3 %), resulting in a total climb of 198 m. Analogously to the preceding laboratory study by (Wolf et al., 2016), every subject had to do a spiroergometry, a familiarisation ride, a self-paced ride, a ride following the optimal strategy, and a ride with a validation strategy. For the validation strategy, a constant power offset was added to the self-paced strategy such that the finish time matches the finish time of the optimal strategy. For the last two rides, the strategy was selected by crossover design. The subjects were not aware what strategy they got and only instructed to follow the feedback and do their best following the feedback.

Six out of twelve subjects completed all rides. We provided a wheelset with a PowerTap Hub power meter, a Garmin ANT+ heart rate belt, and a smartphone with our mobile app to all subjects for their rides. During the rides with optimal and validation strategies, the adaptive algorithm (Wolf et al., 2018) of the mobile device guided the cyclist on the precomputed exhaustion strategy. The average time improvement given by the optimal pacing strategies was 24 seconds while the average finish time on the self-paced rides has been 10:38 min.



Figure 1: A Galaxy S8 smartphone is choosen as the central component that collects data, adapts the strategy for the current position and exhaustion state and displays the result to the cyclist.

3 RESULTS

Four of the six cyclist have been able to follow the optimal strategy without larger deviations from the exhaustion curve while two could not follow the whole strategy. In case of the validation strategies, only two cyclist, who also followed the optimal strategy successfully, have been able to follow them.

4 CONCLUSION

These results show that it is possible to compute optimal pacing strategies for uphill time trials and guide cyclists successfully on the precomputed exhaustion curve, thereby improving the finish time.

5 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This research was supported by a DFG research grant for the project "Powerbike: Modelbased optimal control for cycling" (SA 449/12-1).

REFERENCES

- Artiga Gonzalez, A., Wolf, S., Bertschinger, R., & Saupe, D. (2018). Visual feedback for pacing strategies in road cycling. Proceedings of the 12th Symposium of the Section of "Sportinformatik und Sporttechnologie der Deutschen Vereinigung für Sportwissenschaft (dvs)" (spinfortec 2018).
- Dahmen, T., & Brosda, F. (2016). Robust Computation of Minimum-Time Pacing Strategies on Realistic Road Cycling Tracks. In K. Witte, N. Bandow, & J. Edelmann-Nusser (ed.), 11. Symposium der dvs-Sektion Sportinformatik, Sportinformatik, 57–68. Magdeburg, September 2016: Shaker Verlag.
- Wolf, S., Bertschinger, R., & Saupe, D. (2016). Road cycling climbs made speedier by personalized pacing strategies. *Proceedings of the 4th International Congress on Sport Sciences Research and Technology Support (icSPORTS 2016)*, 109–114.
- Wolf, S., Biral, F., & Saupe, D. (2018). Adaptive feedback system for optimal pacing strategies in road cycling. *Sports Engineering*, accepted for publication.

Sensors

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS AND LOAD MONITORING IN HIGHLY DYNAMIC SPORTS BY INERTIAL MEASURMENT UNITS

Thomas Jaitner and Marcus Schmidt

¹ TU Dortmund University Dortmund, Germany e-mail: thomas.jaitner@tu-dortmund.de, marcus2.schmidt@tu-dortmund.de

Keywords: Performance Analysis, Inertial Measurement Units, Jumping, Sprinting

Abstract. A wireless inertial sensor network has been applied to determine performance parameters in track and field sprint disciplines and volleyball. The accuracy of the system has been evaluated and exemplarily application scenarios are presented.

1 INTRODUCTION

Inertial Measurement Unit (IMU) are more and more common in elite sports and are widely applied for performance diagnosis and load monitoring. Combined with wireless data transmission, IMUs can also be used to provide fast feedback of performance to athletes and coaches under in-field conditions. Additionally, IMUs merely affect athletes during performance due to their small size and weight. For the application in highly dynamics sports such as volleyball and track and field disciplines, high accuracy and relibility of the measurements are a mandatory prerequisite for the application of such systems whereas an easy usability may also be a critical factors for the acceptance. In this paper, we evaluate how accurate temporal parameters can be determined by an specifically developed IMU system and present examplarily to application szenarios that demonsrate some potenials of IMUs in high dynamic sports.

2 MOBILE MEASUREMENT SYSTEM

A flexible, wearable inertial sensor network was applied that supports easy adaptability to diagnosis scenarios in different sports movements without changing the hardware. The system includes a modular, platform-based framework consisting of a sensor node, based on an ARM Cortex M3 MCU, an embedded software stack, a Bluetooth Low Energy (BLE) communication and an Android application. Technical specifications are described in Jaitner et al. (2015).

3 EVALUATION

Five evaluation studies with a total of 72 subjects and 987 events detected were realized. Exercises covered drop jumps, sprints as well as volleyball and beachvolleyball spikes and blocks. Force plates, 3D cinematography (QualisysTM) and OptoJumpTM served as reference measures. The results for the determination of jump heights and ground contact times are presented in tables 1 and indicate high correlation between performance parameters determined by IMU and reference system as well as only small deviation in absolute values.

	mean (IMU)	ICC	LoA	mean deviation IMU-reference
jump height				
Drop Jump (male)	27,9+/- 5,5 cm	0,940	-2,6 – 1,4 cm	-0,6 cm
Drop Jump (female)	27,3 +/- 4,1 cm	0,979	-2,3 – 2,3 cm	0,0 cm
Volleyball spike (male)	46,8 +/- 10,1 cm	0,951	-4,6 – 6,8 cm	1,1 cm
Beachvolleyball (male)	49,5 +/- 7,9 cm	0,932	-4,9 – 8,5 cm	1,8 cm
ground contact times				
Drop Jump (male)	161,6 +/- 16,3ms	0,955	-7,7-14,5	3,4 ms
Drop Jump (female)	194,2 +/- 29,0ms	0,979	-15,6-17,2	0,8 ms
Sprinting (male)	122,3 +/- 10,1ms	0,928	-11,7-6,9	-2,4 ms

Table 1: Mean values, interclass correlations, Bland-Altmann levels of agreement and mean deviation between IMU and reference system for jumping heights and ground contact times.

4 EXAMPLARILY APPLICATION

After the system had been proven to provide reliable and accurate measurements of stance durations during jumping and sprinting, it was then applied in two field-based diagnosis scenarios. In long sprinting (400m), changes of the temporal structure of performance parameters (contact times and step frequencies) depending on fatigue and level of expertise were analyzed. More experienced athletes exhibited shorter stance durations as well as higher step frequencies and were able to attain smaller decreases of those parameters in case of fatigue.

In the second scenario, contact times of pre (t_s pre) and post hurdle (t_s post) clearing and time for hurdle clearing (t_c) in 110m hurdle sprinting were analyzed at different levels of performance and correlated with overall performance. Significant correlations were found between the personal record time for 60 m hurdles and all performance parameters: t_s pre r=.786; t_s post r=.847 and t_c r=.964. More experienced athletes showed better results in all performance parameters than less experienced athletes. Additionally, the standard deviations of all parameters revealed lower values in favor of the more experienced runners.

5 CONCLUSIONS

We assume that the measures of an IMU system can reach an accuracy level that is acceptable for load monitoring in highly dynamic sports as well as for performance analysis during training. The application in 400m and hurdle sprinting offers detailed insights in performance that can that otherwise might only be achieved with very high measurement affordances. Hence, this demonstrates new potentials for IMU applications in elite sports.

6 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This work was funded by the Federal Institute for Sport Science (BISp) under grants IIA1-071503/13 and ZMW I 1-071503/14-15 as well as by the "Landesschwerpunkt" amsys of the state Rhineland-Palatinate, Germany.

REFERENCES

Jaitner, T., Schmidt, M., Nolte, K., Rheinländer, C., Wille, S., Wehn, N, Vertical jump diagnosis for multiple athletes using a wearable inertial sensor unit. Sports Technology, 8(1-2): p. 51-57 (2015).

PERFOMACE ANALYSIS IN SPRINT USING INTRA-CYCLIC SPEED

Tiago Russomanno¹, Thomas Seidl² and Martin Lames² ¹University of Brasilia Campus Universitário Darcy Ribeiro, Brasília, Brazil e-mail: <u>tiagorussomanno@unb.br</u>

> ² Technical University Munich Georg-Brauchle-Ring 60/62, Munich, Germany e-mail: <u>martin.lames@tum.de</u>

Keywords: performance analysis, athletics, intra-cyclic speed.

Abstract. *Cyclic sports like sprinting and swimming are characterized by a repetitive sequence of coordinated movements. The understanding of cycle parameters and their interactions can be extremely helpful for improving performance in sprints events.*

1 INTRODUCTION

Intra-cyclic speed (ICS) is one of standard tool for performance analysis in swimming (Barbosa et al., 2008; Fernandes et al., 2012). The understanding of cycle parameters and their interactions can be extremely helpful for improving performance in cyclic sports, like sprinting, swimming and kayaking that are characterized by a repetitive sequence of coordinated movements. These cycles are the result of a combination of determining factors, e.g. top speed, cycle length and cycle frequency.

However, the ICS was not been used as a tool for performance analysis in sprints. In this work we discuss the potential use of ICS parameters for performance analysis in sprinting.

2 METHODS

2.1 Data Acquisition

We recorded 32 100m sprints using a radio-based player tracking system (RedFIR). Sprints were performed by 16 young elite athletes from regional clubs (age: 18.9 ± 2.8 years). Each athlete performed two sprints in a competition-like setting after a 20min warm-up that was chosen individually.

A radio transmitter ($61 \text{ mm} \times 38 \text{ mm} \times 7 \text{ mm}$, 15 g, 200 Hz) was attached on the upper back of each sprinter by putting it in a pocket of a compression shirt. Sprinting time was recorded by experienced coaches using a digital chronometer. The work has been approved by the ethical committees of Technical University Munich and subjects gave informed consent.

2.2 Analysis

The radio based System (RedFir) provides information about position, velocity and acceleration with proven accuracy (Seidl et al., 2015; Seidl et al., 2016; Seidl et al., 2017). Using the top speed interval, where we assume that the speed pattern was stable, we were able to automatically estimate ICS parameters of the runners, based on a model proposed by Fuchs and Lames (1990).

We analyze the relationships between general sprint parameters, ICS parameters and running time by descriptive statistics, mean comparisons and correlations.

3 RESULTS

As expected we found different results for male and female sprints. For female sprinters we found the ICS parameter step length to be highly correlated with maximum acceleration (r=0.68), maximum speed (r=0.68) and amplitude(r=0.58).

For male sprinters, in contrast, only a strong correlation between ICS step length and step time could be observed (r=0.65, p<0.05).

Our results show the potential use of ICS parameters for sprint. The analysis of ICS could be a suitable tool for sprint diagnosis and to enable improvements in performance.

4 **DISCUSSION**

The observed differences between male and female sprinters are in accordance with other studies and are possibly due to differences in body composition (Cheuvront et al., 2005; Seiler et al., 2007). Correlation analysis didn't provide new insights about the relationships between running variables, besides well-known relationships, e.g. higher maximal speed and acceleration are highly correlated with better sprint performance (Fuchs & Lames, 1991; Slawinski et al., 2015).

The high amplitude values found in ICS parameters might be related to higher braking and propulsive forces applied to the ground during contact phase and, thus, may lead to higher top speeds as discussed by Weyand et al. (2000). The significant differences in relative amplitude suggest that this effect is not only proportional to higher speed but also to other factors, e.g. body weight (not recorded).

The use of ICS for performance analysis in sprints could help to understand and clarify the interactions between step length and step frequency in more detail, as those parameters are provided automatically by the model (Seidl et.al. not published). We, therefore, suggest to further investigate this with a larger sample of high performance athletes.

REFERENCES

- Lames, M., Fuchs, P., 1990. Mathematical Modeling of Sprinting Performance. In: Brüggemann, P., Rühl, J.K. (Eds.). Techniques in Athletics: Conference Proceedings. Strauß, Köln, pp. 369–378.
- Seidl, T., Völker, M., Witt, N., Poimann, D., Czyz, T., Franke, N., Lochmann, M., 2015. Evaluating the Indoor Football Tracking Accuracy of a Radio-Based Real-Time Locating System. In: Chung, P., Soltoggio, A., Dawson, C., Meng, Q., Pain, M. (Eds.). Evaluating the Indoor Football Tracking Accuracy of a Radio-Based Real-Time Locating System. Springer International Publishing, pp. 217–224.
- Weyand, P.G., Sternlight, D.B., Bellizzi, M.J., Wright, S., 2000. Faster top running speeds are achieved with greater ground forces not more rapid leg movements. Journal of applied physiology (Bethesda, Md. : 1985) 89, 1991–1999.

UNOBTRUSIVE ESTIMATION OF IN-STROKE BOAT ROTATION IN ROWING USING WEARABLE SENSORS

Benjamin H. Groh¹, Julia Schottenhamml¹, Bjoern M. Eskofier¹, and Ami Drory²

¹Machine Learning and Data Analytics Lab, Department of Computer Science, Friedrich-Alexander-Universität Erlangen-Nürnberg (FAU), Erlangen, Germany e-mail: {benjamin.groh, julia.schottenhamml, bjoern.eskofier}@fau.de

> ² Bioengineering Research Group, Faculty of Engineering University of Nottingham, Nottingham, UK e-mail: ami.drory@nottingham.ac.uk

Keywords: inertial sensing, rowing, template-based segmentation 3D-rotation estimation

Abstract. We present an unobtrusive method for automatic analysis of rowing boat motion. Data from professional races and amateur training sessions from different boat classes were obtained with one inertial sensor attached to the boats. Template-based matching was used for rowing stroke detection and segmentation. The in-stroke boat rotation was computed for all segmented strokes. The stroke segmentation showed a precision of 99.8 % for professional and 97.2 % for amateur data. Results of the rotation estimation are comparable with known values from the literature.

1 INTRODUCTION

The rotational motion of the boat in rowing has a significant impact on the boat velocity and resultant performance and is often used as an indirect performance measure of rowing technique (Sinclair et al., 2009). However, only few publications focus on this topic by analyzing single strokes (Loschner et al., 2000; Sinclair et al., 2009; Serveto et al., 2010). Most of past investigations focused on one boat class and required manual stroke analysis. In this work, we propose a class-invariant automatic processing pipeline that provides continuous output of detected strokes. Using the segmented strokes, we compute the corresponding in-stroke rotation.

2 METHODS

2.1 Data acquisition

Data were obtained during professional races (accelerometer only) and amateur training runs (accelerometer and gyroscope). The professional data set contains measurements of ten different boats in the classes single scull and coxed eight during various competition states (heat, repechage, quarter final, etc.). The amateur data set contains data from four training runs of different boat classes: single scull, double scull, quadruple scull and coxed eight.

2.2 Rowing stroke segmentation

For rowing stroke detection, we employed the subsequent Dynamic Time Warping (subDTW) algorithm (Müller, 2007), a template-based matching technique, following previously published work (Groh et al., 2014). To evaluate the accuracy of the algorithm, one template was chosen randomly from each of the ten professional races and applied for segmentation to all (remaining) professional races and all amateur training runs.

2.3 3D-rotation estimation

Based on the segmentation, all extracted strokes of the amateur data set were used for the in-stroke rotation estimation. Gyroscope data were processed by a quaternion-based algorithm and the overall rotation was presented by Euler angles (yaw, pitch, roll), and compared to values reported in the literature (Loschner et al., 2000; Sinclair et al., 2009; Serveto et al., 2010).

3 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

The stroke segmentation results showed an averaged precision/recall of 0.998/0.997 for the professional race data and 0.972/0.904 for the amateur training data. Our results indicate that the template-based method is boat-class and athlete invariant and can be applied in training and competitions, without the requirement of repeated template adaptation.

The rotation computation averaged over all four training runs resulted in rotation angles of $0.92^{\circ} \pm 0.92^{\circ}$ (yaw), $0.48^{\circ} \pm 0.11^{\circ}$ (pitch) and $2.43^{\circ} \pm 0.99^{\circ}$ (roll). These values exceed the literature values for the yaw and roll angle range by 0.42° and 0.73° . This deviation could be explained by the skill level difference between the athletes of this work (mostly amateur) and in the literature (advanced to elite) as well as the incorporation of multiple boat classes.

4 CONCLUSIONS

We proposed an algorithm for automatically segmenting continuous rowing data into single strokes, with an overall precision and recall between 90.4% and 99.8%, and a continuous estimation of the in-stroke angular boat rotation, with results that are comparable to values from the literature. Due to the unobtrusive character of the IMU-based concept, the algorithm could be applied to training support or even the analysis of competitions.

REFERENCES

- B. H. Groh, S. J. Reinfelder, M. N. Streicher, A. Taraben, and B. M. Eskofier. Movement prediction in rowing using a dynamic time warping based stroke detection. In *Int. Conf. on Intelligent Sensors, Sensor Networks and Information Processing (ISSNIP)*, 2014.
- C. Loschner, R. Smith, and M. Galloway. Intra-stroke boat orientation during single sculling. In *Int. Symp. Biomech. in Sports*, 2000.
- M. Müller. Dynamic time warping. In *Information retrieval for music and motion*, chapter 4, pages 69–84. Springer, 2007.
- S. Serveto, S. Barré, J.-M. Kobus, and J.-P. Mariot. A three-dimensional model of the boatoars-rower system using ADAMS and LifeMOD commercial software. *J. Sports Eng. and Techn.*, 224(1):75–88, 2010.
- P. J. Sinclair, A. J. Greene, and R. Smith. The effects of horizontal and vertical forces on single scull boat orientation while rowing. In *Int. Conf. Biomech. in Sports*, 2009.

INSOLE SENSOR DESIGN FOR SKI BOOT USING PIEZORESISTIVE MATERIAL

Alpaslan Yılmaz¹

¹ Erciyes University, Department of Coaching Education Yenidoğan Mahallesi Turhan Baytop Sokak No: 1, Kayseri/Turkey e-mail: yilmaz@erciyes.edu.tr

Keywords: Insole sensor, velostat, alpine skiing.

Abstract. The pressure applied to the ground and its distribution has big importance to explain the sport activities. Alpine skiing is one of the sports that has the change of direction and as a result change of center of pressure. The purpose of the current manuscript is to explain the development of a new sensor, which can be used in skiing, which is low cost, durable and makes accurate measurements. The foot base area was divided into eight zones each of which is 5mm wide active and ground copper tapes are neatly fixed, leaving 0.5mm space between them. Copper bands are covered with Velostat, 0.1mm thick piezo-resistive material. It has been tested and concluded that the new sensor is applicable for field-testing.

1 INTRODUCTION

During many sports activities, it is important to measure the distribution of the pressure applied to the soles of the feet by foot regions. As long as there are similar sensors for various purposes and sport branches, the current insole was designed specifically for alpine skiing. It is possible to supply many examples of difficulties related with alpine skiing in measuring the foot pressure. For example, the presence of sudden and severe mechanical forces applied to the ground or the ski itself and very low ambient temperature make it difficult to create skispecific sensors. For alpine skiers, applying the correct amount of force to the right foot area during the slalom is an important factor that affects their performance. Measurement of the pressure distribution applied to the soles of the foot in any phase of the slalom is a valuable feedback for athletes and coaches. In this paper, it is aimed to explain the construction of a new sensor, which can be used in skiing, which is low cost, durable and accurate measurement. Besides, the preliminary findings will also be shared with the participants during the conference presentation.

2 DEVELOPMENT OF SENSOR

The foot base area was divided into eight zones. For each area, 5mm wide active and ground copper tapes are neatly fixed, leaving 0.5mm space between them. Copper bands are covered with Velostat, 0.1mm thick piezo-resistive material. The sensor is designed to be single-layered to prevent short-circuits due to possible damage to the piezo-resistive material during installation or use (Figure 1). Since the area of each active region has different size, the calibration of the change in the output voltage versus the applied force is performed separately for each zone. A voltage divider circuit was designed for measuring the output voltage due

to the change in sensor resistance and a voltage follower circuit was used before entering the analog-to-digital converter to reduce the output impedance. The insole was coated with PVC laminated to prevent wetting during use. Output of each active region of the sensor was digitized with a 12bit analog digital converter, and then correlated with the output voltage by applying incremental loads to each zone (Salibindla, et el., 2013). A non-linear correlation between the force applied to the Velostat and the change in sensor output voltage has also been reported in previous studies. For calibration, the load is applied to each area from 1kg to 15kg each time by increasing the load by 1kg and output voltages are recorded.

3 DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION

The results we obtained using the sensor we have produced reveal that the sensor is suitable for use in the field. As a matter of fact, the measurements we have done both in the laboratory and during the skiing have been evaluated as reliable and repeatable. Velostat is a very suitable material for insole sensor construction in terms of ease of application, cheap price and cutting in desired shape. When evaluated in terms of electrical behavior, the non-linearity of the force-resistance relationship is a handicap for the measurement of high forces.



Figure 1: Sensor design.

REFERENCES

Salibindla, S., Ripoche, B., Lai, D. T., & Maas, S. (2013, April). Characterization of a new flexible pressure sensor for body sensor networks. In *Intelligent Sensors, Sensor Networks* and Information Processing, 2013 IEEE Eighth International Conference on (pp. 27-31). IEEE.

COMPARING TWO DATA METHODS WHEN ASSESSING SLEEP PATTERNS WITH THE ELDERLY USING THE FITBIT FLEX 2

Alanna Weisberg¹, Tanzeel Bhaidani², Alex Campelo², and Larry Katz²

¹University of Calgary 2500 University Drive NW, Calgary, Canada e-mail: alanna.weisberg1@ucalgary.ca

² University of Calgary
 2500 University Drive NW, Calgary, Canada
 e-mail: {alexandre.campelo, tanzeel.bhaidani, katz}@ucalgary.ca

Keywords: Sleep, Actigraphy, Elderly, Activity Trackers, Datasets

Abstract.

1 INTRODUCTION

Poor sleep quality is widespread in older adults and is often related to poor quality of life, cognitive and physical decline, depression, and increased mortality (Rawtaer, Mahendran, Chan, Lei, & Kua, 2018) Pharmaceutical choices to combat poor sleep quality are often used but ideally alternative treatment strategies are required (Rawtaer et al., 2017). Exercise is often proposed as a positive alternative treatment strategy, which can be an effective intervention treatment for disordered sleeping in conditions like cardiovascular disease (CVD), Type 2 diabetes, depression, cancer, and arthritis (Arena et al., 2017)

To date, the gold-standard method for sleep recording is an expensive and time-consumer polysomnography (PSG) requiring a laboratory setting (Meltzer, Hiruma, Avis, Montgomery-Downs, & Valentin, 2015). In free living environments, wearables have been shown to reliably measure sleep metrics, with Actigraph considered the gold-standard (de Souza et al., 2003).

Consumer activity trackers for monitoring sleep in research has grown in popularity (de Zambotti, Claudatos, Inkelis, Colrain, & Baker, 2015) As a less expensive alternative to the Actigraph, they have been shown to be moderately reliable when compared to the Actigraph and PSG in a variety of populations (Evenson, Goto, & Furberg, 2015).

To date no published guidelines exist for analyzing sleep data from a consumer wearable perspective. Therefore, this presentation outlines the issues in choosing data collection methods for analyzing sleep data from consumer wrist worn actigraphy with seniors.

2 METHODS

2.1 Research design and procedure:

Participants were part of a larger study that examined the effects of a 6-week structured exergame (Wii Fit U) and conventional exercise program in older adults. The study utilized the Fitbit Flex 2 (FF2) as an objective observation tool to compare physical activity and sleep changes. A total of 40 participants (72.6 +/- 6.50 years, 27 females) from Calgary participated in this study.

2.2 Fitbit set-up and distribution

FF2 was chosen primarily because it does not have a screen, therefore, users cannot see their performance metrics. The FF2 is a lightweight, waterproof, activity tracker. Its battery lasts up to 5 days, and its memory capacity is minute-by-minute data for up to 7-days and daily totals for 30 days. Data from the device is transmitted via Bluetooth to the Fitbit App and stored on the cloud. Participants were instructed to wear the device on their chosen wrist at all times except when charging the device (twice a week).

2.3 Data collection

Data was downloaded from the participants at least once a week. A researcher logged into the appropriate Fitbit account to transfer the data via Bluetooth from the device memory to the cloud-based servers. Data was pulled together by a private company (Vivametrica) that we paid to consolidates and clean data from the FF2s as well as individual profiles being downloaded from the Fitbit Dashboard.

3 RESULTS

The sleep metrics reported by both Fitbit and Vivametrica are similar and were derived using proprietary algorithms. They both report minutes asleep, minutes awake, and time in bed. The primary difference between the two datasets is Fitbit provides minute-by-minute epochs whereas Vivametriva provides daily cumulative totals. Fitbit also provides information number of awakenings based on the minute-by-minute epochs. Vivametrica created two metrics called restless count and restless duration. Based on these two datasets, we look at individual profiles and find identify patterns within the data and consider issues related to age, gender, and activity levels.

4 DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION

We compare the benefits and limitations of using Fitbit and Vivametrica's datasets. We provide suggestions for researchers on useful approaches to analyzing sleep data on seniors.

5 REFRENCES

- Arena, R., Sagner, M., Byrne, N. M., Williams, A. D., McNeil, A., Street, S. J., & Hills, A. P. (2017). Novel approaches for the promotion of physical activity and exercise for prevention and management of type 2 diabetes. *European Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, 71(7), 858–864.
- de Souza, L., Benedito-Silva, A. A., Pires, M. L. N., Poyares, D., Tufik, S., & Calil, H. M. (2003). Further validation of actigraphy for sleep studies. *Sleep*, *26*(1), 81–85.
- de Zambotti, M., Claudatos, S., Inkelis, S., Colrain, I. M., & Baker, F. C. (2015). Evaluation of a consumer fitness-tracking device to assess sleep in adults. *Chronobiology Interna-tional*, *32*(7), 1024–1028.
- Evenson, K. R., Goto, M. M., & Furberg, R. D. (2015). Systematic review of the validity and reliability of consumer-wearable activity trackers. *International Journal of Behavioral Nutrition and Physical Activity*, *12*(1).
- Meltzer, L. J., Hiruma, L. S., Avis, K., Montgomery-Downs, H., & Valentin, J. (2015). Comparison of a Commercial Accelerometer with Polysomnography and Actigraphy in Children and Adolescents. *Sleep*, *38*(8), 1323–1330.
- Rawtaer, I., Mahendran, R., Chan, H. Y., Lei, F., & Kua, E. H. (2018). A nonpharmacological approach to improve sleep quality in older adults. *Asia-Pacific Psychiatry*, 10(2), e12301.

Pedagogy

VISUAL PERCEPTION OF ROBOT MOVEMENTS – HOW MUCH INFORMATION IS REQUIRED?

Gerrit Kollegger¹, Marco Ewerton², Josef Wiemeyer¹ and Jan Peter²

¹ Technische Universität Darmstadt, Institute of Sport Science Magdalenenstr. 27, D-64289 Darmstadt, Germany e-mail: kollegger@sport.tu-darmstadt.de, wiemeyer@sport.tu-darmstadt.de

² Technische Universität Darmstadt, Intelligent Autonomous Systems Hochschulstr. 10, D-64289 Darmstadt, Germany e-mail: ewerton@ias.tu-darmstadt.de, mail@jan-peters.net

Keywords: Human-robot-interaction, Dyad-learning, Motor learning

1 INTRODUCTION

In recent years, the number of human-robot interactions has increased in numerous areas, e.g. in rehabilitation, in industry or in learning sports movements. Particularly, the human perception of robot movements is of great importance in a dyadic movement learning process. As shown in previous studies (Kollegger et al., 2019) using the robotic putt movement as an example, presentation of the complete putt motion is essential to evaluate the putt length. The following study examines the dependence of the estimation of the putt length on the visibility of various elements of the robot putt, e.g. ball, parts of the robot or club.

2 MATERIAL AND METHODS

Thirty healthy students (26 males and 4 females), aged 18 - 26 years (M=22.3±2.3 years), volunteered to participate in the study. Participants were divided into three groups with different treatments, see below. All of them provided written informed consent.

As a technical platform for the studies, a BioRob robot arm was used on an artificial putting green. The robot putting movement over three putt distances (2, 3 and 4m) was recorded from a frontal viewing perspective (Kollegger et al., 2018). In the processed video material, various areas were removed. Each of the three distances was displayed in six different conditions: full video (FV), hidden robotic arm (HR) & hidden robot arm and club shaft (HRC), each in a version with and a version without ball visible (FVnB, HRnB & HRCnB). Each group was assigned four visual conditions: group 1 = FV, FVnB, HRC & HRCnB; group 2 = HR, HRnB, HRC & HRCnB; group 3 = FV, FVnB, HR & HRnB.

Each of the 12 video sequences per group were shown four times in randomized order (total of 48 clips). Upon completion of each sequence, a visual analog scale (from 0 to 6m) was presented to the participants to document their length estimation by clicking on the respective value on the scale. Following this estimation, participants rated the confidence of their decision on a five-point scale. Data was stored by the computer program.

A two-way ANOVA with repeated measures was calculated with SPSS (V25) for each group with the two factors putt distance (3 distances) and viewing condition (4 conditions). Wilcoxon test were applied for follow-up analysis. Level of significance was set a priori to 0.05.

3 RESULTS

Figures 1 and 2 illustrate the means and standard deviations of the estimated putt distance for the three real putt distances with visible (Figure 1) and invisible ball (Figure 2). Short distances are overestimated, whereas long distances are underestimated. The estimated distance with the ball visible increases with increasing real distance. The estimated distance in the three conditions with ball invisible increases initially, but remains rather constant between 3 and 4m.





Figure 1: Real vs. estimated distance in the conditions with ball visible (FV, HR & HRC).

Figure 2: Real vs. estimated distance in the conditions with ball invisible (FVnB, HRnB & HRCnB).

The two-way ANOVA with repeated measures revealed significant main effects of distance (all groups), viewing condition (group 1 & 2) and interaction (group 2), see Table 1.

Group 1 (FV, FVnB, HRC & HRCnB)				Group 2 (HR, HRnB, HRC & HRCnB)				Group 3 (FV, FVnB, HR & HRnB)							
Factor	df1	df2	F	р	$\eta^{2}{}_{p}$	df1	df2	F	р	$\eta^2{}_p$	dfl	df2	F	р	$\eta^{2}{}_{p}$
VC	3	27	9,66	<.001	.518	3	27	28.538	<.001	.760	1.699	15.295	.918	.405	.093
D	2	18	24.431	<.001	.731	2	18	43.721	<.001	.829	2	18	15.750	<.001	.636
VC x D	6	54	.235	.963	.025	6	54	4.434	<.001	.330	6	54	1.437	.218	.138

Table 1: Results of the 3 distances (2, 3 & 4m) x 4 viewing conditions ANOVA with repeated measures for each of the three groups (VC = viewing condition, D = distance, VC x D = interaction).

4 DISCUSSION & CONCLUSION

The results confirm previous studies: The putt distance of a robot putt can be visually estimated by humans. In addition, the visibility of the ball has a significant influence on distance estimation. The combination of robot, club and ball adds extra cues to the putt distance, e.g. the variation of the radial distance between the ball and the clubhead at different distances. These preliminary findings must be confirmed in further studies using an improved experimental design, e.g. an experimental group that is presented all 18 video sequences.

REFERENCES

- Kollegger, G., Ewerton, M., Wiemeyer, J., & Peters, J. (2018). BIMROB-bidirectional interaction between human and robot for the learning of movements. In M. Lames, D. Saupe & J. Wiemeyer (Eds.), *Proceedings of the 11th International Symposium on Computer Science in Sport (IACSS 2017)* (pp. 151–163). Cham: Springer International Publishing.
- Kollegger, G., Wiemeyer, J., Ewerton, M., & Peters, J. (2019). *Visual perception of robot movements*. Unpublished manuscript.

LEARNING TABLE TENNIS USING STRUCTURED VIDEO ON IPADS INCORPORATING PEER TO PEER EVALUATION

Di Feng¹, Emad Abdelrasoul,² and Larry Katz³

¹ Department of Physical Education, Harbin Engineering University 145 Nan Tong Street, Harbin, China e-mail: fengdi1981@hrbeu.edu.cn

> ² Faculty of Physical Education, Benha University 13511 Fareed Nada Street, Benha, Qalubiya, Egypt e-mail: emadeldein.abdelrasool@fped.bu.edu.eg

³ Faculty of Kinesiology, University of Calgary 2500 University Dr. NW, Calgary, Canada e-mail: katz@ucalgary.ca

Keywords: Table Tennis, Peer Learning, iPad, Sport, Technology.

Abstract. Eighteen elementary school students in grade 6 were instructed in learning table tennis using a structured iPad application that was developed based on peer to peer learning theory. Participants engaged in table tennis instruction over five sessions plus one session for pretesting and one session for post-testing of skills and attitudes. Six students were subsequently randomly chosen to participate in a focus group. The techniques were measured using a structured analysis approach which was subsequently tested for reliability. The purpose of this article is to discuss how specially designed, structured peer learning using ipads can be engaged to enhance students' ability to evaluate each other, promote skill acquisition, improve attitudes towards participation, and illustrate how PE teachers can successfully and accurately model the integration of technology in the gymnasium.

1 INTRODUCTION

Peer learning is becoming an increasingly important part of many courses, and it is being used in a variety of contexts and disciplines in many countries. Today, information technology (e.g. computer programs/databases, Internet facilities) has provided "students with excellent opportunities to learn without requiring a teacher to transmit the available information" (Bohuijs, 1998), thereby necessitating a shift in paradigm from the highly teacher-centered to learnercentered education (e.g. peer learning) in which students are expected to take greater initiative and responsibility to manage more of their own learning and educational/personal development.

Essentially, peer to peer learning refers to students studying with and from each other as fellow learners without any implied authority to any individual, based on the tenet that "Students learn a great deal by explaining their ideas to others and by participating in activities in which they can learn from their peers" (Boud et al., 2014).

A structured video application has been developed that provides an opportunity to learn through giving and receiving feedback from peers through the use of an iPad. By increasing engagement and collaboration, students can deepen their ability to learn. Using video performance technology, combined with an embedded curriculum, this new application breaks physical skills into easily comprehended components, allowing for learning through teaching and simple evaluation tools for teachers and students.

2 METHODS

Eighteen elementary school students in grade six learned table tennis in seven, 45-minute sessions scheduled over two weeks, including one day for pretest and one day for post-testing of skills. A questionnaire that measured student attitude towards physical education, physical activity, peer learning and using technology was also administered during pre and post-testing. A professional table tennis instructor worked with the students to teach four skills: Grip, Stance, Forehand Stroke, and Backhand Stroke. Students also used the structured video iPad application, in pairs during each of the five classes to enhance the learning of those four basic skills. Partners were randomly assigned and students kept the same partners throughout the five training sessions. After the last class, a focus group of six students was randomly chosen from the 18 students to discuss their thoughts about sports experiences, attitudes towards gym class, table tennis, peer learning, and using the iPad with structured video. The focus group was audio recorded for later analysis.

3 FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

In order to study the quality of the scoring system for measuring technique using the structured video analysis protocol, we looked at the intra-reliability of the instructor after a two-week interval; and the reliability of six different peer evaluations compared to the instructor evaluation of the same performance. Intra reliability for the instructor using Cronbach's Alpha, ranged from 0.89 to .93) but the student reliability was highly variable ranging from .18 to .83. While Student skill score improved significantly (p<.001) attitude towards participation actually dropped, although not significantly. A subsequent focus group provided some insights into the reason for the fall in attitude, including not liking partners and not wanting to be videoed. All focus group students believed their skills improved, but 3 out of 6 students did not like table tennis because they wanted to be involved in more physically active sports. For those engaged in studying peer evaluations, negative relationships may impact the learning experience.

REFERENCES

Bohuijs, P. A. J. (1998). The Teacher and Self-directed Learners. In B. Jolly & L. Rees (Eds.), *Medical Education in the Millennium* (pp. 192-198). Oxford: Oxford University Press.

Boud, D., Cohen, R., & Sampson, J. (2014). *Peer learning in higher education: Learning from and with each other*. London and New York: Routledge

DEVELOPMENT OF A FULLY AUTOMATIC SCOUTING TECHNOLOGY BASED ON PATTERN RECOGNITION IN TEACHER TRAINING

Tiedemann, S.¹, Edelmann-Nusser, J.¹, Knisel, E.¹, Rupprich, H.¹

¹Otto-von-Guericke-University Magdeburg, Germany e-mail: {stefan.tiedemann, juergen.edelmann-nusser, elke.knisel, helge.rupprich}@ovgu.de

Keywords: Inertial sensors, activity tracking, movement detection

1 INTRODUCTION

Education is considered as one of the most important pillars of the society. It will continue to play a crucial role in the future and the demand for qualified personal and their training is correspondingly high. The aim of the project is to support the training of teachers with assistance of a technologically innovative and intuitive scouting system. One part is the sensor-based suit. This consists four sensors and will be attached to the teacher. That enables the automatic recognition of certain patterns. In addition the system is connected with a tablet-application, that allows the observer more input like notes and tagging essential events. For a good feedback a microphone and a camera is involved. That allows the analysis immediately after the end of the lesson. On the basis of all collected data it is intended to identify, categorize and evaluate typical actions for good and bad behaviors.

2 METHOD

The final scouting-tool merge different systems together. Minor information will be recorded by the camera and the mounted microphone. The microphone is realized by an ordinary radio link system, which is synchronized directly via the camera. For this reason the video recording is done by commercially available cameras. With their help the entire situation in the classroom or in the sports hall is recorded. A further system is the scouting-suit with at least four inertial measurement systems. They are used for capturing the movement of the teacher. All the data are combined and synchronized on a scouting-tablet. In addition it is also responsible for tagging key moments like disorders.

The aim of the project is the pattern recognition with the sensors. These are directly on the dominant upper body half (sternum, upper arm, forearm, hand). For easy use the sensors are attached via special double sided duct tape and can be concealed under clothes and are freely adjustable. In order to ensure independent recognition, various teaching units are recorded and compared. Some qualified rater evaluate several positive and negative characteristics. In the end the system should be able to recognize automatically the relevant patterns. A good example for a negative sign is the twitching of the armpits, because this is a hint for unknowing (Collett 2004, The Book of Tells: p. 74) and also the teacher often needs a superior position in front of the class. Together with some other gestures the goal is a valid real-time detection. These events also go inside the software with a timestamp for quantitative analysis.

In physical education additional inertial sensors can be used to measure the student activity. This is a good feature to provide the quality of a lesson. In addition to the steps the metabolic equivalent (MET) can be calculated, which is determined with the aid of the activity count. So different acceleration values fits together for subdividing activity into light, moderate and high loads. The same algorithm allows the division into sedentary and standing activities. That is also used for teacher, because long term sitting in front of the class could be a negative or positive characteristic.

To add values later, effective use of the system is of utmost importance. Therefore are tablets used to mark specific events by a practitioner. At the same time video, audio and sensor data merged together in real-time. Immediately after the end of the lesson a feedback is automatically generated. Thus corresponding video excerpts and statistical parameters can be presented directly on a screen. Good examples are the total time at the blackboard, the teachers speaking time, the frequency of activity in the classroom or the total time spent in physical education, etc.

3 RESULTS

At the present time numerous measurements have already been made and first samples can be detected with high accuracy. This includes the distinction between standing and sitting as well as the orientation of the teacher to the class. In addition a very good handwriting recognition is possible, which can also represent an indication of the quality of teaching. In the future even more patterns will be reliably detected, but the major problem is the classification of characteristics into positive and negative.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The presented article was written in the framework of the project funded by the Federal Ministry for Economic Affairs and Energy (funding program "Central Innovation Program" (ZIM ZF4096304MS7).

REFERENCES

Collett, P. (2004). The Book of Tells: How to Read People's Minds from Their Actions. Bantam Books, Berkshire, p. 74.

USING DRIFTING MARKOV CHAIN TO MODEL THE INDIVIDUAL DYNAMICS OF MOTOR LEARNING

John Komar¹

¹National Institute of Education, Nanyang Technological University 1 Nanyang walk, Singapore e-mail: <u>john.komar@nie.edu.sg</u>

Keywords: ecological dynamics, clustering, Drifting Markov Model, inter-limb coordination, exploratory learning

Abstract. This work intends to propose an innovative process to quantify the nature of motor exploration during learning. Indeed, although the exploratory nature of learning is widely accepted now, few tools really exist in order to investigate the effectiveness of exploration. We firstly applied an unsupervised cluster analysis on the time series of arm-leg coordination of swimmers in order to label the coordinative patterns that emerged during the entire learning process. Thereafter, we individually applied a Drifting Markov Modeling on the successive emergence of coordination patterns during learning, quantifying how the learner's behavior switched from one pattern to another one during learning before stabilizing a final pattern.

1 INTRODUCTION

One crucial question to understand in explanations of how human beings can learn relates to how a new innovative movement can freely emerge (i.e., in a way that has never been performed previously) during goal-directed activity. Newell and Vaillancourt (2001) originally proposed that individual exploration strategies are useful for developing such a new and meaningful relationship between perception and action for a specific task. In the current work, we sought to evidence the exploratory nature of motor learning and tried to model the individual pathways of learning and their effectiveness.

2 METHODOLOGY

2.1 Assessing emergent arm-leg coordination during learning

Following previous work from Komar et al. (2019), the arm-leg coordination of 10 beginner swimmers was recorded during two months using small inertial measurement unit. During this period, every time the learners were practicing, all their trials were assessed, consisting after two months in approximatively 1000 cycles per learner. All those cycles (i.e. from all the learners and all sessions) were then cut, time normalized and put into a cluster algorithm that allowed to label each cycle that emerged during the entire learning process.

2.2 Modeling individual pathways of learning

The second step consisted in reconstructing the individual time series for each learner in order to visualize the succession of the coordinative patterns in time. Based on this, Drifting

Markov Modelling (DMM, Vergne, 2008) was applied on those time series. The advantage of DMM compared to a regular Markov Chain is that it actually models the evolution of the transition matrix with time, showing how the transitions occurred when learning operates.

3 RESULTS

Eleven different emerging patterns were extracted from the clustering using the BIC index (through all the learners) and the time series of those patterns for all the sessions were reconstructed for each learner (Figure 1.A). Afterwards, the application of DMM provided for each individual the probability of appearance of each of the exhibited coordination patterns, at any given time of practice (i.e. from cycle 1 to the last cycle performed) (Figure 1.B), following a linear drift of degree 3.



Figure 1: Distribution of movement clusters for one learner over repetitions and sessions (2.A) and corresponding DMM of the above distribution (2.B). In 2.A: each dot represents one cycle performed during the entire learning process, exported from Komar et al. (2019). In 2.B: each line represents the probability of appearance of one movement cluster at every time of the learning process, based on actual observations from 2.A.

4 CONCLUSIONS

This modelling allowed to clearly differentiate three types of dynamics, namely the behaviours that disappear early during learning, the behaviours that appear with practice (thick continuous line), and the behaviours that appear with practice but did not remain used with later practice (thick dotted line). This latest dynamic could represent and quantify the exploratory activity during learning (i.e. behaviours that are only temporarily visited during learning).

REFERENCES

- Komar, J., Potdevin, F., Chollet, D., & Seifert, L. (2019). Between exploitation and exploration of motor behaviours: unpacking the constraints-led approach to foster nonlinear learning in physical education. *Physical Education and Sport Pedagogy*, 1–13.
- Newell, K. M., & Vaillancourt, D. E. (2001). Dimensional change in motor learning. *Human Movement Science*, 20(5), 695–715.

Vergne, N. (2008). Drifting Markov Models with Polynomial Drift and Applications to DNA Sequences. *Statistical Applications in Genetics and Molecular Biology*, 7(1).

EVALUATION OF MOTIVATIONAL EFFECTS OF RUNNING GAMES BASED ON INTELLIGENT FEEDBACK DEVICES

Philipp Kornfeind¹, Johannes Stögerer¹, Martin Dobiasch¹, and Arnold Baca¹

¹University of Vienna Auf der Schmelz 6A, 1150, Vienna, Austria e-mail: {philipp.kornfeind, johannes.stoegerer, martin.dobiasch, arnold.baca}@univie.ac.at

Keywords: Feedback system, motivation, sports participation.

Abstract. Within the frame of an Erasmus+-project funded by the European Union (EU), running games based on intelligent feedback devices were evaluated with regard to motivational effects. Results obtained for Austrian students are presented and discussed.

1 INTRODUCTION

One main focus of the Sport Chapter in the Erasmus+-Programme is to increase participation in sport. A central objective of the EU- funded collaborative- partnership-project "Te(a)chIn" was to raise awareness of the importance of health-enhancing physical activity of students and young people through increased participation in sports using innovative technologies. Within the frame of the project, two running games making use of intelligent feedback devices (ANDROID based smartphones coupled to external sensors) were developed in order to motivate students and young people to participate in grass-root sports more often.

2 RUNNING GAMES

Two independent running games were developed where two or more teams can compete against each other. In "Group Marathon", teams of participants are demanded to reach a target distance as a team. The total distance covered by a team is computed by a client app as the sum of the team members' individual performances. The basic idea of "Zone Play" is that each person has to reach predefined target zones as fast as possible while being assisted by dynamically generated feedback (acoustic and visual). Circular areas are marked via cones and digitally mapped as the target zones using the client. Several rounds may be played with randomly assigned target zones for each participant.

In both games, players are rewarded with points taking into account their individual physical capability (previous calibration run, estimated VO2 max). This enables rating the efforts of heterogenous individuals in games of various intensities as well as fair intra-group comparisons.

3 EVALUATION

3.1 Experiment

The experiment consisted of control (n = 51, age = 23,5y) and test group (n = 41, age = 25,0y) independently doing sportive games throughout a semester. Participants of the test group had to play the running games using the client app at least once a week. Members of the control group were inscribed in a similar running-oriented course without smart phone support. All persons were obligated to participate in at least eight sessions over the semester and to fill out questionnaires.

3.2 Questionnaires

An adapted version of the "Basic Psychological Needs in Exercise Scale" (BPNES; Vlachopoulos et al., 2010) was used to find changes in participants' motivation towards doing sports. Selected sets of questions made it possible to assess the autonomy, competence and relatedness of the participants. Questionnaires were distributed to the participants prior the first and after the last session. The In-Questionnaire consists of the adapted BPNES and shows participants' current condition. The Out-Questionnaire includes the adapted BPNES as well as a short section referring to the usability of the app.

3.3 Results

Descriptive analysis of the BPNES indicates that the tested running games had no significant effect on the motivation of participated students. The usability rating was above average but included also some criticism regarding the implementation (mainly errors and interruptions during the game). Allover response about the application of the intelligent feedback devices was consistently positive and most of the participants would support further developments.

4 CONCLUSIONS

Despite the fact, that motivational effects could not be shown using the data of the questionnaires, we still believe in the potential for using such technologies in sport. In the current study the results were certainly influenced by repeated technical issues during application due to the not fully developed system (functional prototype). For future developments such recurring problems need to be fixed before starting the experiments in order to avoid the related bias effects on the results.

5 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The project was funded by the European Union: Ref: 579676-EPP-1-2016-2-BG-SPO-SCP.

REFERENCES

Vlachopoulos, S. P., Ntoumanis, N., & Smith, A. L. (2010). The basic psychological needs in exercise scale: Translation and evidence for cross - cultural validity. *International Journal* of Sport and Exercise Psychology, 8(4), 394-412.

DEVELOPMENT OF AN ERASMUS+ DUAL-CAREER-PROGRAM FOR ATHLETES AND COACHES

Tiedemann, S.¹, Petri, K.¹, Mattert, S.¹, Baca, A.², Kazandzhieva , K.³, Pisl, A.⁴, Witte, K.¹

¹Otto-von-Guericke-University Magdeburg, Germany e-mail: {stefan.tiedemann, katharina.petri, sophie.mattert, kerstin.witte}@ovgu.de

> ² University of Vienna Vienna, Austria e-mail: arnold.baca@univie.ac.at

³ Bulgarian Olympic Committee Sofia, Bulgaria e-mail: kris@agenda-bg.com

⁴ European University Sports Association Ljubljana, Slovenia e-mail: pisl@eusa.eu

Keywords: E-Learning, dual career, sport technologies

1 INTRODUCTION

The general objective of SMART SPORT project is supporting the implementation of the European Guidelines on Dual Careers (DC) of Athletes by setting up a transnational network of stakeholders that will elaborate, implement and test an innovativ Dual Career Program (DCP) for athletes and coaches. The project is targeting university students-athletes and coaches, as well as sport professionals from each project participating country. SMART SPORT means using wearable and intelligent feedback devices in sports for gathering information and further analysis for the use of better, healthier and safer sport performance. The elite university student athletes face the challenge to combine their excellent sport performance activity with the serious requirements of high education. Thus, SMART SPORT promotes and supports good governance in sport and dual careers of athletes, their coaches and in sports and technologies interested people. That e-learning system will consist of four education modules with established scientific content elaborated by the project experts in the following themes: 1. Digital assistance systems (e.g. smart devices, smart textiles, non-wearable technologies), 2. Motion tracking and analysis, 3. Data analysis tools and 4. Innovative Sport Equipment and Technologies. Module 1 consists "Smart Devices", "Smart Textiles", "Nonwearable Technologies" as well as "Feedback and Motivation". In module 2 we show several technologies to analyze motions of single persons and multiple persons using motion capturing, drones as well as video analysis including apps and sensors. Module 3 includes "Life Logging", "Machine learning" and "Data analysis". The last module is about "Smart materials", "Sport equipment" and "Sport facilities".

2 STRUCTURE OF "SMART SPORT" AND DIDACTICAL DESIGN

The process of the creation of the content will be finished in spring 2019. Afterwards, an evaluation in all partner countries will take place, where several athletes and coaches will give a feedback by use of questionnaires. After a further phase of implementation of the feedback, the online courses will be available for all interested persons in 2020. The content shall be provided by the online platform "Moodle", and will be presented with fully automated and spoken PowerPoint presentations. Thus, each content will be offered by several channels (visual and auditory), as demanded by Plass, Homer and Hayward (2009) and will contain basic modules with theoretical input and advanced modules with further literature, examples in their application in sports, and ideas/material for self-studies. To ensure interactivity, the user has to answer several multiple choice questions correctly to get to the next content. An environment of the online lecture will be user-friendly: participants can start, stop and repeat the course on demand. Furthermore, they can complete the content without dependence on the location, as long as they have a wireless network. Such content could be used for injured athletes, or persons, who often travel, to use their time for self-reliant education. This individual responsibility may also become advantageous in future life and in the sports training (Halem & Wahl-Alexander, 2018).

3 PRACTICAL EXAMPLE

The general structure of each topic is similar. It starts with an introduction and some applications in sports with a concrete examples on the topic: Marker-based and markerless motion capturing. Then the theoretical part will be presented to explain hardware, technology and the state of the art. Afterwards, the user gets some tasks for self-studying. This could be some datasets for statistics, tasks of sports with freeware, and instructions for self-experiments by providing possibilities of data collection or use of opensource software. Each presented module finishes with control-questions which need to be answered correctly to get access to the next content.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The project is funded by the European Union (EU): ERASMUS+ SMART SPORT (2017-2558/001-001).

REFERENCES

- Halem, I & Wahl-Alexander, Z. (2018). The autonomous curriculum: How student choice in physical aducation contributes to engage-ment, enjoyment and learning. ASAHPERD Journal, 37 (3): 28-36.
- Plass, J.L., Homer, B.D. & Hayward, E.O. (2009). Design factors for educationally effective animations and simulations. Journal of Computing in Higher Education, 21 (1), 31-61. Doi: 10.1007/s12528-009-9011-x

Sports Applications

DESIGNING A MOBILE APP FOR TREATING INDIVIDUALS WITH DEMENTIA: COMBINING UX RESEARCH WITH SPORTS SCIENCE

Bettina Barisch-Fritz¹, Marc Barisch, Sandra Trautwein¹, Andrea Scharpf¹, Jelena Bezold¹, and Alexander Woll¹

¹ Karlsruhe Institute of Technology, Institute of Sports and Sports Science, Engler-Bunte-Ring, Karlsruhe, Germany e-mail: bettina.barisch-fritz@kit.edu

Keywords: UX Research, Dementia, Physical Activity, Training in Nursing Homes.

Abstract. Dementia treatment requires new approaches to delay the progress of the disease. A novel approach to combine results from sports science with user experience research (Ux) has been taken to develop an application (app) to support individuals with dementia. This paper describes the methodology to develop the app and the current state of the journey.

1 INTRODUCTION

Dementia is a syndrome of several different types of usually chronic and progressive diseases of the brain affecting the quality of life. The severity of the symptoms and their influence on activities of daily life usually results in permanent care. The number of patients is increasing to approximately 152 million in 2050 (Patterson et al., 2018). Almost three-quarters of residents in nursing homes have dementia (Lithgow et al, 2012). Therefore, it is valuable to invest into any treatment that delays the disease progression. Physical activity is promising as some evidence for the slowdown of the decline in physical performance is given (Blankevoort et al., 2010). Based on the (not yet published) findings of our study (Trautwein et al., 2017), the high-aged and differently affected individuals with dementia cannot be uniformly treated. Thus, individualized training protocols must be developed based on each cognitive and motor skills.

So far, physical activity has been instructed either by unqualified employees or by experienced trainers, which is only affordable for selected number of nursing homes. This resulted in huge logistical effort and cost, which cannot be covered by health insurance or individuals. Therefore, an alternative approach for carrying out the training programs by less qualified personnel is required.

With the pervasiveness of mobile devices, it was considered that a mobile app is an appropriate way to give access to everybody for adequate testing and training advice. An app is not self-propelling. There is variety of factors that decide on the success of the app and in consequence on the positive effects for the individuals with dementia. Therefore, a novel approach to combine sports science with user experience research (Ux) is taken to design an app that meets the requirements of different users. The app should therefore be able to test individual cognitive and motor status and consequently provide employees of nursing homes with appropriate individualized training sessions.

2 UX RESEARCH AND DESIGN APPOACH

Ux research became popular in the last decade to develop products and app that meet user's needs and requirements in the most appropriate way. Instead of developing products based on the knowledge of experts and involving potential customers and stakeholders lately, those are involved throughout the complete product lifecycle. Ux research provides a set of tools and methods to systematically investigate users and their requirements during the ideation and validation stage.

Figure 1 shows the product vision that has been defined together with all stakeholders. This product vision defined the basis for interviews with potential users (Pannafino & McNeil, 2017). The users have been questioned about their routines and their needs for a future app. From the interviews, four different personas have been defined. The personas (Figure 1) are used to create a better understanding of their needs and pain points. These personas are quite different with respect to their age, technology savviness, daily routines, etc. Based on the personas a user story map will be defined to derive user stories and prioritize them. The app will be developed in a so-called co-creation approach to obtain fast feedback from users.

For employees in nursing homes, Who treat dementia patients	Person	Role	Age
The "Dementia Treatment App" is a a mobile instruction	Olga	Full-time Nurse	55
app for executing training sessions That proposes individualized exercises for each patient Unlike traditional training forms that cannot adapt to the	Felix	Student, supports full-time nurses	18
individual needs	Eckhard	Manager of nursing home	45
Our product targets to delay progress of dementia disease and improve quality of life	Sandra	Sport scientist	34

Figure 1: (a) Product Vision for Mobile Application (b) Identified Personas

3 CONCLUSIONS AND OUTLOOK

The Ux research approach gave us many insights how an app must look like to successfully support employees in nursing homes that treat patients with dementia. When the app will be ready, we will evaluate the impact on individuals with dementia. As a side effect, we will obtain many additional data for future research.

REFERENCES

- Blankevoort, C.G. et al. (2010). Review of effects of physical activity on strength, balance, mobility and ADL performance in elderly subjects with dementia. *Dement Geriatr Cogn Disord*; 30(5):392-402.
- Lithgow et al. (2012). Estimating the prevalence of dementia: cognitive screening in Glasgow nursing homes. *Int J Ger Psych*;27(8), 785-791.
- Pannafino, J. & McNeil, P. (2017). UX Methods. A quick guide to user experience research methods. CDUXP LLC. ISBN-10: 0692972714.
- Patterson, C. et al. (2018). World Alzheimer Report 2018. The state of the art of dementia research: New frontiers. *London: Alzheimer's Disease International.*
- Trautwein, S. et al. (2017). Effectiveness of a 16-Week Multimodal Exercise Program on Individuals With Dementia: Study Protocol for a Multicenter Randomized Controlled Trial. *JMIR Res Protoc*. 3;6(3):e35.

GUIDING RUNNERS THROUGH SPEED-BASED TASKS. A PILOT STUDY.

Julia Daxenbichler¹, Michael Stöckl¹, Arnold Baca¹, and Martin Dobiasch¹

¹University of Vienna Auf der Schmelz 6a, Vienna, Austria e-mail: a01548434@unet.univie.ac.at, {michael.stoeckl, arnold.baca, martin.dobiasch}@univie.ac.at

Keywords: Feedback, Running, Speed, Conconi, Pegasos

Abstract. In order to help athletes maintain their speed more accurately during graded exercise tests in the field three novel feedback variants were compared to a classical audio tape variant. Data suggests that with the feedback variants of the new app, the phase speed can be maintained more accurately than with the classical tape method (p < .001). Though, the validity of the results is limited, as there were no measurements of the true speed during the runs and due to the questionable accuracy of the Foot Pod used for estimating the speed.

1 INTRODUCTION

Assessing one's fitness level is not only essential for high-performance athletes but also for amateur athletes. This is partly due to the rising importance of visualisation and monitoring of training performance. Many fitness apps exist on the market targeting amateur athletes. However, it seems that only few of them can help athletes to perform a fitness test correctly. To perform the "Conconi-test" the athletes have to increase their speed by 0.5 km h^{-1} every 200 m until exhaustion is reached. The test requires a 400 m-track with cones set every 20 m and an audio tape to ensure that the athletes run at the right speed.

2 METHODS

This pilot study compares three feedback variants for assisting performing a classical Conconitest: Vibration, Sound and Sound & Vibration. In order to test for possible differences between the feedback variants, an app was created using the PEGASOS framework (Dobiasch et al., 2016). During testing, the app recorded heart rate and estimated the speed of the participants using a heart rate monitor and a Foot Pod from "Garmin". A phone with the app was secured on the arm of the participants using a holster. The Vibration variant uses a vibration pattern of 200 ms vibrations followed by a 150 ms break for signalling "too slow" and 1000 ms vibrations followed by a 250 ms break for signalling "too fast". Each of these patterns is repeated three times whenever an athlete is not running at the correct pace. The Sound variant uses the Text-to-Speech Software of the phone to tell athletes "too slow" or "too fast" respectively.

At the beginning of the tests, a 800 m calibration run was performed, which doubled as a warm-up. Afterwards, the participants went through a familiarisation with the app. The participants were assigned to a sequence of the four different feedback variants randomly in order to reduce learning effects. The runs were stopped by the app automatically after reaching

90% of the estimated maximum heart rate, with about $20 \min$ break between each run, which was sufficient for the participants to recover from the previous run.

The study was approved by the ethics committee of the University of Vienna. 24 (16 male, 8 female) recreational runners (Age: 24.47 ± 2.6 years, BMI: 23.24 ± 2.07 kg m⁻²) participated in the study and completed all four feedback runs. All participants were either students of the sports faculty or preparing for the entry test of the faculty, doing 3 to 20 hours of sport per week.

3 RESULTS

The mean accuracy per person and per feedback variant was calculated as the relative amount of time spent within $\pm 0.3 \text{ km h}^{-1}$ of the target speed. As visualised in Figure 1, a repeated measurements ANOVA revealed a difference between the respective feedback variants $F(3, 69) = 23.28, p < .001, \eta^2 = 0.3$. A Bonferroni-corrected post-hoc test showed significant differences (p < .001) in the mean accuracy of all alternatives to the classic variant. However, no significant differences were found between the different novel variants.



Figure 1: Mean accuracy of the different feedback variants. Classic had $33.5 \pm 12.6\%$, Vibration $47.7 \pm 12.9\%$, Sound $54.3 \pm 11.0\%$ and Sound & Vibration $51.4 \pm 13.1\%$ mean accuracy.

4 DISCUSSION

Although, the results suggest that the 'novel' feedback variants achieve better results than the classic variant, care has to be taken when drawing conclusions. Since no measurements of the true, speeds were recorded during the runs the validity of the results is limited. While the influence of differences between true and measured speed in the 'novel' variants can be neglected, conclusions in regard to the classic variants are hindered by this fact. However, the results are in line with the subjective feeling that participants did not always adhere to the protocol and missed or omitted some of their cones while performing the 'classical' variant. Nevertheless, further research is necessary to investigate the accuracy of the foot pod.

The post-hoc analysis of the intervals between variants yielded no significant differences between the 'novel' feedback variants. This suggests that athletes can be allowed to select their preferred variant 'ad libitum'.

REFERENCES

Dobiasch, M., & Baca, A. (2016). Pegasos – Ein Generator f
ür Feedbacksysteme. In Sportinformatik 2016. 11. Symposium der dvs Sportinformatik, 14.-16. September 2016, dvs (Hrsg.), 2016, p. 18.

CAN POSITIONING SYSTEMS REPLACE TIMING GATES FOR MEASURING SPRINT TIME IN ICE HOCKEY?

Daniel Link¹

¹ Technical University Munich Georg-Brauchle-Ring 60/62, Munich, Germany e-mail: Daniel.link@tum.de

Keywords: sports analytics, performance analysis, positioning systems, timing gates, validation, on-ice test, smallest worthwhile change

Abstract. This study explores whether positioning systems are a viable alternative to timing gates when it comes to measuring sprint times in ice hockey. We compared the results of a single-beam timing gate (Brower Timing) with the results of the Iceberg optical positioning system (Optical) and two radio-based positioning systems provided by InMotio (Radio 1) and Kinexon (Radio 2). The testing protocol consisted of two 40 m linear sprints, where we measured sprint times for a 11m subsection (Linear Sprint 11), and a shuttle run (Shuttle Total), including five 14m sprints. The exercises were performed by six top-level U19 field players in regular ice hockey equipment on ice. We quantified the difference between measured sprint times e.g. by Mean Absolute Error (MAE) (s) and Intra Class Correlation (ICC). The usefulness of positioning systems was evaluated by using a Coefficient of Usefulness (CU), which was defined as the quotient of the Smallest Worthwhile Change (SWC) divided by the Typical Error (both in s).

Results showed that radio-based systems had a higher accuracy compared to the optical system. This concerned Linear Sprint 11 (MAE_{optical} = 0.16, MAE_{Radio1} = 0.01, MAE_{Radio2} = 0.01, IC- $C_{optical}$ = .38, ICC_{Radio1} = .98, ICC_{Radio2} = .99) as well as Shuttle Total (MAE_{optical} = 0.07, MAE_{Radio1} = 0.02, MAE_{Radio2} = 0.02, ICC_{optical} = .99; ICC_{Radio1} = 1.0, ICC_{Radio2} = 1.0). In Shuttle Total, all systems were able to measure a SWC of 0.10 s with a probability of >99% in a single trial (CU_{optical} = 4.6, CU_{Radio1} = 6.5, CU_{Radio2} = 5.1). In Linear Sprint 11 performance changes of SWC = 0.01 s might have been masked or erroneously detected where there were none due to measurement noise (CU_{optical} = 0.6, CU_{Radio1} = 1.0, CU_{Radio2} = 1.0). Similar results were found for the turning subsection of the shuttle run (CU_{optical} = 0.6, CU_{Radio1} = 0.5, CU_{Radio2} = 0.5). All systems were able to detect an SWC higher than 0.04 s with a probability of at least 75%. We conclude that the tested positioning systems may in fact offer a workable alternative to timing gates for measuring sprints times in ice hockey over long distances like shuttle runs. Limitations occur when testing changes/differences in performance over very short distances like an 11m sprint, or when intermediate times are taken immediately after considerable changes of direction or speed.

INFORMATION SYSTEM FOR OPERATIONAL PLANNING OF TRAINING LOAD, REHABILITATION AND MEDICAL CONTROL IN CYCLIC SPORTS

Sergey S. Mamchur, Aleksey N. Proshin

FORS Development Center 3, Trifonovsky tupik, Moscow, Russia e-mail: Sergey.Mamchur@fors.ru

FORS Development Center 3, Trifonovsky tupik, Moscow, Russia e-mail: Alexey.Proshin@fors.ru

Keywords: IACSS, Computer Science, Sport, Mobile devices

Abstract. This presentation contains an analysis and systematization of the results of building an automated system for collecting information about the physical parameters of athletes and planning the training load.

1 INTRODUCTION

Currently, in the process of an athletes` training is able to over-fix and process a large amount of athletic performance data. Processing and presentation of this data in a clear and readable form for a coach leads to an improvement in the performance results of athletes. The obtained data requires processing in specialized information systems.

This presentation describes the experience of creating such a system. Description consists of three parts. The first part of this presentation describes the use of mobile sensors to collect parameters of the athletes` physical condition during trainings. The second part deals with the data processing obtained from mobile sensors. The third part showcases the approaches to planning, control and analysis as key part of automated Sports Training Management System.

2 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The team of authors is grateful to:

- the research student of the Theory and Methods of Ski Sports Faculty of the Russian State University of Physical Education, Sport, Youth and Tourism (SCOLIPE) Lunina AV.
- The coach of cross-country ski team Russia Akimov DB
Archery

HIT DISTRIBUTION PATTERNS IN RECURVE ARCHERY: AN EXPLORATORY SPATIAL ANALYSIS

Hayri Ertan¹, Fikret Er², and Andrew J. Callaway³

¹Eskişehir Technical University, Faculty of Sport Sciences Eskisehir/Turkey e-mail: hayriertan@gmail.com

² Anadolu University, Faculty of Distance Education Eskisehir/Turkey e-mail: fer@anadolu.edu.tr

³ Bournemouth University, Department of Sport and Physical Activity Poole, Dorset, BH12 5BB, United Kingdom e-mail: acallaway@bournemouth.ac.uk

Keywords: Archery Performance Analysis, Hit Distribution, Exploratory Spatial Analysis

Abstract. The hits shot by an archer written on a sheet of paper and recorded without having exact information on the location of each arrow. So, the current manuscript aimed to study the spatial distribution of the hits and their distribution patterns among archers at different performance levels. Nine high-level, thirteen middle class and seven beginner archers have volunteered to participate in the current study. The hits that were shot by each archer from 18 m were photographed after each end and digitized by using a Matlab script. The mean values of the hits on the target for each group of x and y-axis have been compared if there have been any difference between the values of both axis. The only statistically significant difference in between x-axis and y-axis values has shown in the middle class group (p<0.002). It can be concluded that the high-level, middle class and beginner archers have high accuracy-high precision and have high accuracy-low precision respectively.

1 INTRODUCTION

An end consists of either 3 or 6 arrows in archery. Archers walk to the target to score and retrieve their arrows. The scores are typically written on a sheet of paper without having exact information on the location of each arrow (Ertan et al., 2005). As the arrows are only scored from highest to lowest, this level of data input has limitations in the degree of analysis. Distribution patterns of the hits on the target and their spatial positioning are not possible to evaluate with traditional scoring methods. Because of that, some certain scientific methods are needed to identify spatial patterns of the hits on the target and explain the patterns in relation to sport archery (Callaway & Broomfield, 2012). Exploratory spatial data analysis is a statistical method to make observations from a sample of points upon an underlying continuous spatial distribution (Haining et al., 2000 & Jhonson, 2001). So, the purpose of the current study is to define hit distribution patterns on recurve archery target by using exploratory spatial data analysis methods among archers at different performance levels.

2 METHOD

9 high-level, 13 middle-class and 7 beginner archers were volunteered to participate in the current study. Each archer shot 72 arrows in the distance of 18 m. The hits on the target were photographed after each end and they have been placed on a coordinate system for further analysis by using a Matlab script. Scattered diagrams and box plots have been drawn of each archery group.

3 RESULTS

The mean values of the hits on target for each group were analyzed, identifying the difference between the values of x and y-axis. The high-level archers have the closest mean values $(x-axis=-0.7898\pm2.2005 \text{ and } y-axis=-1.2358\pm1.9448)$ to the center of the target. Their standard deviations are also lower than the other groups. The mean values $(x-axis=1.5589\pm11.7983 \text{ and } y-axis=1.4600\pm14.3393)$ of beginner archers' hits are closer to the center of the target compared to the middle-class archers $(x-axis=-4.1850\pm5.8041 \text{ and } y-axis=1.0308\pm4.2571)$. However, the highest standard deviation values have been measured from beginner archers.

4 DISCUSSION

The mean values of the hits on the target have been compared if there have been any difference between the values of both axis. The only statistically significant difference in between x-axis and y-axis values has shown in the beginner group (p<0.002). It can be concluded that the high-level, middle-class and beginner archers have high accuracy-high precision, low accuracy-high precision and high accuracy-low precision respectively.

5 CONCLUSION

It can be concluded that high-level, middle class and beginner archers have different hit distribution patterns on the target. The high-level, middle class and beginner archers have high accuracy-high precision, low accuracy-high precision and have high accuracy-low precision respectively.

- Ertan, H., Soylu, A. R., & Korkusuz, F. (2005). Quantification the relationship between FITA scores and EMG skill indexes in archery. *Journal of Electromyography and Kinesiology*, *15*(2), 222-227.
- Callaway, J. A., & Broomfield, A. S. (2012). Inter-rater reliability and criterion validity of scatter diagrams as an input method for marksmanship analysis: Computerised notational analysis for archery. *Int. Journal of Performance Analysis in Sport, 12*(2), 291-310.
- Haining, R., Wise, S., & Signoretta, P. (2000). Providing scientific visualization for spatial data analysis: Criteria and an assessment of SAGE. *Journal of Geographical Systems*, 2(2), 121-140.
- Johnson, R. F. (2001). Statistical measures of marksmanship (No. USARIEM-TN--1/2). ARMY RESEARCH INST OF ENVIRONMENTAL MEDICINE NATICK MA MILITARY PERFORMANCE DIV.

THE FACTORS THAT DETERMINE THE DYNAMIC CHANGES IN THE PRECISION OF ARCHERS UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF COMPETITIVE LOAD

Baidychenko1 T.V.¹

¹Russian State University of Physical Education, Sport, Youth and Tourism (Scolipe) Sirenevy Boulevard, 4, Moscow, Russia e-mail: arcguru@list.ru

Key words: archers, competitive period, technical training, precision indicators.

Annotation. The winter preparatory period for archers is basic in terms of quantitative volume of shots and hours of training. During this period - from November to February - the "foundation" of technical training for the whole year is laid.

Assessment of shooting precision for archers involves the use of the didactic model "Read target face" [3], as an express diagnosis for the coach to make a decision; and, the calculation of precision indicators (values of random (VE) and systematic errors (CE) horizontally (X) and vertical (Y)), according to the coordinates of arrow hits on the target face, for more accurate analysis and interpretation of the factors on which the precision of shots depends [3 ,4]. This may be the quality check of the bows tuning process, and the expediency of the implementation of the technical elements of a particular athlete, etc.

OBJECTIVE OF THE RESEARCH

To study the dynamic changes in precision when shooting at 18m at the target face under the influence of competitive load among archers of high qualification.

TASKS OF THE RESEARCH

1. To assess the dynamic changes in the precision indicators under the influence of the competitive load of highly qualified archers; **2.** Identify the factors that determine the technical training of athletes in the competitive period.

METHODS AND ORGANIZATION OF RESEARCH

1. Indicator form sheet (Registration of coordinates of shots); 2. Methods of mathematical statistics.

The experiment involved 14 highly qualified archers (master of sports international level-3, master of sports-7, candidates of master of sports-4), regularly practicing who are at the competition period of training. Two weeks before the start of testing, the arrow load on the archers was standardized - no more than 160 shots per exercise. For the entire competition period (6 weeks, including competitions), each archer performed from 4,500 to 5,400 shots.

The registration of the coordinates of 9 arrows was made at the beginning and end of the training session twice - before and after competition. For each archer, the period between testing did not take more than 6 days (according to the terms of participation in the Champion-

ship of Moscow). Calculation of precision indicators was carried out according to the Kaziev-Bashlykov program [4].

DISCUSSION OF RESULTS

The differences in the values of the precision indicators before and after the competition are obvious. The likelihood of systematic errors in highly qualified athletes increases after a competitive load. However, for the MSIL this value does not exceed the size of the "10-ring" (averaged data of the group of archers: XCE = 0.67; YCE = 042;) and tends to decrease already in the process of conducting one training session (XCE = 0, 43; YCE = 027;), while in the MS and CMS group of archers, no changes are observed to decrease (before the competition - XCE = 0.63; YCE = 0.27; after - XCE = 0.67; YCE = 042). It is obvious that the skill of performing an aimed shot (detailing the performance of individual technical elements) for this qualification of archers is higher than that of the MS-CMS [2].

The most interesting in our research are the changes in the random error horizontally (XVE changes from 1.09 to the competition, to 2.1 after), the cause of which, most likely, are: - different angle of descent of the string from the fingers; - jerk; - folding as a consequence of the "clicker" reaction [3]. These factors, with the exception of the 1st, are directly related to the technical training of the archer, in that part of it, which is called the "reflex mechanism of motion control" [1]. All that is connected with unpredictable actions in the learning process or the mastering technical elements [3].

The dynamic changes in shooting precision at a distance of 18m under the influence of competitive load indicates the efficiency of using precision indicators to determine and correct the means and methods used in a particular training session and, as a result, increase the technical result.

CONCLUSIONS

1. Systematic errors in the vertical and horizontal (XCE and YCE) are indicators of precision, changes that can be corrected during training. 2. Factors determining the dynamic changes in random error values across the horizon (XVE) are most significant when assessing the level of technical prowess of an archer in the competition period.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

1. Baydichenko T.V. Studying the factors affecting the stability of the "shooter-weapon" system in archery = Influencing factors upon the "archer-bow" system stability / Tatiana Baydchenko, Valery Vladimirovich Lysenko // Theory and practice of applied and extreme sports. - 2010. - N_{2} 3 (18). - p. 14-17.

2. Baydichenko T.V., Koursaris V., Sinelnikova M.V. Fundamentals of classical teaching an aimed shot at the stage of sports specialization (for example, archery) // Theory and methods of training in practical shooting, other shooting sports and shooting disciplines in multiathlon: materials of the III All-Russian scientific-practical conference with international participation. –RGUFKSMiT, 2017. – P.114-119.

3. Baydichenko, T.V. Evaluation of shooting precision for archers [Electronic resource]: method. recommendations, tasks and studies. material for practical occupations and self. master's work, direction of training. 04.04.03: Prepared profile "Sport of the highest achievements and the system of training athletes": forms of education - very good. : rec. to ed. Ems INPO FGBOU VO "RSUFKSMiT" / Baydichenko T.V. ; M-sport of the Russian Federation, 2017.

THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN ARROW POSITIONING AND BOW/DRAW ARM EMG ACTIVITY IN ARCHERY

İpek Eroglu Kolayis¹, Andrew J. Callaway², Axel J. Knicker³, Hayri Ertan⁴, Murat Cilli¹ and A. Ruhi Soylu⁵

> ¹ Sakarya Applied Sciences University Faculty of Sport Sciences, Sakarya/Turkey e-mail: ipekkolayis@gmail.com

² Bournemouth University, Department of Sport and Physical Activity Poole, Dorset, BH12 5BB, United Kingdom e-mail: acallaway@bournemouth.ac.uk

³ German Sport University Cologne Institute of Movement and Neurosciences, Cologne/Germany e-mail: knicker@dshs-koeln.de

⁴ Eskişehir Technical University, Faculty of Sport Sciences Eskisehir/Turkey e-mail: hayriertan@gmail.com

⁵Hacettepe University Faculty of Medicine, Department of Biophysics, Ankara/Turkey e-mail: a.ruhi.soylu@gmail.com

Keywords: Archery Performance Analysis, Electromyography, Arrow Positioning.

Abstract. The purpose of current manuscript is to evaluate the relationship between muscle activation patterns simultaneously in both bow arm and draw arm and the vertical/lateral deflection of the arrow on the target. Six Female and 10 Male archers shot 12 arrows at 30m. Instead of the score on the target, each arrow positioned on the target in a coordinate system. Arrow positions correlated with upper extremity muscular activity on the bow arm and drawing arm. The results demonstrate that muscle recruitment can have a significant effect on arrow location irrelevant of individual variations in techniques used.

1 INTRODUCTION

Archery can be described as a comparatively static sport, requiring strength and endurance of the forearm and shoulder girdle (Mann & Littke, 1989). The drawing arm pulls the bowstring by flexing the elbow through concentric contraction of biceps brachii and brachialis muscles, while the shoulder is extended by the strong concentric action of teres major, latissimus dorsi and posterior fibers of deltoid (Soylu, Ertan & Korkusuz, 2006). Activation patterns of shoulder and forearm muscles for both draw arm, and bow arm, have been described previously (Ertan, Soylu, & Korkusuz, 2005; Ertan, 2009). However, the earlier findings did not demonstrate the relationship between arrow positioning and muscular activation patterns. So, the aim of this work is to evaluate the activation patterns in both bow arm and draw arm in relation to lateral and vertical deflection of the arrow on the target.

2 METHODS

With institutional ethical approval, 6 Female (Age: 16.66 ± 3.44 ; Training age: 5.88 ± 2.92) and 10 Male (Age: 22.33 ± 12.95 ; Training age: 4.11 ± 2.80) subjects were involved in the study. Each of the archers shot 12 arrows in a row in a competition like rhythm to a target positioned 30m at an 80cm target. Bipolar EMG recordings were taken from m. deltoideus frontal (DF), medial (DM) and posterior (DP) part, m. trapezius upper (TU) and middle (TM) part of the bow arm and drawing arm. Arrow coordinates were processed into three categories for analysis and related with the muscular activations of muscles given above.

3 RESULTS

EMGrel% values of bow arm and drawing arm Trapezius upper (TU), Trapezius Middle (TM), Deltoid Posterior (DP), Deltoid Middle (DM) and Deltoid Front Part (DF) muscles have compared one second before (BC) and after clicker fall (AC) among the for zones locations. The results show that BC for the bow arm muscles, DM is the only muscle which has statistical difference among zones of the target face. In the drawing arm BC (Figure 2c), TU activation was significantly greater in the Zone 1 and Zone 4 than Zone 2. There were no statistical differences before the clicker.

4 DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION

Before clicker fall, the drawing arm muscles contract isometrically to support the aiming of the bow. After clicker fall, TM muscle was statistically higher when arrows landed in Zone 3 than in Zone 2. When assessing arrow locations in terms of above and below the target center, EMGrel% values of the muscles show some statistical differences particularly in the bow arm after the clicker fall in TM and DF. The results demonstrate that the muscle recruitment can have a significant effect on arrow location.

- Mann, D.L. and Littke, N., 1989. Shoulder injuries in archery. *Canadian journal of sport sciences*, 14(2), pp.85-92.
- Soylu, A. R., Ertan, H., & Korkusuz, F. (2006). Archery performance level and repeatability of event-related EMG. *Human Movement Science*, *25*, 767-774. doi: 10.1016/j.humov.2006.05.002.
- Ertan, H., Soylu, A. R., & Korkusuz, F. (2005). Quantification the relationship between FITA scores and EMG skill indexes in archery. *Journal of Electromyography and Kinesiology*, *15*, 222–227. doi:10.1016/j.jelekin.2004.08.004.
- Ertan, H. (2009). Muscular activation patterns of the bow arm in recurve archery. *Journal of Science and Medicine in Sport, 12*, 357–360. doi:10.1016/j.jsams.2008.01.003.

AUDITORY EVOKED BRAIN POTENTIALS DURING ARCHERY SHOOTING

Hayri Ertan¹, Suha Yagcioglu², Alpaslan Yılmaz³, Pekcan Ungan⁴ and Feza Korkusuz⁵

¹Eskişehir Technical University, Faculty of Sport Sciences Eskisehir/Turkey e-mail: hayriertan@gmail.com

> ² Hacettepe University, Faculty of Medicine, Department of Biophysics, Ankara/Turkey e-mail: suha@hacettepe.edu.tr

³ Erciyes University, Department of Coaching Education Kayseri/Turkey e-mail: yilmaz@erciyes.edu.tr

> ⁴ Koç University, School of Medical Istanbul/Turkey e-mail: pungan@ku.edu.tr

⁵ Hacettepe University, Faculty of Medicine Ankara/Turkey e-mail: feza.korkusuz@gmail.com

Keywords: Archery Performance, Electroencephalography (EEG), Auditory Evoked Brain Potentials, Attention, and Temporal Uncertainty

Abstract. When archer senses an audible impetus from a device called "clicker", he/she releases the bowstring. The fall of clicker may evoke a sequence of potentials that can be recorded from the scalp of an archer. So, the purpose of the manuscript is to evaluate the Longlatency Auditory Evoked Potentials in measure during Archery shooting. Each archer shot 72 arrows from 18 m. Auditory Evoked Brain Potentials (AEBPs) were recorded 200 ms before and 800 ms after the fall of the clicker over the vertex during the shots of each subject. Transient ERPs (N100, P200) were band pass filtered (1–12 Hz, Butterworth 12 dB/oct slopes). The M2 electrode was chosen to be the site of measurement for both N100 and P200 referenced to Cz (Golob et al., 2002). Fall of the clicker during archery shooting evokes a negative going wave (N100) and a positive going wave (P200). It can be concluded that having high amplitudes during archery shooting can also be explained by involving several regions of the brain in responding to the stimulus.

1 INTRODUCTION

Archery can be described as a static sport requiring strength and endurance of the upper body, in particular the shoulder girdle (Mann & Littke, 1989). To get a good record in an archery competition, one requires well-balanced and highly reproducible movements during the shooting. An archer pushes the bow with an extended arm while the other arm exerts a dynamic pulling of the bowstring from the beginning of the drawing phase, until the release is dynamically executed (Leroyer et al., 1993). The bowstring is released when audible impetus is received from a device called "clicker". When the clicker signal is heard, the archer relaxes the flexor group muscles of the forearm and actively contracts the extensor group muscles for producing the release (Ertan et al., 2003). As the fall of the clicker is an acoustic stimulus, it may evoke a sequence of potentials that can be recorded from the scalp of an archer using computer-averaging technique. Auditory Evoked Potentials (AEPs) occur at different latencies and with various relations to the auditory stimuli. So, the purpose of the manuscript is to evaluate the Long-latency Auditory Evoked Potentials in measure during Archery shooting.

2 METHOD

15 elite archers (N=9 males; N=6 females) volunteered to participate to the study. Shootings were performed from 18 m that is official competition distance with target face. Auditory Evoked Brain Potentials (AEBPs) were recorded 200 ms before and 800 ms after the fall of the clicker over the vertex during the shots of each subject. The EEG was recorded with Ag/AgCl electrodes mounted in an elastic cap (Electro-Cap). The impedances for each electrode were below 5K Ω . The EEG derivations (scalp sites) were used in accordance with the "International 10-20" system (Jasper, 1958). The ERP data were averaged with the sweep beginning 200 ms before the stimuli and lasting until 800 ms after stimulus onset. Transient ERPs (N100, P200) were band pass filtered (1–12 Hz, Butterworth 12 dB/oct slopes). N100 amplitude and latency were defined at the maximum negativity between 50 and 150 ms, and P200 amplitude and latency at the maximum positivity between 150 and 250 ms. The M2 electrode was chosen to be the site of measurement for both N100 and P200 referenced to Cz (Golob et al., 2002).

3 RESULTS

Fall of the clicker during archery shooting evokes a negative going wave (N100) with the amplitude of 16,5959 μ V and latency of 129 msec and a positive going wave (P200) with the amplitude of -6,9845 μ V and latency of 180 msec achieved by grand averaging the data set.

4 DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION

It can be concluded that as responding to the fall of the clicker or the click sound is not a simple activity, having high amplitudes during archery shooting can also be explained by involving several regions of the brain in responding to the stimulus.

- Mann, D.L. and Littke, N., 1989. Shoulder injuries in archery. *Canadian journal of sport sciences*, 14(2), pp.85-92.
- Leroyer, P., Hoecke, J. V., Helal, J. N. (1993). Biomechanical study of the final push-pull in archery. *Journal of Sports Sciences*, 11, 63-69.
- Ertan H., Kentel B., Tümer S.T., Korkusuz F. (2003). Activation Patterns in Forearm Muscles during Archery Shooting. *Human Movement Science*, 22, 37-45.

FLOW EXPERIENCE AS A PREDICTOR OF ARCHERS' AUTONOMIC CARDIAC RECOVERY FOLLOWING AN ARROW SHOOTING SESSION

Nihal Dal¹, Serdar Tok¹

¹Manisa Celal Bayar University, Faculty of Sport Sciences, Manisa, Türkiye

nihal_arc@yahoo.com

tokserdar@gmail.com

Most of the previous studies focused largely on pre-competition negative emotional experiences such as anxiety, stress and related physiological responses before an important competition. However, less is known regarding the positive emotional experience such as flow and related physiological responses immediately after a competition.

In the present study, we aimed to investigate whether flow experience during arrow shooting may have an account for the archers' post-shooting autonomic cardiac recovery responses represented as heart rate variability (HRV).

47 adult archers completed state version of Flow Scale immediately after 10 arrows shooting from 18m to 80cm diameter target. Participants' heart rate variability was also measured for 4 minutes after the arrow shooting session. Heart rate variability was expressed as low frequency (LF), high frequency(HF) and LF/HF ratio.

The results of the regression analyses showed that the overall flow score was able to explain a significant amount of variation in both HF and LF/HF ratio. However, flow scores failed to explain variation in LF.

The results obtained from the present study provided evidence that archers' flow experience during a shooting session may give rise to more efficient autonomic cardiac recovery immediately after a shooting session which is vital for the preparation for next activity.

Keywords: Heart rate variability, flow, archery.

Training Applications

FROM SENSOR DATA TO COACHING IN ALPINE SKIING – A SOFTWARE DESIGN TO FACILITATE IMMEDIATE FEEDBACK IN SPORTS

Richard Brunauer¹, Wolfgang Kremser¹ and Thomas Stöggl²

¹Salzburg Research Forschungsgesellschaft GmbH Jakob-Haringer-Straße 5, 5020 Salzburg, Austria e-mail: {richard.brunauer,wolfgang.kremser}@salzburgresearch.at

² Department of Sport and Exercise Science, University of Salzburg Schlossallee 49, 5400 Hallein, Austria e-mail: thomas.stoeggl@sbg.ac.at

Keywords: Alpine Skiing, Real-Time Coaching, Software Design, Sensor Data

Abstract. Thanks to wearable sensor technologies, it became feasible to quantify human kinematics cheaply and comprehensively during sports. However, it is often left to the user to infer any qualitative information from the data, leaving users confused about their performance and what actions to take next. Mere self-quantification and the provision of statistics are not a selfpurpose. This paper presents a high-level process to transform sensor data into immediate feedback as coaching instructions. Individual software and process design aspects are discussed based on an example implementation for Alpine skiing. In detail, this paper aims (1) to describe the transformation from raw sensor data to coaching recommendations from a software engineering and data-centric perspective; (2) to propose a high-level software design for coaching applications in sports that is applicable for historical analyses as well as for realtime feedback; (3) to decompose the task of developing coaching applications into independent, manageable research subtasks; and (4) to show software engineers which data structures and interactions to implement, and how data are transformed during the process.

1 OUTLINE

In a common data generation and activity recognition process, the user gets equipped with one or multiple sensors (like Inertial Measurement Units, IMUs) on their body and/or sports equipment. These sensors directly capture physical phenomena (e.g. acceleration, rotational velocity) over a certain amount of time. After data generation, the resulting multivariate time series is processed to recognize activities, such as sitting, walking or sleeping. In the context of wearable computing, the *Activity Recognition Chain* (ARC) (Roggen et al., 2011) is a standard process to derive activity information from a multivariate time series. It divides the classification task into four stages (Fig. 1).

This procedure can be adapted to sports by defining "activity" as using a certain technique within a discipline. Recognizing techniques is a general prerequisite for a wider, more useful set of application scenarios, including coaching. We propose an extension of the ARC by add-ing the tasks of assessing and coaching after activity recognition. This *Extended ARC* already presents a holistic picture of how data are transformed into coaching instructions and how coaching systems can look like.



Figure 1: Extended ARC: Extension of ARC for two tasks of assessment and coaching.

The *Extended ARC* requires data structures to transition from time series to more structured data objects that represent concrete instances of an activity. This segmentation happens at step 4 of the ARC. For example, in Alpine skiing, IMU's time series can be segmented into ski turns (step 2) of a specific kind of skiing style (step 4). A helpful coaching system combines statistical results about turns with expert knowledge (step 5) to present recommendations (step 6) regarding the user's current skill level. Thus, at step 5, individual turns can be compared with targets (e.g. skiing as a world cup racer) or thresholds (e.g. reaching a specific speed) to achieve a qualitative assessment of the current user's skill. Finally, at step 6, assessed turns are bundled by looking at specific features as speed, turn direction, piste's slope etc. An expert's ruleset provides predefined coaching instructions to improve the user's performance. The *Extended ARC* provides a structured high-level abstraction on data processing in coaching applications.

2 IMPLEMENTATION

With the emergence of smaller wearable sensors and the added value of real-time feedback, solely historical data analysis is wasteful. To facilitate immediate assessments, and consequently immediate coaching instructions, algorithms must process incoming data continuously in a stream of small data batches. These small data batches successively pass the different stages of the *Extended ARC* process and decreases the computational delay of the feedback.

We implemented this functionality by adopting the concept of Reactive programming via the *ReactiveX* framework ("ReactiveX," 2018). It allows for an asynchronous workflow in which independent subcomponents automatically process new arriving data batches, decomposing development into smaller, distinct tasks.

We have implemented the *Extended ARC* for use in Alpine skiing to test and demonstrate the usefulness of the proposed design and show its potential in future coaching applications. Finally, the combination of the *Extended ARC* and the *ReactiveX* framework reveals two further benefits. First, from a project management-perspective the decomposition of the whole coaching tasks into small algorithmic components results in a set of manageable tasks. For example, one team can focus on recognizing turn switch points, and other teams can focus on edge angle and g-force calculation. It is easy to add and remove algorithms in the stack. The interfaces are well defined. Second, data structures are well defined between *Extended ARC* steps. An object-oriented implementation reduces the effort on data handling, data export, testing, debugging etc.

REFERENCES

ReactiveX. (2018). Retrieved December 11, 2018, from http://reactivex.io/

Roggen, D. et al. (2011). Wearable Computing - Designing and Sharing Activity-Recognition Systems Across Platforms, (June 2011).

DIRECT MOBILE COACHING & A SOFTWARE FRAMEWORK FOR THE CREATION OF MOBILE FEEDBACK SYSTEMS

Martin Dobiasch¹, Michael Stöckl¹, and Arnold Baca¹

¹University of Vienna Auf der Schmelz 6a, Vienna, Austria e-mail: {martin.dobiasch, michael.stoeckl, arnold.baca}@univie.ac.at

Keywords: Mobile Coaching, Ubiquitous & Pervasive Computing, Pegasos.

Abstract. Advances in technology within the last decades have made smartphones attractive for the creation of mobile feedback systems. However, creating such systems from scratch requires a high amount of programming skills. We present Direct Mobile Coaching as a way to design mobile feedback systems and PEGASOS a framework implementing this concept. Results of the application of the framework shows that the amount of code can be reduced by up to 90%.

1 INTRODUCTION

Over the last decades the capabilities of mobile phones have increased drastically. Featuring multi-core CPUs they are capable of providing real-time feedback based on sensor data. Thus, especially Android-based smartphones seem to be an inexpensive platform for the creation of feedback systems. However, due to, amongst other factors, the complexity of the Android ecosystem, creating mobile feedback systems for smartphones can be cumbersome and error prone. Moreover, in order to be user friendly, feedback systems usually require several repetitive features such a user- and sensor-management. With limited budgets and short time lines scientists require toolboxes allowing the fast creation of prototypes.

2 IMPLEMENTATION OF A FRAMEWORK FOR THE CREATION OF MOBILE FEEDBACK SYSTEMS

The framework PEGASOS (Dobiasch et al., 2016) implements the concept of Direct Mobile Coaching (DMC). Based on the ideas of Mobile Coaching (Baca et al., 2010) this concept is built around the idea of creating feedback systems using mobile devices such as smart phones. On these mobile devices a software application is responsible for collecting data. Based on this data feedback is given to the athletes in real-time. Additionally, the data is sent to a server. There the data is stored in a database and further live-computations can be performed by an AI-module. After an activity is completed further feedback can be derived by one or more Post-Processing-modules.

3 APPLICATIONS

The framework PEGASOS has been used for several research applications. They cover a broad variety of use-cases, sports and levels of complexity. Using the framework, the required amount of lines of code can be reduced by up to 90%.

3.1 Data Recording

In order to record heart rate and speed of up to 30 school children during physical education (PE) classes, in parallel, PEGASOS was used to create simple to use and in-expensive recording system for recording data for a Diploma-thesis Rath (2017). The system features two types of apps: the main app for the children and an app used by the teacher to start and stop the recording. While commercially available systems can achieve similar ease of use the developed system had several benefits. Firstly, using already existing hardware the additional costs for this project could be kept at a minimum. Secondly, having the data synchronised and stored in a relational database allowed for an easier post-processing for the actual analysis of the data.

3.2 Research on Feedback

PEGASOS is also used for investigating the effects of different feedbacks on performance in several (pilot) studies. Since individual components of the framework can be easily configured or replaced, this can be easily accomplished. Instead of having to create complete systems from scratch, researchers can focus on creating novel feedback components. During these projects main attention was kept on the creation of the feedback components rather than having to create a complete system from scratch. Additionally, results from these investigations are incorporated into PEGASOS and can thus be used for other projects as well.

3.3 Applied Feedback Systems

The ERASMUS+ funded project Te(a)chIn Sport was aimed at increasing the motivation of young people and students to be more physically active (Te(a)chIn, 2018). For this purpose, two novel multi-player games were developed using PEGASOS. These games are played using mobile phones. Prior to playing the games, students have to perform an entry test which assess their current fitness level. During the game points are awarded based on the physical performance in relation to the individual fitness. Since the games rely on interactions between players their implementation makes use of all aspects of DMC.

4 CONCLUSIONS

The presented framework has the ability to be used by sport scientists with some programming knowledge to create a wide variety of feedback systems. Due to being open source it can be used without licensing costs. Furthermore, we believe that building feedback systems along the concepts of DMC can be a good starting point for the creation of scientific applications.

REFERENCES

- Baca, A., Kornfeind, P., Preuschl, E., Bichler, S., Tampier, M., & Novatchkov, H. "A serverbased mobile coaching system," *Sensors*, 2010, Vol. 10, No. 12, pp. 10640–10662.
- Dobiasch, M., & Baca, A., "Pegasos Ein Generator für Feedbacksysteme," In Sportinformatik 2016. 11. Symposium der dvs Sportinformatik, 14.-16. September 2016, dvs (Hrsg.), 2016, p. 18.
- Rath, A., "Und los!" Bewegungszeiten und Bewegungsintensitten im Sportunterricht mit Schwerpunkt Basketball, Fußball und Völkerball, Diplomarbeit, Universität Wien, 2017.

Te(a)chIn Sport. Erasmus+ Funding Scheme of the European Commission, http://www.teachinsport.eu, accessed: 2018-10-18.

TRAIN4U - MOBILE SPORT DIAGNOSTIC EXPERT SYSTEM FOR USER-ADAPTIVE TRAINING

Ingolf Waßmann, Nikolaj Troels Graf von Malotky, and Alke Martens

Chair of Practical Informatics, Institute of Computer Science, University of Rostock Albert-Einstein-Str. 22, Rostock, Germany e-mail: {ingolf.wassmann, nikolaj.graf_von_malotky, alke.martens}@uni-rostock.de

Keywords: Expert System, Virtual Coach, Training Adaption, Sport Diagnostic, Empirical Study.

Abstract. In the field of competitive and professional sports, regular performance and fitness tests are conducted in order to evaluate the success of training, to optimize training programs and to give general information about the performance ability during sport. In these tests, persons are regularly exposed to physical stress while different physiological parameters are determined e.g. using lactate diagnostics or spiroergometry. These methods have some disadvantages. Measurements are not performed during real exercises, but under controlled laboratory conditions. Hence, the significance of derived parameters is questionable. Furthermore, measurements are extensive (e.g. spiroergometry) and/or invasive (e.g. lactate diagnostics). Important parameters like oxygen saturation are determined only indirectly.

Based on near-infrared spectroscopy (NIRS), the TrainOXY system is designed for application in real sport situations. The mobile solution consists of a small sensor unit that can be attached to any part of the body, and a mobile app for smartphones and smartwatches. This allows non-invasive and real-time monitoring of different parameters like pulse rate (PR), pulse index (PI), tissue hemoglobin index (THI), and muscle oxygen saturation (SmO2) during training sessions.

In the sub-project Train4U, the University of Rostock develops an expert system to reveal user-adapted training information based on different parameters that are presented in this contribution. Training plans are generally static, that means once the plan has been created, there's no adaption to current conditions at runtime and the training goal cannot be changed. Parameters like sick days, poor nutrition, lack of sleep, and stress are ignored. Consequently, training goals are not achieved and athletes or coaches cannot take corrective action in time or rather understand the reasons for failure, although appropriate expert knowledge is available. For this reason, we present an approach for monitoring those parameters in order to automatically analyze and optimize current training processes. Based on an extensive literature overview of parameters that influence sport performance, we build our domain model that we used in an empirical study in order to determine significance level of each parameter. More than 100 test subjects (professionals, amateurs and non-athletes) took part of questionnaires and interviews. Then, we discussed the practical relevance of these parameters regarding challenges of human-computer interaction design for mobile devices and cognitive load while performing sport. Consequently, we derived a reduced model of relevant performance parameters as a foundation for our rule-based expert system including psyche, nutrition, sleep, training partner, injury/disease, alcohol consumption, received perception of exertion (RPE), training time, environment, and weather. We formalized our domain knowledge as rules that specify conditions and corresponding reactions in terms of virtual coach advices and training adaptions like: "If temperature is higher than 28° C, humidity is higher than 80 percentage and it's windless, there's a high heat stroke risk, thus it's recommended to reduce maximum performance to 50 percentage and training duration to 30 minutes."

A first prototype in the form of an Android app was developed, which serves as a proof of concept. While some parameters such as weather and environment are determined automatically by the system, the remaining parameters are collected by self-assessment that users have to do before and after the workout. During workout, the virtual coach monitors user's performance by observing the sensor data (PR, PI, THI, and SmO2). Taking the gathered preworkout information and our knowledge base into account, the virtual coach gives live feedback in the form of messages like: "Please reduce performance." or "Please finish your workout."

All data including pre-workout and post-workout information as well as sensor data during workout is stored in a database. In future, AI technologies like neuronal networks will be included in order to derive new rules based on individual user statistics. The system will learn to automatically adapt existing rules regarding gathered performance parameters by users.

SYSTEMATIC COMPARISON OF CLUB MANAGEMENT INFOR-MATION SYSTEMS (CMIS)

T. Blobel¹and M. Lames²

¹ Technical University of Munich Georg-Brauchle-Ring 60/62, D-80992 Munich, Germany e-mail: thomas.bobel@tum.de

² Technical University of Munich Georg-Brauchle-Ring 60/62, D-80992 Munich, Germany e-mail: martin.lames@tum.de

Keywords: Software Comparison, Information Systems, Computer Science, Sports Management, Decision support.

Abstract. In football clubs there are different, traditionally isolated sources of information. This results in fundamental need for a central club management information system (CMIS) that could help, to support the employees at the club with information that they need for their daily decisions. Different systems are already available. But it is fundamental to analyze the current situation at the clubs and the performance and specification of the systems. Therefore, a theoretical best case concept has been developed and based on that, a systematic analysis of the current systems has been done.

1. INTRODUCTION

In top-level sports, typically information is generated by experts from many different subsystems and sub-organizations of a professional club. There are different sources of information (such as club-management, public relations, team-management, medical, athletics... etc.) and every field has its own systems to generate and store this information (Lames & Perl, 1997). Different companies realized this issue and developed comprehensive information systems to support the sport organizations. The specifications of these systems are very different, though. Some focused one special field, like medical data and extended their systems later to other fields. Others followed the idea of one central system for different departments. In economy, information systems for companies are a research area already for years. There, we find various software solutions with different specifications available (Hevner, March, Park, & Ram, 2004). The aim of this study is to follow the established methods of economy and adopt these to the special needs and situation in sport organizations.

2. METHODS

The chief objective of determining a concept for a CMIS survey is that it should meet the needs of the employees at the organization. Therefore it is important to detect how they work, which data is relevant for them and in which form data is needed. Previous work has helped to deduce this information (Blobel & Lames, 2018). Because of the huge scope of such a CMIS,

this analysis has to focus on a more general view to cover the whole range of such a system and couldn't get too deep into each field. That leads to the following relevant main components: Data sources, application programming interface (API), server/data base and user interface.

This very general topics lead to a structured table with the following ten categories: A) Field/department, B) Features, C) User Profile, D) General CMIS, E) Mobile, F) User Interface, G) Support, H) Security, I) Interfaces/API and J) Data Analysis. Each of these categories has more detailed subitems, so that the total number of items in that interview table is 171.

Before the interview, a structured analysis of the product website is done and after the interview, a summarized information sheet is sent to the contact person, the review the information. In the case of no possibility to interview on of the experts of the company, only the general available information will be used and be labeled in the results section.

3. RESULTS

The interviews are still going on and will be finished at the end of February. First results showed, that it is a very small area with only 15 participants, that fulfil our criteria of a CMIS. But still, there are many overlaps and general features, that could be already worked out.

4. **DISCUSSION**

The current situation with many products in the market makes it necessary to get systematic information about CMIS in sport organizations. The study should give not only a comparison but also develop benchmarks for the most basic concepts

This general overview helps to identify the most critical functions of CMIS that may be subject to more detailed follow up studies, e.g. for systems with a medical focus or solving the problem of inexperienced users, especially head coaches. Reviewing software solutions for certain problems in sports and pointing our benchmarks or best practices will be a classical topic for sports informatics with increasing impact stimulated by increasing informatics support for sports practice.

- Blobel, T., & Lames, M. (2018). Information Systems for Top-Level Football with Focus on Performance Analysis and Healthy Reference Patterns. In M. Lames, D. Saupe, & J. Wiemeyer (Eds.), *Proceedings of the 11th International Symposium on Computer Science in Sport (IACSS 2017)* (p. 170). Konstanz.
- Hevner, A. R., March, S. T., Park, J., & Ram, S. (2004). Design Science in Information Systems Research. *Management Information Systems Quarterly*, 28(1), 75–105.
- Lames, M., & Perl, J. (1997). Einsatzbereiche der Sportinformatik. Konzepte f
 ür Entwicklung und Einsatz sportinformatischer Werkzeuge. In J. Perl, M. Lames, & W.-D. Miethling (Eds.), *Informatik im Sport: ein Handbuch*. Schorndorf: Hofmann.

EFFECTS OF 8-WEEKS WHOLE BODY VIBRATION TRAINING ON ITN SCORES AND SERVE SPEED OF ADOLESCENT TENNIS PLAYERS

İ. Bayram¹, H. Ertan²

¹Amasya University, Akbilek Mahallesi, Muhsin Yazıcıoğlu Cd., 05100, Amasya, Turkey i.bayram43@gmail.com

> ²Eskişehir Technical University, 2 Eylül Kampüsü, 26555, Tepebaşı, Eskişehir, Turkey hayriertan@gmail.com

Keywords: Whole body vibration, ITN scores, Serve speed

Abstract. The aim of the current study was to investigate the effects of Whole Body Vibration (WBV) training on some tennis performance parameters like International Tennis Number (ITN) scores and serve speed. 19 tennis players (training group: 9, control group: 10) participated in the research as volunteers. Defined parameters were measured before and after the training protocol. While control group was following regular tennis training, intervention group practiced WBV training for eight weeks (3 times a week, 1 level up for every fortnight, 15-20 mins per section). Consequently, it has been revealed that WBV training made an increase in ITN scores and serve speed performance of athletes.

1 INTRODUCTION

It is known that WBV might increase intra-muscular and inter-muscular coordination of the muscles and consequently, could improve some motoric features such as strength, speed and flexibility by making an impact on especially muscle spindles and golgi tendon organs (Albasini et al., 2010).

ITN on Court Assessment test was created by International Tennis Federation in 2003 and it consists of five different section (Groundstroke Depth, Volley Depth, Groundstroke Accuracy, Serve and Mobility). It is an easy and effective tool to assess performance levels of especially recreative, beginner and middle level tennis players. Despite of its weaknesses (i.e. stable ball feeding, assessment of the stroke in a closed environment, only main strokes' assessment) it has been using by tennis coaches widely all around the world (http-1).

Serve is the only closed skill of the game and it has been seen the most important and difficult stroke of the tennis game (Sweeney et al., 2012). An effective serve requires not only appropriate strength but also a proper kinetic chain from bottom to up. Elliott (2006) reported the impact percentages of different joints which contribute serve speed as: %40 shoulder internal rotation, %30 palmar flexion, %15 arm horizontal flexion. ITN test and serve speed are strong indicators of tennis performance in this regard.

2 METHODS

2.1 Participant

Nineteen tennis players randomly divided into 2 groups (Training Group: age: $21,55\pm2,69$ year, training age: $32,44\pm13,42$ month, height: $171,44\pm8,06$ cm, weight: $63,66\pm12,62$ kg Control Group: age: $21,40\pm2,59$ year, training age: $37,30\pm21,74$ month, height: $172,10\pm9,82$ cm weight: $64,90\pm11,22$ kg). While control group (n=10) followed the regular tennis training (3 days a week), the training group (n=9) followed an increasing incrementally whole body vibration training program (8 weeks, 3 times per week, 15-20 minutes per session) with different frequencies and amplitudes before the regular training. ITN scores and serve speed were taken before and after the training period by using a radar gun (The JUGS Gun, Tualatin, OR, USA) and a ball throwing machine (Prince Deluxe Professional II, Atlanta, USA).

3 RESULTS

Maximum ITN scores and serve speed in pre and post-test show statistically significant differences (p<0,05) for both groups. ITN scores of training group was 162.55 ± 40.52 in pretest and increased to 230.11 ± 40.44 in post-test. Besides, serve speed was $102,66\pm15,74$ km/h in pre-test and increased to 118.11 ± 22.53 km/h in post-test. ITN scores of control group was 197 ± 67.28 in pre-test and increased to $205,10\pm54.70$ in post-test, in addition to this, serve speed was $104,80\pm27.65$ km/h in pre-test and increased to $110,11\pm23.68$ km/h in post-test.

4 DISCUSSION

As a conclusion, WBV training, which is performed three times a week positively affect ITN scores and serve speed of adolescent tennis players.

REFERENCES

Albasini, A., Krause, M., & Rembitzki, I. V. (2010). Using Whole Body Vibration in Physical Therapy and Sport E-Book: Clinical practice and treatment exercises. Elsevier Health Sciences.

http-1 http://en.coaching.itftennis.com/media/113844/113844.pdf

Sweeney, M., Reid, M., & Elliott, B. (2012). Lower limb and trunk function in the high performance tennis serve. Asian Journal of Exercise and Sports Science, 9(1), 13-20.

Elliott, B. (2006). Biomechanics and tennis. British journal of sports medicine, 40(5), 392-396.

AUTOMATIC LOAD CONTROL IN ENDURANCE TRAINING

Katrin Hoffmann¹

¹Technische Universität Darmstadt Institute for Sportscience Magdalenenstraße 27, Darmstadt, Germany e-mail: hoffmann@sport.tu-darmstadt.de

Keywords: Modelling, load courses, cardiac drift, individual heart rate response.

Abstract. This paper analyses individual load courses in training sessions controlled by HR.

1 INTRODUCTION

In endurance training, heart rate (HR) is often used for prescribing exercise intensity. However, high individuality of HR responses complicates optimal training control. Modeling and predicting individual HR courses enables a training control without overstraining nor under challenging the trainee. This individuality of HR responses is not sufficiently represented in HR models (Ludwig et al, 2018). Regarding to literature, load is expected to be gradually decreased to keep HR levels constant due to cardiac drift (Wingo et al., 2005), particular in the last part of exercise. This study evaluated if gender, time under load or progress of training influences characteristics of load controlled by HR in continuous exercise during a long-term training process.

2 MATERIAL AND METHODS

Nine healthy participants (four males, five females; age: M = 26.3 y, SD = 3.7y) performed a twelve-week training intervention on a bike ergometer after having signed informed consent.

Training frequency was 3 times 30 minutes of intensive training per week with three different training methods (Intensive Interval Method, Extensive Interval Method, Intensive Continuous Method (ICM)). Load was applied corresponding to maximum heart rate (HR_{max}) obtained in an exhaustion test prior to training. During the study, load was adjusted twice according to the individual training process. After a 5 minute warm-up, load was set to 75% HR_{max} for 5 minutes in ICM. Subsequently, load was automatically adjusted corresponding to individual HR responses until the end of exercise (automatic load control – ALC). Every 60 seconds, load was automatically increased or reduced by 10 W in case the HR exceeded/ fell below the predefined training HR (75%HR_{max} \pm 5 bpm). HR and load courses of 108 training sessions were analyzed during ALC. Three courses were excluded due to measuring errors.

3 RESULTS

Load was reduced due to exceeding HR responses in all participants. One participant did not show a reduction in 3 training sessions. Additionally, load increases were found, especially in the first 5 minutes as well as in the last 5 minutes of ALC. The number of load adjustments are displayed in Table 1.

	10 – 14 min	15 – 19 min	20 – 24 min	25 – 29 min	Total
Load increases	132	15	18	28	193
Load reductions	69	99	66	72	306

Table 1: Number of load adjustments during ALC in distinct time slots. Note: ALC started 10 minutes after onset.

No overall influence of training week, time under load or gender ($\chi^2(4) = 4.6$; p > 0.05) on load adjustments were found. Number of adjustments during training showed individual differences (*M*=4.6; *SD*=2.2; $\chi^2(16)=25.3$; p>0.05). 2 prototypical courses are displayed in Fig. 1.



Figure 1: Prototypical load, HR courses and HR training zones of 2 female participants during the ALC.

4 DISCUSSIONS

In the presented sample, no influence of training, gender or time after onset of exercise was observed. This was possibly caused by varying training status prior to the training intervention and the small sample size. The high number of load increases in the first 5 minutes were caused by the conservative load application in order to prevent overstraining. In contrast to literature, the number of load increases was also elevated in the last 5 minutes of training. In 13 courses, the load was increased until the end of training. Due to the small tolerance for HR variances during the ALC, load adjustments caused by HR variability are possible.

5 CONCLUSIONS

Adjustments enabling load control corresponding to HR responses were found throughout the training intervention independent of training, gender or time under load in the presented sample. In the sample, load reductions caused by cardiac drift were found as well as load increased in the last five minute of training. Modeling load courses providing individual endurance training corresponding to predefined HR training zone requires the integration of the high individuality of HR responses.

- Ludwig, M., Hoffmann, K., Endler, S., Asteroth, A., & Wiemeyer, J. (2018). Measurement, Prediction, and Control of Individual Heart Rate Responses to Exercise—Basics and Options for Wearable Devices. *Frontiers in physiology*, *9*.
- Wingo, J., LaFrenz, A., Ganio, M., Edwards, G., & Cureton, K. (2005). Cardiovascular drift is related to reduced maximal oxygen uptake during heat stress. *Medicine & Science in Sports & Exercise*, 37 (2), 248-255.

Miscellaneous

ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE IN SPORTS: ACTUAL STATE, TRENDS, AND FUTURE CHALLENGES

Oleg Solozobov

Russian Association of Computer Science in Sport, Russia e-mail: oleg@8d9.ru

Keywords: Artificial intelligence, AI, sport, machine learning, computer vision, data mining, data analysis, trends, betting, predictions, forecasting, biomechanics, sports management.

Abstract. Artificial Intelligence (AI) is already used in sports and is developing rapidly. Thus, the purpose of this study was to study the current state of AI in sports, as well as development trends.

1 INTRODUCTION

Sport is now an inseparable part of the international culture, which brings together millions of sports fans from different countries. The world market for team sports is projected to reach more than USD 25 billion by 2024, with an average annual growth rate of 8.1% (Research Nester, 2018). It is also expected that the global market of sports betting will reach approximately USD 155.49 billion by 2024, growing at a healthy CAGR of 8.83% between 2018 to 2024 (Zion Market Research, 2018). Therefore, it is not surprising that artificial intelligence (AI) is already widely distributed in sports. And the trend is such that the role of AI in sports will only grow.

2 ACTUAL STATE

Many major sports leagues and clubs NFL, NBA, NFL, NASCAR use AI in order to achieve better results. However, thanks to the rapid development of AI, it becomes possible to recognize and analyze sports information without the need for time-consuming human labeling (Le, 2017). The AI can analyze the match and player performance parameters in real time.

Such popular sports as basketball, hockey and baseball have already begun to use AI to improve the training process. They also use AI for scouting to discover young talents and players who are undervalued by the markets.

Already there is the first software that will allow on the basis of AI to analyze in real time data on biomechanics and the health of players in order to prevent injuries.

In the field of marketing, AI is now used in chatbots in order to create virtual assistants who respond to fan requests and provide them with up-to-date sports information in real time.

There is also a change in sports journalism. There are tools to automate the work with both video and natural language. In car racing, neural networks with deep learning improve safety. Wearable devices in combination with AI are used to optimize training processes and improve the performance of athletes.

In the betting world, machine learning algorithms are widely used to predict the results of sports events by both bookmakers, and cappers.

3 TRENDS AND FUTURE CHALLENGES

In the future, we can expect the preservation of the trend aimed at improving the algorithms for analyzing sports information. The first step is to develop faster algorithms for processing big data and testing the effectiveness of models to improve game strategies. Algorithms will also be developed, the purpose of which will be to improve the system of preparation for specific opponents.

In the near future, we should expect the appearance of smart assistants who will help coaches in making tactical and strategic decisions. Athletes intelligent assistants will be able to help in improving cognitive skills. Over time, the AI will be able to compete with the person in the position of a coach, and work in this direction will definitely be conducted.

Another area of work will be the improvement of sensors for wearable devices, from which the AI will take information.

In the field of sports marketing, AI will develop towards improving the quality of the generated content, depending on the experience and interests of the fan. There will also be created tools that will increase the activity of fans, such as smart tickets.

In the field of sports betting, we can expect an increase in the struggle between the algorithms of AI bookmakers, forecasters, and cappers.

4 CONCLUSIONS

The sports world is becoming more technological. AI in sports is developing towards automation, improving the methods of collecting and analyzing sports information. AI is used in sports marketing to generate content and create virtual assistants, search for talents, improve the performance of athletes, maintain health, improve safety of auto racing and predict the results of sports events.

It is worth expecting that in the future, AI in sports will evolve towards improving the collection of information and improving the algorithms for analyzing sports data. Smart assistants will appear for coaches to improve the training process and help in making strategic decisions, and for athletes to improve their cognitive skills. AI will be developed in sports marketing and betting.

Thus, we can say that we are only at the beginning of the path. There are still many challenges and scientific discoveries ahead of us.

- Le H, Carr P, Yue Y, Lucey P. (2017). Data-driven ghosting using deep imitation learning. In: MIT Sloan Sports Analytics Conference. Available online at www.sloansportsconference.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/1671-2.pdf
- Research Nester (2018). Team Sports Market: Global Demand Analysis & Opportunity Outlook 2024. Retrieved from https://www.researchnester.com/reports/team-sports-market/ 549
- Zion Market Research (2018). Global Sports Betting Market Is Expected To Reach Around USD 155.49 Billion By 2024. Retrieved from https://www.zionmarketresearch.com/news/ sports-betting-market

BIG DATA IN SPORTS MEDICINE: MACHINE LEARNING AND PRECISION PREDICTION

Kljuchnikov M.S., Samoylov A.S

State Research Center – Burnasyan Federal Medical Biophysical Center of Federal Medical Biological Agency

1 INTRODUCTION

Sport medicine today's facing a tough crisis. Performing boost in elite sports at present stage can no more be carried out with traditional manner, including training, medical and pharmacological approaching. But is possible with the use of high-tech approach. One of the most promising is Big Data Analysis and Machine Learning (ML) which allows us to determine the individual tracks for athletes' functional state (FS) dynamics and predict disadaptation as well as fitness peaks and "readiness windows".

Today we can operate the significant amount of data, aggregated during last 6 years by the Medical Info-Analytical System (MIAS) comprising of functional, biochemical, medical and psychological history of more than 10K elite Russian national teams athletes. But to the day we're not be ready to construct a foolproof, transparent and precise system to interpret then in complex.

2 METHODS

For 440 elite national teams athletes, using tech-stack: MySql Workbench v3.6 and KnimeTM v.3.5.1, we built ML models of functional state prediction, e.g. polynomial regression (PR), random forest (RF) and gradient boosting (GB). Training set included parameters registered during functional state monitoring in medical clinics: age, sport discipline, gender, heart rate, body mass index (BMI) and stress-index, systematic vascular resistance (SVR), also stated by our medical team, was chosen as the target parameter.

3 VALIDATION

We used MAPE calculation to establish the accuracy of each model.

$$MAPE = \frac{\sum_{t=1}^{n} \left| \frac{A_t - F_t}{A_t} \right|}{n} \times 100$$

4 **RESULTS**

Using Knime workflow we modeled athletes SVR. The nodes were xls.reader \rightarrow training/data set/custom model nodes (PL/RF/GB) and box plots for data visualization. Each of the ML models allowed to calculate the SVR values close to stated, but with different precision (Figure 1.) Lower accuracy was proved by PR model – 96,25%, RF and GB models were more accurate – 98,05% and 98,83% resp.



Figure 1: SVR (Pa·s/m³) stated by medical team and predicted by ML models, where Row is case.

ANOVA analysis and MAPE confirmed the accuracy of our models (Table 1.) Thereby the most accurate was the gradient boosting model, however other can be used to predict SVR and, probably, other functional state parameters of the elite sportsmen.

	GRADIENT	RANDOM	POLYNOMIAL
	BOOSTING	FOREST	REGRESSION
Min	-8,5508986	-8,5090608	-12,384892
Max	6,11053635	14,2069535	11,0639748
Mean	0,11040191	0,44697414	0,56476643
MAPE	1,17	1,95	3,75
Accuracy	98,83	98,05	96,25

Table 1: Error values for SVR prediction according to ML models.

5 CONCLUSIONS

Combination of ML methods for training models on a sufficient data allows the FS predictions of elite athletes with precise accuracy. The main challenge of our follow-up research is to load the ML models with more data, not only registered during functional diagnostics but full medical and training history of the national teams elite sportsmen, and apply neural network prediction approach to bring accuracy to 99-100%.

TOWARDS A GENERIC FRAMEWORK FOR SERIOUS GAMES

Josef Wiemeyer¹

¹Institute for Sport Science, Technische Universität Darmstadt Magdalenenstr. 27, 64289 Darmstadt e-mail: wiemeyer@sport.tu-darmstadt.de

Keywords: Serious Games, modular framework, interdisciplinary integration, double mission.

1 INTRODUCTION

Serious Games have seen a tremendous increase of interest in the last few years. However, there is no generally accepted definition of Serious Games. In this paper, a Serious Game is defined as a "digital game created with the intention to entertain and to achieve at least one additional goal (e.g., learning or health). These additional goals are named characterizing goals" (Dörner, Göbel, Effelsberg, & Wiemeyer, 2016, p.3). Therefore, Serious Games are full-fledged games aiming at accomplishing a double mission: to achieve the serious goal without compromising the experience of playing a game (player experience, PX). In this regard, Serious Games differ from gamification; this term denotes the application of game elements in non-gaming contexts.

In principle, Serious Games can be applied to any "serious" application field like health, education, tourism, marketing, or science. However, to develop high-quality Serious Games, an interdisciplinary approach is required including computer science, art and design, psychology, and pedagogy as well as experts from the application domain (Dörner et al., 2016). To establish a sound theoretical fundament, an interdisciplinary framework is required. So far, only few attempts have been made to develop domain-specific frameworks for selected application fields, e.g. exercising (exergames), education, and motor learning (e.g., Yusoff, Crowder, Gilbert, & Wills, 2009; Hardy, Dutz, Wiemeyer, Steinmetz, & Göbel, 2015; Wiemeyer & Hardy, 2013; Kooiman & Sheenan, 2015). However, current concepts are rather specialized and selective. What is still missing, is a generic framework for Serious Games that may be adapted to specific application domains. Therefore, the aim of this contribution is to develop such a framework and to demonstrate its usefulness by applying it to the domain of sport. This paper will be structured as follows: First, a modular approach is introduced comprising four modules (i.e., generic models, technology and design, specific models of gaming and player experience, and domain-specific models). Second, this approach is applied to Serious Games in Sport.

2 A MODULAR APPROACH

Considering the scientific basis of developing, evaluating, and implementing Serious Games, at least four domains can be distinguished (see Figure 1):

• Generic models of human behavior, including perception, action, emotion, motivation, and volition.

- Technology and design models
- Specific models of gaming and player experience
- Domain-specific models regarding the particular application field addressed by the Serious Game



Figure 1. Modular approach to Serious Games

According to Kooiman and Sheenan (2015) models can be comprehensive, i.e. addressing a phenomenon in holistic way, or targeted, i.e., focusing on specific aspects or components of a phenomenon. Of course, there can be an overlap of models. For example, assumptions of generic models concerning attention, emotions, and motivation may be included in and adapted to game-specific or domain-specific models. A comprehensive example is the adaptation of the flow concept to the Game Flow model (Sweetser & Wyeth, 2005). Similarly, technology and design are adapted to games.

- Dörner, R., Göbel, S., Effelsberg, W. & Wiemeyer, J. (2016). (eds.). Serious Games Foundations, Concepts and Practice. Cham: Springer International Publishing.
- Kooiman, B., & Sheehan, D. D. (2015). Exergaming theories: A literature review. *International Journal of Game-Based Learning (IJGBL)*, 5(4), 1-14.
- Hardy, S., Dutz, T., Wiemeyer, J., Göbel, S., & Steinmetz, R. (2015). Framework for personalized and adaptive game-based training programs in health sport. *Multimedia Tools and Applications*, 74, 5289-5311.
- Sweetser, P. & Wyeth, P. (2005). Game Flow: A Model for Evaluating Player Enjoyment in Games. *ACM Computers in Entertainment*, *3* (3), Article 3A.
- Wiemeyer, J. & Hardy, S. (2013). Serious Games and motor learning concepts, evidence, technology. In K. Bredl & W. Bösche (eds.), *Serious Games and Virtual Worlds in Education, Professional Development, and Healthcare* (pp.197-220). Heshey, PA: IGI Global.
- Yusoff, A., Crowder, R., Gilbert, L., & Wills, G. (2009, July). A conceptual framework for serious games. In Advanced Learning Technologies, 2009. ICALT 2009. Ninth IEEE International Conference on (pp. 21-23). IEEE.

USING VIRTUAL REALITY TECHNOLOGY FOR BOBSLEIGH SIMULATION

Margarita D. Belousova¹, Viktor A. Chertopolohov², and Anna P. Kruchinina²

¹Lomonosov Moscow state university address, Moscow, Russia e-mail: bmargaretd@yandex.ru

 ² Lomonosov Moscow state university address, Moscow, Russia
 e-mail: {a.kruch, psvr}@moids.ru

Keywords: Dynamic simulation, Bobsleigh, Instructions, Testing, Sport, Virtual Reality.

Abstract. In this work we talk about our approach to implement virtual reality technology for sport simulation. We present parts of bobsleigh simulator as example.

INTRODUCTION

Downhill on the bobsleigh track is quite expensive and don't available for most part of sportsmen. The same problem was solved in aerospace field by creation of simulators. Today all technologies used to produce full immersion simulators are known as virtual reality technology.

Realistic experience from simulations could be achieved using deep feedback that activates big amount of user's biological sensors. At the first place it is vision and vestibular system. The binocular vision system lets us easily tell with good accuracy how far away an object is placed. A stereoscopic projection is necessary for various simulated activities.

1 VIRTUAL REALITY TECHNOLOGY COMPONENTS

For imitate the bobsleigh movement towards the track we used dynamic imitation. The most suitable methods of dynamic imitation are combined simulation of gravitational inertial vector direction and fast angular movements simulation.

For visual simulation we used virtual reality equipment consisted of the screen, lenses, the housing, etc. It was necessary to determine HMD parameters needed for the training purposes. The image resolution, the viewing angle, a time delay in output of the image to the screen, the speed of pixel blanking, the value of distortion of the image at the edges serve as comparative characteristics. To determine those characteristics we used a simplified human sight model.

We developed special platform calibration method to achieve good dynamic and visual imitation synchronization quality. (Burlakov & Latonov (2018))

To create reliable simulation we suggest the next architecture:

- the model of track;
- the model of bob;

- the physical parameters: temperature of ice, materials of bob are loaded to mathematic model for simulation;
- the friction mathematical model for skate and ice. Friction mathematical model is a complex mechanical problem.

This way we constructed the simulation environment. Used modern max-min testing technology (Lemak & Lebedev (2013)) we added perturbations such as destruction of ice, disturbances during initial acceleration, losing of control because of pilot sudden movements. Thus we can compare real sportsmen's control during simulation with the optimal for initial conditions. In this way we added the new type of criteria, which can help to determine personal control quality for each pilot individually.

2 TESTING METHODOLOGY

Let's consider the problem of testing the bob's control. In the simplest situation, the equations of motion are presented in the linear form (1), where $u \in U$ is the sportsmens control and $v \in V$ are the perturbations.

$$\dot{x} = Ax + Bu + Cv,\tag{1}$$

We define the stabilization performance index as the functional.

$$J = ||x(t_k)||,\tag{2}$$

 t_k — the final moment of the motion.

We consider the two-person zero-sum dynamic game $\Gamma = (V, U, J)$ of two influences on system, the perturbation v and the control u, which are assumed to be independent. In this case we have the chain of inequalities (arbitrary control strategy) Throughout the following, we treat the lower bound J_0 as the best performance index of the control. The maximin testing technique permits us to obtain objective performance indices for the accuracy of the bob control.

The another technology used for rating is high frequency eye-tracking. The pilot attention maps could help in training proses and also use it for validate simulation correctness.

3 CONCLUSIONS

During the bobsleigh simulator development, the problem of real and virtual motions coordination became one of the most serious. To achieve success, we developed and adopted methods of dynamic imitation and visualization. We also used max-min technique as testing method.

- Lemak S. & Lebedev A. (2013). Testing the quality of control algorithms for complex dynamic systems. In *Moscow University Mechanics Bulletin. Vol. 68, no. 3.* (pp. 73–75). Cham: Allerton Press Inc.
- Burlakov, D., & Latonov, V. & Chertopolokhov, V (2018). Identification of parameters of model of movable motion platform. In *Journal of Mathematical Sciences. Vol. 22, no. 2.* Cham: Plenum Publishers.

FANTASY FOOTBALL MEETS MACHINE LEARNING: THE DYNAMIC GAME CASE AND A NOTE ON STRATEGY

Arseniy Stolyarov^{1,2}, Gleb Vasiliev^{1,2}

¹National Research University Higher School of Economics Laboratory of Sports Studies

² Toros Research

Keywords: Fantasy Football, Performance Analysis, XGBoost

Abstract.

Fantasy football is a popular game in which participants assemble a squad of real-world footballers and gain points for their successful performance during matchdays. In this paper, we continue our search for optimal ways of playing one of the most popular fantasy football competitions, the Fantasy Premier League, previously started in (Stolyarov & Vasiliev, 2017), where we presented a model for selecting the best possible team for the upcoming gameweek in terms of expected points for all the players predicted by machine learning algorithms.

Recall that our main approach is as follows. Denote by pts_i^{gw} the number of points scored by the *i*-th footballer in gameweek gw. Firstly, before each gameweek we utilise a machine learning approach to predict pts_i^{gw} for every footballer. Secondly, we solve zero-one IP of the following form ($\forall \varepsilon > 0$):

$$\sum_{i \in I} (\mathsf{pts}^{\mathsf{gw}}_{\mathsf{i}}(x_i^{gw} + k_i^{gw}) + (\mathsf{pts}^{\mathsf{gw}}_{\mathsf{i}} - 4)m_i^{gw} + \varepsilon(\mathsf{pts}^{\mathsf{gw}}_{\mathsf{i}}(y_i^{gw} + l_i^{gw}))) \to \max_{x_i^{gw}, y_i^{gw}, k_i^{gw}, l_i^{gw}, m_i^{gw}}, \quad (1)$$

subject to the the constraints on the maximum total number of players in the roster, the size of the starting squad, the maximum total number of players representing the same Premier League team, the total number of players having the same position, and the maximum total cost of the whole team imposed by the FPL rules. x_i^{gw} , y_i^{gw} , k_i^{gw} , l_i^{gw} , m_i^{gw} are binary variables corresponding to different statuses of the footballer (e.g. in our staring lineup, on the bench...). Combining the two steps, we manage to reach the top overall ranks in the leaderboard comparable to the result of (Matthews et al., 2012) while using a simpler model.

This article extends this basic myopic model from (Stolyarov & Vasiliev, 2017) in several ways. Firstly, we modify our objective function in order to include information on a number of future gameweeks. To this end, we change the target variable in our algorithm and predict the sum of points to be scored by a player in N future gameweeks, where optimal N is estimated empirically. Secondly, we transform the whole integer programming problem into a dynamic one. This requires modifying both the objective function and the set of constraints. Note that this approach allows us to calculate the maximum possible amount of points to be scored by a manager if all the results of the matches are known beforehand (Belien et al., 2017). Thirdly, we reformulate the problem of predicting the number of expected points for a set of all players

in the league as binary or multi-class classication problem in order to maximize the number of high scorers in the selected fantasy squad.

The remaining part of the work addresses the issue of optimal playing against a specic opponent. For example, consider the league of two players, A and B, where one of them has more points. What is the optimal strategy for A and B with only one gameweek left and when all chips have already been played? In such situation, the optimal choice of one player may depend on the squad of his opponent. For instance, A may try to replicate the B's squad; in this case, B will have no chance to outperform A in all possible scenarios. In order to be able to incorporate such strategic choices into the playing algorithm, we utilise a game-theoretic approach.

The dataset is combined from the one used in (Stolyarov & Vasiliev, 2017) (updated with the data from 2017/2018), additional data on shots and passes taken from open sources, and the top managers' squads (to account for the wisdom of the crowd effect by selecting players based on the potential future squads of the better fantasy managers (Goldstein et al., 2014).

To test the performance of this more advanced method, we simulate one full FPL season several times, each time following a simple procedure resembling a possible real-world approach. For each gameweek, we take the data from previous gameweeks, split the data into several folds in order to perform cross-validation and determine optimal hyperparameters for the model based on the value of a chosen evaluation metric (e.g. RMSE for the case of forecasting the number of points to be scored), train the model, make predictions for the upcoming gameweek, and use them when solving optimization problem (1). We then calculate the number of points scored across all matchdays and determine the final place taken in the tournament.

In the real-world FPL 2017/2018, the race for the victory remained wide open until the last round when a manager from Tanzania finally clinched the title, beating 5.9M participants. Our virtual manager was able to reach the 99th percentile in this worldwide ranking, which is a significant improvement in comparison to the results from (Stolyarov & Vasiliev, 2017).

- Belien, J., Goossens, D., & van Reeth, D. (2017). Optimization modelling for analyzing fantasy sport games. *INFOR: Information Systems and Operational Research*, *3*, 1–20.
- Goldstein, G. D., McAfee, R. P., & Suri, S. (2014). The wisdom of smaller, smarter crowds. In the fifteenth ACM Conference (pp. 471–488). ACM Press.
- Matthews, T., Ramchurn, S. D., & Chalkiadakis, G. (2012). Competing with humans at fantasy football: Team formation in large partially-observable domains. In Twenty-Sixth AAAI Conference on Artificial Intelligence.
- Stolyarov, A., & Vasiliev, G. (2017). Predict to Succeed: Optimal Fantasy Football Squad Formation Using Machine Learning Tools. Presented at the 1st International Conference on Economics of Football, Kazan, 2017.

ESPORTS BETTING MARKET INEFFICIENCY

Dmitry Dagaev¹ and Egor Stoyan²

¹ National Research University Higher School of Economics Moscow, Russia e-mail: ddagaev@gmail.com

² National Research University Higher School of Economics New Economic School Moscow, Russia e-mail: estoyan@nes.ru

Keywords: eSports, betting, market inefficiency, underdogs, social networks

Abstract. This paper documents inefficiency of betting market for CS:GO (Counter-Strike: Global Offensive) matches.

1 Introduction

By general definition, a market is efficient if all available information about the product is included in the price. Applying this definition to betting markets one can link existence of profitable strategies with market inefficiency. We show that the betting market for one of the most popular eSports games 'Counter-Strike: Global Offensive' (CS:GO) organized by one of the most popular platforms csgopositive.com is inefficient.

The literature about sports betting markets is rather vast. The authors obtain different results that depend on the sport and betting rules. Efficient markets were found in (Figlewski, 1979; Woodland & Woodland, 1994; Golec & Tamarkin, 1994; Croxson & Reade , 2013). Other papers reveal simple profitable betting strategies (Woodland & Woodland, 2001; Gray & Gray, 1997). Overpriced coefficients on home teams in NFL tournament were found in (Borghesi , 2007; Dare & Holland , 2004).

2 Results

To the best of our knowledge, this paper is the first to investigate efficiency of eSports betting markets. We derive simple betting strategies that are profitable in-sample. After that we run out-of-sample tests and find that our strategies are still profitable. We discuss possible causes of market inefficiencies such as specific betting rules and the fans' irrationality.

REFERENCES

Borghesi, R. (2007). The home team weather advantage and biases in the NFL betting market. *Journal of Economics and Business*, 59, 340 - 354.

Croxson, K. & Reade, J. (2013). Information and Efficiency: Goal Arrival in Soccer Betting. *The Economic Journal*, 124, 62 – 91.

- Dare, W.H. & Holland, A.S. (2004). Efficiency in the NFL betting market: modifying and consolidating research methods. *Applied Economics*, 36, 9 15.
- Figlewski, S. (1979). Subjective Information and Market Efficiency in a Betting Market. *Journal* of Political Economy, 87, 75 88.
- Golec, J., & Tamarkin, M. (1994). The degree of inefficiency in the football betting market. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 30, 311 323.
- Gray, P. & Gray, S. (1997). Testing Market Efficiency: Evidence from the NFL Sports Betting Market. *The Journal of Finance*, 52, 1725 737.
- Woodland, L., & Woodland, B. (1994). Market Efficiency and the Favorite-Longshot Bias: The Baseball Betting Market. *The Journal of Finance*, 49, 269 79.
- Woodland, L., & Woodland, B. (2001). Market Efficiency and Profitable Wagering in the National Hockey League: Can Bettors Score on Longshots? *Southern Economic Journal*, 49, 269 – 79.
POLYGENIC MODELING OF MUSCLE FIBERS COMPOSITION

Oleg Borisov¹, Nikolay Kulemin¹, Ildus Ahmetov^{1,2} and Edward Generozov¹

¹Federal Research and Clinical Center of Physical-Chemical Medicine of Federal Medical Biological Agency, 1A Malaya Pirogovskaya, 119992, Moscow, Russia e-mail: olegbor77@rcpcm.org; maveriksvao@gmail.com; generozov@gmail.com

> ² Kazan State Medical University, 49 Butlerov Street, 420012, Kazan, Russia e-mail: genoterra@mail.ru

Keywords: muscle fibers, polygenic modeling, linear regression.

Abstract. Polygenic modeling is a widely used method to aggregate the genetic signal from multiple markers and establish an association between genetic data and various traits. The present study was aimed at the investigation of genetic architecture of muscle fibers composition. We have built polygenic scores for 151 individuals and found significant association between their genetics profiles and muscle fibers ratio (linear regression p-value= $2*10^{-6}$).

1 INTRODUCTION

Recent advances in genetics field have allowed to perform genome-wide association studies and establish the genetics markers associated with different traits. Multifactorial traits, such as muscle fibers composition, are usually connected to multiple loci, each explaining a small part of heritability. To aggregate the signal from those loci into one value per individual, the method of polygenic scoring is widely used. The present study was aimed at selecting the best model reflecting the association between genetic data and muscle fiber composition using the polygenic scoring.

2 MATERIALS AND METHODS

The sample consisted of 152 individual who had both the genetic data (BeadChip genotyping arrays, 960.000 genetic markers) and the results of muscle biopsy immunohistochemical staining. The latter reflected the proportion of muscle fibers type I and type II in each individual and was used as the phenotype. The sample of 152 people was divided into two groups - a training sample (100 samples, 2/3 of the total sample) and a test sample (52 samples, 1/3 of the total sample). Beta coefficients and p-values for each of the genetic variants were calculated for the training sample from the linear regression. Polygenic scores were calculated for the test sample after clumping (for the uncorrelated variants). On average, polygenic scores were built based on 77.000-78.000 variants. The polygenic model for each individual in the test sample was constructed as a sum of the effects of single genetic variants. The effect of each variant was calculated as a product of the beta coefficient of the training sample summary statistics and the number of alleles in an individual of the test sample (0, 1 or 2). We used 100 thresholds of p-values to include the different number of variants, starting with the most significant variants (p=5*10⁻⁵) to the full model with inclusion of all variants p=1. Among 100 models, the best fitting one with the highest R² was selected. In total, we performed 1000 random sampling iteration, and the polygenic scores for each individual were averaged. The final score of one sample deviated significantly from the others and was excluded from the analysis. Prior to the exclusion of this sample, there was a significant deviation of the scores from the normal distribution (Shapiro-Wilk test, p-value = 8.307e-16). After the exclusion, the scores of the remaining 151 individuals were distributed normally (Shapiro-Wilk test, p-value = 0.2148).

3 RESULTS

We found a significant correlation between the observed ratio of muscle fibers of individuals and predicted values of polygenic scores (Pearson correlation coefficient = 0.36, 95% confidence interval 0.21-0.48, significance level p-value $1.97*10^{-6}$). The linear regression between polygenic scores and muscle fibers ratio was statistically significant (P= $2*10^{-6}$), the percentage of variance of the dependent variable (muscle fiber ratio) explained by the regression was 0.12 (figure 1). Thus, the constructed model showed a significant association between fiber composition and genetic profiles of the study participants.



Figure 1. The relation between muscle fibers ratio (pheno) and polygenic scores (PRS)

4 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This work was supported by the Russian Science Foundation, Grant No. 17-15-01436: "Comprehensive analysis of the contribution of genetic, epigenetic and environmental factors in the individual variability of the composition of human muscle fibers".

PRACTICAL APPLICATION AND INTERPRETATION OF ISOKINETIC TESTS' RESULTS FOR ESTIMATION OF ATHLETES' MUSCLE FIBER TYPE COMPOSITION

Elena V. Fedotova

Moscow State College of Olympic Reserve Malaya Filevskaya str., 34 - 2, Moscow, Russia e-mail: fedotovaev@uor2.ru

Keywords: Muscle fiber type composition, non-invasive methods, isokinetic testing, peak torque, talent identification

Abstract. The paper presents data characterizing the diagnostic potential of isokinetic testing for indirect non-invasive evaluation of athletes' muscle fiber type composition. The quality of the proposed approach is evaluated by comparing the results of high performance male and female athletes from different sports as well as by using obtained results for assessment of young athletes' sport potential.

1 INTRODUCTION

Measurement of the muscle fiber type composition can be a tool for talent identification and for defining an athlete's optimal exercise mode and duration in many other sports. The invasive technique of muscle biopsy is still the most accurate means for determining muscle fiber population, but is unsuitable for talent identification. A number of previous studies revealed statistically significant relationships of the results obtained using indirect non-invasive methods and biopsy data (Thorstensson et al, 1976; Gür et al, 2003, etc). The purpose of this study was to evaluate isokinetic testing's results in order to identify distinguishing features which would permit the estimation of muscle fiber type composition.

2 SUBJECTS AND METHODS

A total of 119 subjects – all active athletes - volunteered to participate in current crosssectional study. The participants were divided into 2 subgroups: elite athletes (n=48) and talented young athletes (n=71) which represented one of those sports: rowing, xc skiing, biathlon, speed skating, weightlifting, sprint track cycling, temp track cycling. All muscle tests were conducted with the isokinetic dynamometer (Biodex System Pro 4). The peak torque values were recorded for knee extension at 60, 180 and 300 deg·sec⁻¹. For an indirect assessment of muscle composition, the shape of the "force - velocity" curve is evaluated (Beam & Adams, 2014) as well as '300 to 60 deg·sec⁻¹' peak torque relation (Gregor et al, 1979, Worrell & Perrin, 1992, etc.).

3 MAIN RESULTS

Isokinetic tests results were used to evaluate each athlete's muscle fiber type composition. Clear and obvious difference was founded between results of athletes from 'explosive' and 'endurance' sub-groups (Fig.1) meaning both curve shape and '300 to 60 deg sec⁻¹' peak torque relation (last point of the curve). But athletes belonging to the same sub-group demonstrated similar results. And even if and when their strength level was different, shapes of the force-velocity curves followed each other (Fig.2). It may be considered as a confirmation of similarity of muscle fiber composition which is important for top results in specific sports.





Fig.1. Torque-velocity curves for isokinetic knee extension: elite male athletes (XC Skiing, Rowing and Weightlifting)

Fig.2. Torque-velocity curve for isokinetic knee extension: elite female XC Skiing and Biathlon athletes

Similar trends were found in both young athletes and elite athletes groups, male and female. For example, there was significant difference between '300 to 60 deg sec-1' peak torque relation for group of young weightlifters ($66,20\pm1.96$), young sprint track cyclists ($56,00\pm2,61$) and group of young skiers ($50,42\pm1.12$). It is necessary to emphasize important considerations on the practical use of this method, including the following: it is not applicable prior to or during puberty, it dependences on the availability of isokinetic dynamometer.

4 CONCLUSIONS

Indirect non-invasive evaluation of athletes' muscle fiber type composition based on isokinetic testing can provide only approximate assessment and cannot replace muscle biopsy with its accuracy of data obtained. But due to availability, painlessness and quickness of the procedure, the method is very promising for use in talent identification express-assessment.

- Beam, W.C. & Adams G.M. (2014). *Exercise Physiology Laboratory Manual* (7th ed.). California State Fullerton.
- Gregor, R. J., Edgerton, V. R., Perrine, J. J., Campion, D. S., & Debus, C. (1979). Torquevelocity relationships and muscle fiber composition in elite female athletes. *Journal of Appl Physiology*, 47, 388-392.
- Gür H, Gransberg L, vanDyke D, Knutsson E, Larsson L. (2003). Relationship between in vivo muscle force at different speeds of isokinetic movements and myosin isoform expression in men and women. *Eur Journal of Appl Physiol*. 2003;88(6):487-96.
- Thorstensson A, Karlsson J. (1976). Fatiguability and fiber composition of human skeletal muscle. *Acta PhysiolScand* 1976; 98:318-22.
- Worrell, T., & Perrin, D. (1992). Hamstring muscle injury: the influence of strength, flexibility, warm-up and fatigue. *Journal of Orthopaedic and Sports Physical Therapy*, 16, 12-18.

ESTIMATION OF ANAEROBIC THRESHOLD BY DYNAMICS OF EMG ACTIVITY AND DEOXYHEMOGLOBIN CONTENT IN WORKING MUSCLE Orlova E. A.¹, Prilutskii D.A.², Borovik A.C.¹

¹ - Institute of Biomedical Problems RAS, Moscow, Russia;

Orlova92@gmail.com, asbor@mail.ru

² - OOO MKS, Zelenograd, Russia;

pdima@mks.ru

Keywords: Anaerobic threshold (AT), electromyography (EMG), deoxyhemoglobin (HHb).

Abstract. In the current study we describe the method for detection of the AT $(AT_{HHb-EMG})$ based on creating the dependence of HHb content on EMG intensity during a ramp test.

Introduction

Evaluation of aerobic performance is very important in the fields of sport, fitness, and medicine. Power at the anaerobic threshold (AT), as evaluated in an incremental exercise test, is widely used to predict aerobic performance and to select the optimal load in exercise training. Most described in the literature methods of AT detection use systemic parameters (blood lactate concentration, pulmonary ventilation, and O₂ consumption and CO₂ production rates, etc.). During ramp test along with changes in systemic parameters, muscle specific parameters are also changing. Changes in EMG intensity with increasing load reveal the process of involvement of muscle fibers to muscle contraction: at low- and moderateintensity load, an increase in exercise intensity at the final stage of the test is associated with the recruitment of high-threshold motoneurons and type II MFs, which have a lower oxidative capacity. Measured by near-infrared spectroscopy deoxyhemoglobin content (HHb) dynamics reflects O2 consumption by working muscle. In the current study we describe the method for detection of the AT (AT_{HHb-EMG}) based on creating the dependence of HHb content on EMG intensity during the test. This dependence has clearly seen inflection point, which was used to determine the time (or load) corresponding to AT. The method was validated by comparison the $AT_{HHb-EMG}$ with the well-described and widely used lactate threshold (AT_{La}) in cycling and The miniature device (weight \sim 35 g) was developed double poling incremental tests. specifically for the determination of AT by this method. The device consists of a near-infrared spectrometer (wave lengths 770, 810 and 850 nm) and electromyography, EMG electrodes are mounted in the device housing data is transmitted to the computer via Bluetooth. The device was tested in cycling ramp test, the obtained AT_{HHb-EMG} values were also compared with AT_{La}.

Methods

Cycling incremental test. The study involved 40 males (age: 26 (20–35) years; weight: 70 (65–85) kg) with different fitness levels. Each participant performed an incremental ramp test until exhaustion on an electromagnetic bicycle ergometer. The initial load, load increment rate, and revolution rate were 0 W, 15 W/min, and 60–70 rpm, respectively. 11 males repeated

the test within 1 wk. EMG activity was continuously measured in the middle part of *m. vastus lateralis* using a CP511 amplifier (Grass Telefactor, USA). Changes in the concentration of HHb were measured using a NIRO 200 spectrophotometer (Hamamatsu Photonics K.K., Japan).

Double poling test. The study involved 9 males (age: 26 (21–35) years; weight: 73 (66–84) kg). All subjects completed an incremental ramp test until exhaustion on a double poling ski ergometer SkiErg (Concept2, USA). The initial load, load increment rate and step duration were 25 W, 10 W/min and 2 min, respectively. EMG activity and HHb were measured in the distal half of *m. latissimus dorsi* as described above.

Testing the operability of the device

The study involved 9 young males (age 28 (22-36) years, height 180 (166-188) sm, weight 75 (67-86) kg), participants performed an incremental ramp test on an bicycle ergometer as described above. The recording device was fixed at *m. vastus lateralis*.

During the tests, blood sample $(20 \ \mu l)$ was taken from a fingertip every 2 min, lactate concentrations were determined using a Biosen C-line analyzer (EKF Diagnostics, Germany). The analog signals from both devices were digitized at a frequency of 1000 Hz using an E440 analog-to-digital converter (L-Card, Russia) and recorded using PowerGraph software (DISoft, Russia).

Results

Comparison of the ATHHb-EMG with the lactate threshold.

The power at $AT_{HHb-EMG}$ and AT_{La} were significantly correlated in both the cycling (r = 0.89, P < 0.001) and double poling (r = 0.92, P < 0.002) tests.

*Test-retest reliability of the AT*_{*HHb-EMG*}*.*

The power at $AT_{HHb-EMG}$ and at AT_{La} , maximal aerobic power (Wmax), and blood lactate content at exhaustion (La_{peak}) did not differ between the incremental cycling test and retest. The coefficient of variation (CV) was smallest for Wmax and largest for La_{peak}. CVs did not differ between the $AT_{HHb-EMG}$ and at AT_{La} , and were quite low [3.1% (0.8–5.4%) and 2.4% (1.0–8.0%), respectively].

Testing the operability of the device

The measurements that were performed using the developed device showed a high linear correlation between $AT_{HHb-EMG}$ and AT_{La} (R² = 0.95), the average deviation of individual values from the regression line was 5.8%).

The study was performed according to the Plan for Fundamental Research of the SRC RF Institute of Biomedical Problems RAS.

EVALUATION OF FOOT KINEMATICS DURING DISTANCE RUNNING ON DIFFERENT SURFACES IN REAL WORLD ENVIRONMENTS

Markus Zrenner¹, Christoph Feldner¹, Ulf Jensen², Nils Roth¹, Robert Richer¹ and Bjoern M. Eskofier¹

¹Friedrich-Alexander-Universität Erlangen-Nürnberg (FAU), Department of Computer Science Machine Learning and Data Analytics Lab Erlangen, Germany e-mail: {markus.zrenner, christoph.feldner, nils.roth, robert.richer, bjoern.eskofier}@fau.de

> ² Finance & IT – IT Innovation, adidas AG Herzogenaurach, Germany e-mail: ulf.jensen@adidas.com

Keywords: Wearable Sensors, inertial measurement units, running, terrain, foot kinematics

Abstract. Despite the fact, that distance running is an outdoor sport most studies regarding foot kinematics have been conducted indoors in laboratories due to the stationary measurement equipment. Small and low-cost inertial measurement units (IMU) have proven to be accurate measurement tools for foot kinematics. In this study, we used such IMUs to evaluate the effect of different running terrains on foot kinematics in a real world scenario. For data collection 20 amateur runners ran for at least one kilometer on six different surfaces, which were asphalt, tartan, gravel, bark mulch, grass and trail. From the acquired IMU data, we computed the sole angle, the maximum sole velocity, the range of motion in the frontal plane and the maximum pronation velocity for each stride. The results show that the maximum angular rates as well as the absolute rotations are higher for stiffer and more regular surfaces like tartan and asphalt.

1 INTRODUCTION

Even though distance running is an outdoor sport, most of the research evaluating effects of different parameters on running kinematics has been conducted in controlled laboratory conditions. The reason for this can be explained by stationary measurement equipment like motion capture systems. With such a setup, Hardin et al. [1] showed that runners adapt to the running surface by changing various kinematic parameters. They proved that angular rates of the foot increase with higher surface stiffness. The surface stiffness was adjusted using a special treadmill. However, they could not evaluate their results on running surfaces outside the laboratory. Advances in sensor systems, especially in IMU technology and data processing, provide the possibility to compute running kinematic parameters of real runs [2]. In this work, we want to use IMU technology to evaluate the effect of the running terrain in foot kinematics in real world environments.

2 METHODS

We collected data of 20 amateur runners (11 male, 9 female), which wore shoes that were equipped with a 6D inertial measurement unit (IMU) including a 3D-accelerometer (range ± 16 g) and a 3D-gyroscope (range ± 2000 deg/s). Data was sampled with 200 Hz. All subjects ran on a predefined track including six different surfaces: asphalt, tartan, gravel, bark mulch, grass and trail (in a forest). The distance covered on each surface was at least 1 km. Single strides were segmented from the continuous IMU-data streams. For each stride we calculated the following four kinematic parameters from the IMU data: sole angle, maximum sole angle velocity, range of motion in the frontal plane and maximum pronation velocity [3]. For the evaluation of the kinematic parameters, we normalized the data of each individual subject by computing the z-score for each individual kineamtic parameter. Subsequently, we computed the mean value of all kinematic parameter for each terrain.

3 RESULTS

Figure 1 depicts the boxplots of the mean maximum sole velocity of the 20 different subjects for each terrain. The results show that the maximum angular rate of the foot rotation in the sagittal plane is higher for stiffer surfaces (e.g. asphalt and tartan) than for softer surfaces (grass, trail). The other three kinematic parameters show similar results.



Figure 1: Differences of maximum sole velocity for six different terrains

4 CONCLUSION

We conclude that kinematic parameter change on different terrains during running. Stiffer surfaces like asphalt and tartan yield higher angular rates and higher foot rotations. This work also proves, that IMUs are well suited to take kinematic parameter research from restricted indoor laboratories to runs in real-world environments.

- [1] Elizabeth C Hardin, Antonie J Van Den Bogert, and Joseph Hamill. Kinematic adaptations during running: effects of footwear, surface, and duration. *Medicine & Science in Sports & Exercise*, 36(5):838–844, 2004.
- [2] Christina Strohrmann, Holger Harms, Cornelia Kappeler-Setz, and Gerhard Tröster. Monitoring kinematic changes with fatigue in running using body-worn sensors. *IEEE transactions on information technology in biomedicine*, 16(5):983–990, 2012.
- [3] Markus Zrenner, Martin Ullrich, Pascal Zobel, Ulf Jensen, Felix Laser, Benjamin H Groh, Burkhard Duemler, and Bjoern M Eskofier. Kinematic parameter evaluation for the purpose of a wearable running shoe recommendation. *International Conference on Wearable and Implantable Body Sensor Networks*, 2018.

RELIABILITY ANALYSIS OF FOOT SCAN IN THE MEASUREMENT OF PLANTAR PRESSURE PARAMETERS AMONG NORMAL YOUNG PEOPLE

Jia-ying Yang¹, Ya-wei Song², and Jiang Li²

 ¹ Nanjing Normal University
 No. 1, Wenyuan Road, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, China e-mail: 1427343336@qq.com

² Nanjing Sport Institute No. 8, Linggusi Road, Xuanwu District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, China e-mail:syw0008@163.com

Keywords: Plantar Pressure, ICC, Impulse, Phase Parameter.

1 OBJECTIVES

In the present study, a total of 60 normal young people received the measurement in terms of 10 times of their plantar pressure data, and ICC was used for the analysis of 4 major parameters to determine the optimal test number in normal young people, thereby providing a basis of test number for subsequent studies of plantar pressure.

2 METHODS

The experimental apparatus was the 0.5m foot scan plantar pressure flat-plate test system (foots can 7 USB2 gait) (RS scan International Company, Belgium), and the Foot scan apparatus was inserted into the special extended track, which shared the same height with the force plate. The bundled software (foot scan 7 USB2 gait) was used for collection of data of subjects. The SPSS19.0 software was used for data analysis. The ICC was adopted, and the confidence interval (CI) was 95%. In the present analysis, 0.75 and 0.9 were separately used as target values of reliability for consideration.

3 RESULTS

(1) The reliability of the mean value after 6 times of test on impulse proportion was above 0.75, and P < 0.05.

(2) The reliability of the mean value after 4 times of tests for the proportion of plantar contact area was higher than 0.75.

(3) The reliability of test results of TOE1 and TOE2-5 was very low. The reliability of the mean value after 6 times of tests for the pressures in all plantar areas could reach above 0.75, and P < 0.05. (except for TOE1 and TOE2-5).

(4) The reliability of the mean value after 5 times of tests on the phase of plantar pressure could be higher than 0.75, and P < 0.05.

4 CONCLUSIONS

Given the differences in plantar pressure distribution caused by multiple influencing factors of gaits, individual differences of subjects, and errors resulting from factors, such as measuring range of apparatus, it was recommended foot scan should be used for more than 5 times of tests on plantar pressure in order to obtain relatively reasonable mean values of 4 types of parameters (Except for TOE1 and TOE2-5), thus truly reflecting conditions of subjects in a more objective manner.

5 ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

This work was supported by social development projects of Jiangsu Science and Technology Department "Study on the characteristics of fallable gait of the elderly and its early preventing and protective technology" (No: BE2017766).

REFERENCES

Tsiros, M. D., Grimshaw, P. N., Schield, A. J., & Buckley, J. D. (2011). Test-retest reliability of the biodex system 4 isokinetic dynamometer for knee strength assessment in paediatric populations. J Allied Health, 40(3), 115-119.

INFORMATION SYSTEM OF SPORTS ORIENTATION OF CHILDREN 6 TO 12 YEARS IN MOSCOW

Kartsev A.A.^{1,2}, Butkova E.E.^{1,2} Lurie G.V.^{1,2}

¹ Moscow Center of Advanced Sport Technologies (MCAST) ² Russian Association of Computer sciense in Sport (RACSS) Sovetskoy Armii st. 6, 129272, Moscow, Russia e-mail: kartsev.aa@mossport.ru, butkova.ee@mossport.ru, lurie.gv@mossport.ru

Keywords: talent identification, sport orientation, comprehensive testing of children, self-testing, online service, propensity for sports, information technology in sport

Abstract. The article presents the information system of sports orientation of children from 6 to 12 years for more than 70 sports developed in the Moscow Center of Advanced Sport Technologies.

There are more than 100 sports organizations in the Moscow sports system, which provide sports training in 81 sports at more than 1000 addresses. Every year, in early autumn, tens of thousands of Muscovites with their children go to sports schools in Moscow in order to enroll beginners in a particular sport. As a rule, the choice of sport is determined based on the preferences of parents or the proximity of the place of training sessions to the place of residence.

The number of those wishing to enroll in sports schools is growing from year to year, and the question of the right choice of sports specialization is particularly acute, since, in addition to sports victories, there is a factor of satisfaction from the chosen sport. Parents register their children for entrance examinations to several schools in different sports in order to have a choice in the future. Currently, in each sport, sports training programs are implemented on the basis of Federal standards, which provide for their age of enrollment and minimum requirements for entrance examinations. At the same time, each school has the right to add additional selection criteria to the minimum mandatory requirements. Thus, once again coming to the sports school novice athletes re-pass the entrance test.

At the beginning of 2016 on the portal of the Government of Moscow "Active citizen "was conducted a survey –" Who should choose sports clubs for children?". 205720 active citizens took part in the voting. More than 78% of the voting participants said that the predisposition to sports should be determined by specialists or parents together with specialists. Following the vote of the Department was sent on behalf of the Government of Moscow on creation and implementation of the project, helping parents to determine the type of port for their children.

Since October 2016, the project "helping parents to choose a sport for children"has been launched in Moscow. The aim of the project is to help parents in choosing a sport for children. Currently, within the framework of the project, 10 testing centers equipped with the most modern equipment are functioning on the basis of sports institutions of Moscow sport. Testing of children aged 5.5 to 12 years lasts no more than 2 hours, is carried out individually, the specialist works simultaneously with two children. The main areas of testing are anthropometric research, psychophysiological, functional and sports testing. The testing program includes more than 50 indicators.

Testing is free of charge by appointment on the official portal of the Mayor of Moscow <u>https://www.mos.ru/</u>. Each center can take about 32 people a day.

More than 300 Moscow sports coaches in various sports and researchers from leading sports Universities were involved in the development of the program and standards for testing. The theoretical basis of the project program was the research of domestic and foreign authors, including from Australia and Germany [1-3].

According to the results of testing at the first stage, the child's development indicators are estimated in accordance with the physiological norm by age and sex, i.e. the child's development is estimated in comparison with peers. At the second stage, the child's predisposition to sports is determined on the basis of an assessment of the strengths and weaknesses of his development and the requirements for these qualities in various sports.

To process the test results, a special mobile application has been developed, which is used by a specialist during testing. According to the results of a comprehensive survey parents are sent an e-mail conclusion with the recommended sports.

Since August 2017 on the official portal of the Mayor of Moscow <u>https://www.mos.ru/</u> launched an online service that allows you to pass an introductory test yourself at home or on the Playground, using a shortened technique and determine what kind of sport the child has a predisposition [4]. Depending on the age, the child needs to perform from 8 to 11 tests to determine his current physical and psychophysiological capabilities. Each task is given a detailed description of the test and a video with the correct execution of the exercise.

After passing all the tests, parents receive a conclusion with a list of recommended sports to which the child has a predisposition, as well as a list of sports schools where classes are held, with their contacts.

REFERENCES

1. Semenova G.I. (2015), Sports orientation and selection for various sports: textbook, Ekaterinburg, Russin Federation (in Russian)

2. Schwartz, V.B. (1984), Medico-biological aspects of sports orientation and selection, Leningrad, USSR (in Russian)

3. Vaeyens R., Lenoir M., Williams A.M., Philippaerts R.M. (2008) Talent identification and development programmes in sport, Sports medicine. V. 38, №9, pp. 73-714

4. URL: https://www.mos.ru/sportsovetnik/Test/Login

Poster Presentations

ANALYSIS OF THE COMPETITIVE ACTIVITIES COMPONENTS OF RUSSIAN MEN BIATHLETES AND BIATHLON TEAMS OF THE MAIN RIVALS AT THE WORLD CUP STAGES

Pavel E. Myakinchenko¹, Nikita V. Adodin¹, Natalya A. Yeremich¹, Vasily A. Kuzmichev¹, Evgeny B. Myakinchenko¹

¹ Federal State Budgetary Institution "Federal Science center for Physical Culture and Sport" (FSBI FSC VNIIFK) Elizavetinsky Lane 10/1, 105005 Moscow, Russia e-mail: mpe_mail@mail.ru, polkeyt@mail.ru

Keywords: distance speed, training specialization, high-class athletes.

Abstract. The article presents a comparative analysis of the competitive activity (CA) components of the Russian biathlon men's team and the main rivals' teams in the sprint races at the 2017/18 and 2018/19 World Cup seasons.

1 INTRODUCTION

Competitive result in biathlon consists of the athlete's performance result in each of CA. Consequently, lagging behind the main rivals for a particular component can provide information about the limiting factors of an athlete's or team's performance and this is one of the most important reasons for developing or correcting' training plans of the athletes for the next season [1, 2].

The following components were considered as components of the competitive activity of biathletes: running speed, percentage of accurate hits in lying and standing positions, "rate of fire", range time and distance tempo rate (DTR). [3 - 7].

The CA components were identified using the original methodology which is based on a comparison of the recorded data of the athletes' and / or teams' CA with the model, which uses data of 6 best athletes in one and the same race.

2 RESULTS

It was revealed that the reasons for the gap of Russian biathletes over two seasons with the main rivals are: the worst distance speed, the tactics of the layout of the running speed in distance circles, the worst range time (P <0.01). At the same time, Russian biathletes confidently outperform rivals in the rate of fire (P <0.01). The "training specialization" is sustainable and, apparently, reflects the methodological concept of planning annual macrocycle in any given team.

3 CONCLUSION

The method used to assess the athletes' competitive activity is a useful tool for identifying, comparing and visualizing the limiting factors of the competitive activity of biathletes and their dynamics from season to season.

- 1. Shestakov, M.P., and Myakinchenko, E.B. 2018 Control and Management in Athletic Training of the Russian National Teams. Journal of Sports Science 6 (2018) 118-128
- Myakinchenko, E. B., Abalyan, A. G., Lebedev, M. M., Shestakov, M. P., Fomichenko, T.G. The method of developing the individual training plan for the training of elite athletes. Journal of Sports Science, 2018, №4, C 8-12.
- 3. Romanova, Y.S., Zagursky, N.S. Retrospective analysis of competitive activity indicators of the strongest biathlonists of the world in 2003-2004 and 2015-2016 seasons. Scientific notes of the Lesgaft National State University 2017. № 10 (152).
- 4. Zagursky, N.S., Romanova, Y.S., Mikhalev, V.I. Analysis of the performance of the Russian national biathlon sports team in the 2015-2016 seasons. Scientific notes of the University named after PF Lesgaft 2016. № 9 (139).
- 5. Sinchenko, R.P., and Rybina, I.L. Informative indicators for analyzing the results of competitive activity of highly qualified biathlonists. Health for all. 2018. №1
- Reutskaya, E.A. and Nikolaev, E.M. Racing and shooting components of the qualification of highly skilled biathletes and its contribution to the final results of the major competitive program. Theory and methods of physical education. Bulletin of NVGU. №4 / 2016
- Fedoseev, A.M., Adodin, N.V., Myakinchenko, P.E., Yeremic, N.A., and Myakinchenko, E.B. Interrelation of tactical variants of passing the distance with accuracy of shooting, distance speed and the final result in the race for high-class biathletes. // Bulletin of Sports Science. - 2018. - № 6. - P.18-22.

TECHNOLOGY OF THE ANALYSIS OF DATA OF AEROBIC AND ANAEROBIC DISTRIBUTION OF VOLUMES OF PHYSICAL ACTIVITY IN THE DIFFERENT HIGH-SPEED RANGES IN SOCCER

VA. Godik¹, M.A. Godik, A.V. Leksakov, S.S. Cherchesov, V.V. Panikov, M.Yu. Romashchenko, A.V. Ryabochkin, S.A. Rossiysky

¹Football Union of Russia, Narodnaya Street, 7, Moscow, Russia

e-mail: godik_va@rfs.ru

Keywords: physical activity, volumes of distances, high-speed ranges, integrated aerobic and anaerobic distribution, model, Le-Chatelie's principle

Abstract. The analysis of data on physical activity and volumes of distances (S) in the different high-speed ranges (V) allowed to synthesize integrated aerobic and anaerobic distributions of S=f(V) and S = f(S(V) / S) types which have fundamental character. Classification of zones of relative power of muscular work on V.S. Farfel is expanded and the zone of low power (a restoration zone) is entered which are according to the received aerobic and anaerobic distribution. The received distributions are "rigidly" tied to ranges of speeds and corresponds to aerobic and anaerobic biochemical distribution of speeds of chemical reactions of $V'=\varphi(k, C, t)$.

INTRODUCTION

Volumes of physical activity in the different high-speed ranges are one of the digital parameters of measurement of a game connecting technical and tactical constructions with the number of running work in a match.

Earlier in works of the authors devoted to a research of motive activity of all national teams - participants of UEFA EURO2016 FRANCE, integrated curve distributions of absolute volumes of distances in the different high-speed ranges in matches were for the first time constructed.

MATHEMATICAL MODEL

The conducted researches allowed to reveal and understand the general regularities and quantitative changes of volumes of physical activity in different high-speed ranges, beginning from walking on foot (($V_{<0.21 m/s}$) before sprint accelerations (($V_{>7 m/s}$) and also numbers of accelerations and sprints.

Two integrated distributions were constructed: in the absolute system of coordinates of distance – ranges of speeds of a type of S = f(V) and in the relative system of coordinates of distance – a percentage contribution from the total amount of a distance for a match of a type of S = f(S(V) / S) two distributions are synthesis of all spatial and chaotic movements of players on ranges of speeds during the match and close on the appearance and the nature to classical distribution Maxwell-Boltsman (details on https://www.rfs.ru/page/547).

But unlike distribution Maxwell-Boltsman the received distribution of S=f(V) or S = f(S(V) / S) are "rigidly" tied to ranges of speeds and corresponding to them to zones of biochemical activity or zones of power ensuring muscular activity.

It means that the distance in "slower" aerobic high-speed zone - $(V_{0.2-5.5 \text{ m/s}})$ cannot be compensated in proportion by distance in "faster" anaerobic high-speed zone - $(V_{5.51-7 \text{ m/s}})$ and $(V_{>7 \text{ m/s}})$.

Therefore compensation effects on distances in high-speed ranges can take place only in the high-speed ranges of an aerobic zone.

The thermodynamics and kinetics of aerobic and anaerobic mechanisms of ensuring muscular activity are in full accordance with Le-Chatelie's principle limiting speeds of direct (return) and return (direct) reactions taking into account accumulation of products in a zone of reaction and, perhaps explain a concept of "second wind" from the biochemical point of view.

SPORTS EXAMPLE

On the example of matches Russia – Brazil and Russia – France (March, 2018) were defined four zones of high-speed ranges with poorly changing values and two zones of high-speed ranges with considerable fluctuations of values of volumes of physical activity.

For these ranges quantitative estimates (in absolute and relative values) integrated distribution of volumes of motive loading during the matches are received that allows to use them as objective model for assessment and planning training process both in an annual cycle, and at all intermediate stages of preparation.

CONCLUSIONS

The key moment of the achieved result is that in difference from fundamental distribution Maxwell-Boltsman where there can be a continuous exchange of either speeds, or energy between particles or between ensembles of particles, these distributions have "selective" property.

Within the offered approach the rate of a match (intensity of a game) is described in a general view by the received model integrated distribution and is connected with the nature of the physiological and biochemical processes proceeding in the football player's organism taking into account his functional readiness.

REFERENCES

Vyacheslav Godik, Mark Godik, Artem Ryabochkin, Vladimir Panikov (2017). Analysis of regularities of change of fitness indicators of the national teams. Part 3. https://www.rfs.ru/page/547

EFFECT OF 20 MINUTES TREADMILL AEROBIC EXERCISE AT VARYING INTENSITIES ON HEART RATE, ELECTROCARDIOGRAPH AND MOOD STATE RESPONSE AMONG SPORTSMAN

Ibrahim, S.¹, Ather, AS.², Azhar A S.³, Ahsan, AS.²

¹ King Fahd University of Petroleum & Minerals, Dhahran, Saudi Arabia

² SAP, Heidelberg, Germany

³ Free lancing Physiotherapist, Hyderabad, India

1 INTRODUCTION

Aerobic exercises are pre-requisite for improvements in fitness and performance (Smith et al, 2010). The schedule should be vigorous to raise the heart rate (HR) between 60 - 90 % of maximum level (Boyett et al., 2013). Besides, psychological parameters have a profound effect on the accomplishment of victory in sporting event (Beattie et al, 2016). Hence the aim of this study was to find the impact of aerobic exercise at varying intensities on the HR, Electrocardiograph (ECG) and mood state (MS).

2 METHODS

Methods 20 athletes aged between 20-25 years were subject for the study. The experimental variables used were physiological HR, ECR & MS. A pre and post-test was assessed in heart rate, electrocardiograph and mood state. The heart rate was recorded by a heart rate monitor, electrocardiograph was recorded by ECG recorder and the mood state was assessed by a short-ened version of the POMS (McNair et al, 1992). Two-way analysis of variance and t-test were used for data analysis.

3 RESULTS

The results showed that the F-ratio for the heart rate testing time of 8.23 was significant while the electrocardiogram testing time and load elevation F-ratio was 421.32 and 3.42 respectively which was also significant. For the mood state the t-ratio of 3.67 indicated a significant effect which meant that the mood state of the performers decreased considerably.

4 DISCUSSION

This study intends to provide accurate information about how the different intensities of aerobic exercise affect heart rate and ECG. The results of the study indicated that the heart rate testing time was significant and it increased after the exercise irrespective of the load elevation. The above findings are in conformity with earlier study of McGowan et al (1985) and Janae et al (2011). The results with regard to the electrocardiogram were very interesting as the testing time and load elevation increased after the aerobic exercise for the subjects. This clearly indicated

that the ECG had significant outcomes and it is in conformity with the study of Castell and Allen (2011), Kennedy & Mayhew (1971) and Thomas (1961) that had similar results. Yeung (1996) in his study found that mood effects with participation in solitary period of exercise. Their results indicated that the participants can be profited if they take part in any one form of exercise regime to change mood state positively. The results of the above study and that of Raedeke (2003) are in line with the present investigation the participation in the exercise or physical activity for that matter will reduce the mood state.

- Boyett MR, D'Souza A, Zhang H, Morris GM, Dobrzynski H, Monfredi OJ. (2013). Viewpoint: is the resting bradycardia in athletes the result of remodeling of the sinoatrial node rather than high vagal tone? Appl Physiol :114(9):1351-5.
- Beattie K., Lyons M., Kenny, IC, Carson BP. (2016). The effect of strength training on performance in Endurance Athletes. Sports Medicine, 44(6): 845-865.
- Castelli DM, Hillman CH, Hirsch J, Hirsch A, Drollette E. (2011). FIT Kids: time in target heart zone and cognitive performance; Preventive Medicine. 52:55-59.
- Kennedy D E., Mayhew J L. (1971). Electrocardiographic T wave changes in heavy exercises, British Journal of Sports Medicine, 5 (4); 198-204.

INFLUENCE OF PHYSICAL ACTIVITY AND THE FTO A/T POLYMORPHISM ON THE BODY COMPOSITION OF ADOLESCENTS AND YOUNG ADULTS

Parfenteva O.¹

¹ Moscow Center of advanced sports technologies 129272 Sovietskoy armii 6, Moscow, Russia e-mail: parfenteva.olga@gmail.com

Keywords: FTO A/T polymorphism, physical activity, body fat mass, quantile regression.

Abstract. The common variant of the FTO gene is associated with a higher risk of obesity in populations of adolescents and young adults with different ethnic backgrounds. However, this effect may be attenuated by various environmental factors. The main purpose of the study was to investigate the association between the FTO A/T polymorphism along with physical activity and body composition of young professional athletes and individuals with low level of physical activity. A total number of 238 individuals aged 15-25 participated in the study. The LMS method was used to transform the data. Quantile regression analysis was used to test the effect of the FTO A/T polymorphism along with physical activity level on the percentage body fat content. Quantile regression analysis revealed that physical activity had a greater effect on body composition in comparison to the FTO A/T polymorphism.

INTRODUCTION

During the last years, the prevalence of obesity increased dramatically. According to the WHO report (2016), the prevalence of obesity among adolescents and young adults increased from 23% to 42.2% in the period of 1975-2016. Obesity is explained by complex interaction of genetic and environmental factors. High level of hypodynamia and hyperphagia along with genetic predisposition results in a higher risk of obesity in the modern postindustrial populations. Genome-wide associated study (GWA) identified more than 300 single nucleotide polymorphisms (SNPs) which are associated with various adiposity traits (Goodarzi, 2018). The common variant in the intron region of the *FTO* gene is known to be associated with a higher body fat mass content in general population (Hunt et al. 2008). The purpose of the study is to investigate the effect of physical activity and the A/T *FTO* polymorphism on body composition among young professional athletes and individuals with low physical activity.

METHODS

A total of 238 individuals leaving in Moscow or Moscow region participated in the study. The individuals were grouped in accordance with their level of physical activity (low, n=111 or high, n=119). Individuals who The examination was conducted in Moscow Center of advanced sports technologies and included anthropometrics and genotyping. Anthropometrics were obtained using standardized protocols provided by Research Institute of Anthropology of Lomonosov State University. The SNP-genotyping analysis was performed by the biotech-

nology company Lytech (Lytech Co. Ltd.) using MALDI-TOF SNP genotyping protocol (minisequencing with subsequent detection of products). Quantile regression analysis was used to assess the association of predictors (the level of physical activity and the *FTO* A/T polymorphism) at the 25th, 50th and 75th of adjusted for age and sex body fat mass content. The LMS method (Cole and Green, 1992) was used to transform the data (percentage of body fat mass). Body composition reference data for the Russian population was used (Rudnev et al. 2004). Statistical analysis was performed using the computing environment R, version 3.5.1 (R foundation for statistical computing, Vienna, Austria).

RESULTS

The quantile regression analysis revealed that physical activity resulted in a greater effect (β =-5.50, p<0.001) on percentage of body fat mass compared to the *FTO* A/T polymorphism (β =1.86, p=0.03). At the 25th, 50th and 75th percentile, the level of physical activity is significantly associated with the z-score for percentage of fat mass (β =-4.06, β =-6.09 and β =-6.80, p<0.01). Whereas the *FTO* A/T polymorphism is significantly associated with the z-score for percentage of fat mass (β =-4.06, β =-6.09 and β =-6.80, p<0.01). Whereas the *FTO* A/T polymorphism is significantly associated with the z-score for percentage of fat mass (β =-1.22, p=0.03) at the 50th.

Percentiles		25th	50th	75th
	В	0.97	0.73	3.65
Disk allalas	SE	0.78	0.56	1.39
Risk alleles	t	1.23	1.30	2.66
	p-value	0.21	0.19	0.009
	B	-4.06	-6.09	-6.80
Dhave and a stimiter	SE	1.29	0.9	1.22
Physical activity	t	3.13	6.52	5.54
	p-value	0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001

Table 1: Results of the quantile regression analysis for z-score for the percentage of fat mass.

1 CONCLUSION

Physical activity modifies the effect of the *FTO* A/T polymorphism in young professional athletes and has a greater effect on body composition.

- Goodarzi, M. O. (2018). Genetics of obesity: what genetic association studies have taught us about the biology of obesity and its complications. *The Lancet Diabetes & Endocrinology*, 6(3), 223-236.
- Hunt, S. C., Stone, S., Xin, Y., Scherer, C. A., Magness, C. L., Iadonato, S. P., & Adams, T. D. (2008). Association of the FTO gene with BMI. *Obesity*, 16(4), 902-904.
- Cole, T. J., & Green, P. J. (1992). Smoothing reference centile curves: the LMS method and penalized likelihood. *Statistics in medicine*, 11(10), 1305-1319.
- Rudnev, S. G., Soboleva, N. P., Sterlikov, S. A., Nikolaev, D. V., Starunova, O. A., Chernykh, S. P., & Ponomareva, E. G. (2014). Bioimpedance study of body composition in the Russian population.

THE MODEL OF PSYCHOLOGICAL DIAGNOSIS AND TRAINING IN FOOTBALL

Alyona I. Grushko ^{1,2,3}

1 - Moscow Center of Advanced Sports Technologies; 2 - Lomonosov Moscow State University; 3 -Juventus Academy Moscow Sovetskoy Armii, 6, Moscow, Russia e-mail: al-grushko@yandex.ru

Keywords: sports psychology, football psychology, perceptual-cognitive skills, mental skills

INTRODUCTION

The main purpose of the current project is to identify crucial psychological variables in football in order to take into account the focus on their development as well as on a team or individual level. The model of psychological support in football is generally aimed at psychological diagnostics and training with a special emphasis on the perceptual-cognitive, social and mental skills domains.

METHOD

Perceptual-cognitive skills

The outcome in sports competitions depends on a combination of various factors including perceptual-cognitive skills: attention and memory, anticipation and decision making, sensorimotor coordination etc. Well-developed perceptual-cognitive skills are crucial for football in order to outsmart the opponent by anticipating his or her actions and to make better decisions. In the diagnostics of the perceptual-cognitive skills in football players, the following instrumental methods were applied: integrated systems of the assessment of psychomotor and cognitive variables were applied during the season before or after training sessions (via Dynavision D2, Neurotracker CogniSense, Vienna Test System, ThoughtTechnology), eye tracking technologies (SMI) were implemented in field settings in dribbling and shooting tasks (Grushko, Leonov, 2015).

Social and mental skills

Mental skills in athletes is a natural or developed psychological variables that enables athletes to cope better than the opponents with the many sports demands. Specifically, mental skills include such variables as setting the long- and short-term goals, emotional self-regulation, coping with negative thoughts and ruminations, imagery and self-talk skills etc. Social skills are about the effective sports communication and interactions with the coaches, teammates, opponents, journalists etc.

Research on mental and social skills related to the sports performance had been limited by a lack of a valid method of measurements in Russian. To overcome this limitation the sport-specific

questionnaires were developed and initially validated: «Complex Assessment of Mental Toughness and Adaptation in Sport» (Grushko, Kasatkin, 2017), «Sport Imagery Questionnaire» (Russian version, Veraksa, Gorovaya, Grushko et.al., 2014) and «Athletes' responses to error and post-error strategies in sports performance» (Korobeynikova, Grushko, Kasatkin), «Attitudes towards opponents in sport» (Grushko, Korobeynikova). Athletes also completed well-known Russian versions of questionnaires: Sport motivation scale (SMS) and State & trait anxiety Inventory (STAI, Spilberger-Hanin).

PARTICIPANTS

From 2014 to the present more than 250 male footballers (age from 8 to 26 y.o.) participated in different parts of the current project, including professional athletes from II Russian football division, U-15, U-19, U-21 national team players and junior athletes from Football schools «Chertanovo», «Smena», Juventus Academy Moscow.

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Thus, in perceptual-cognitive, social and mental skills domains the obtained results which characterize players of different ages, skill levels. Based on the combining the objective and subjective methods of psychological diagnosis in football a number of specific profiles can be developed for individual players or teams.

- Grushko, A.I., Leonov, S.V. (2015). Using eye tracking system in psychological training of football players. National Psychological Journal, 2(18), 13–24
- Veraksa, A., Gorovaya, A., Grushko, A., Bayanova, L., Galliulina, M., Galyavieva, D. (2014). Development and reliability of the Russian version of "The Sport Imagery Questionnaire". *Anuario de Psicología*, 2014, 44(1), 45-54.
- Grushko, A., Kasatkin, V. (2017). The development and initial validation of the Russian version of mental toughness questionnaire. Proceedings book of the International scientific and professional conference on wrestling "Applicable research in wrestling" (pp. 252–252). Novi Sad, Zagreb.

CHARACTERISTICS OF EXPONENTIAL EQUATION OF HEART RATE RECOVERY IN YOUNG ATHLETES AFTER EXERCISE AS INDICATORS OF PHYSICAL LOADING INTENSITY

P.K. Prusov¹, **M.P. Shatenok**²

¹Institute of Advanced Training, Federal Medical and Biological Agency of Russia, Volokolamskoye shosse, 91, Moscow, 125371, Russian Federation, E-mail: peter.prusov@mail.ru

²N.N.Blokhin National Research Centre of Oncology, Kashirskoye sh., 23, Moscow, 115478, Russian Federation, E-mail: maria.prusova@gmail.com

Keywords: Heart rate recovery, Physical work capacity, Load intensity, Exponential model of equation, Residual dispersion.

Abstract. To study the nature of heart rate dynamics in the fast phase of the recovery period depending on the intensity of ergometric loads, an exponential equation was used. Two linear multiparameter equations and two formulas for the aerobic performance indicators calculation were developed. The developed algorithms are of great practical importance allowing to judge objectively the dynamics of functional status and performance of young athletes on the results of moderate and low intensity loads without the use of maximum tests

INTRODUCTION

The assessment of heart rate (HR) recovery (HRR) after exercise is important in clinical and sports medicine. Reliability of the exponential equation in the description of HRR after exercise is established (Perini et al, 1989; Prusov P.K., 2012; Savin et al., 1982). However dependence of parameters and especially statistics indices of the discussed equation on the intensity of previous loading and their value for an assessment of physical exertion and physical work capacity is not rather studied.

OBJECTIVE

To study the nature of pulse frequency dynamics in the fast phase of the recovery period after of the bicycle ergometric loads, to estimate the intensity of load and physical performance using an exponential equation.

MATERIAL AND METHODS

The indicators of heart rate recovery of 24 young athletes 13–18 years old with different directions of the training process were studied, calculated by the exponential equation, depending on the intensity of bicycle load. The study was conducted in the first half of the day. Exercise testing was performed in the sitting position on a bicycle ergometer (Lode) with continuous registration of indicators of spiroergometry using the Cortex system. The initial power load was 1.0 W/kg, followed by an increase of 0.5 W/kg until refusal. Pulse was

recorded on the Polar RS800 system during 3-minute recovery periods after 4-minute loading. The frequency of each heart rate at certain times of recovery was expressed in relative values to heart rate of the end of the previous load (rHRRt). For the mathematical descriptions of heart rate dynamics during the recovery period, an exponential model of equation was used:

$$Y = a_0 + a_1 \cdot e^{a_2 t} \tag{1}$$

Where y is rHRRt, a_0 , a_1 , a_2 are the parameters of the equation, t is the time after loading in minutes. The load intensity was calculated as a percentage of the maximal O₂ consumption (%VO2peak) and physical work capacity (%PWCmx), achieved after each step of load.

RESULTS

The highly informative value of the analyzed exponential equation indicators was revealed to determine the degree of physical exertion of the body relative the maximum level and prediction of aerobic performance. For these purposes, two linear multiparameter equations, table 1 were developed. In these cases, the multiple correlation coefficients had a high level of significance, accounting for 0.89 and 0.87 units. The highest significance level for prediction was shown by residual dispersion, its relation to the total dispersion and a_2 parameter.

Table 1 Calculation of the intensity of physical loading subject to heart rate recovery indicators (step-by-step regression).

Calculation	R	Mathematical models of calculation	
indicator	multiple		
%PWCmx/kg	0.89	61 - 66*rD/tD + 72*rHRR05/3 +4.5*a2	
%VO2peak/kg	0.87	25 - 61* rD/tD + 49* rHRR05/3 +3.8*a2	

Note. R multiple = multiple correlation; rD/tD = residual dispersion/ total dispersion; rHRR05/3 = relative heart rate recovery after 0.5 min to 3.0 min; a2=the parameter of the exponential equation.

CONCLUSIONS

The developed algorithms are of great practical importance allowing to judge objectively the dynamics of functional status and performance of young athletes on the results of moderate and low intensity loads without the use of maximum tests (which are often contraindicated for research). The novelty of this study is to establish the significance of a number of indicators of heart rate recovery (parameters, statistical indicators, the ratio of the heart rate recorded at different times of recovery) calculated by an exponential equation to assess the intensity of the performed load, as well as the developed models for calculating the intensity of the performed load.

- Perini R1, Orizio C, Comandè A, Castellano M, Beschi M, Veicsteinas A. (1989). Plasma norepinephrine and heart rate dynamics during recovery from submaximal exercise in man. *Eur J Appl Physiol Occup Physiol*, 58(8), 879-83.
- Prusov P.K. (2012). Indicators of exponential equation in estimation of heart rate recovery by young sportsmen after performing the increasing power intermittent bicycle loading to overflowing. *Sports Medicine: Research and Practice*, 4 (1), 12–9 (in Russ.).

ON TECHNOLOGY OF PHYSIOLOGICAL AVATAR WITH OPTIMAL TRAINING PROCESS PLANNING IN CYCLIC SPORTS

Solodyannikov Yu.V.¹ and Proshin, A.P.²

¹Samara-Dialog, AO
89, Kuibysheva st, Samara, Russia e-mail: solo-dialog@mail.ru

² Samara-Dialog, AO
89, Kuibysheva st, Samara, Russia e-mail: a_prosha@mail.ru

Keywords: cyclic sport, mathematical model, training, optimal planning.

Abstract. The paper is devoted to review hardware and software product, which combines achievements in mathematical computer modeling, training management, sports physiology and sports medicine.

1 INTRODUCTION

The concept of a physiological avatar (PhA) has been developed. In a sense, the PhA is a virtual human physiological counterpart, created with parameter identification procedures on the basis of physiological measurements. The concept of PhA is a ground for theoretical development and practical solutions for training management in cyclic sports. It offers an integrated approach to training process planning and combines the well-known sports technology with methods of mathematical modeling of athlete's individual physiological properties.

The PhA technology helped to create a set of software and technical solutions for professional sports and fitness such as Coaching Toolkit for cyclic sports and Coaching Toolkit for kayaking and canoeing. These client applications are implemented on all popular software platforms: Windows 10, iOS, Android. The back-end environment is implemented on Microsoft Azure cloud platform.

2 GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

The PhA and Training Impulse (TRIMP) technologies are the basis of a wide range of practical tools for solving planning problems faced by a coach and an athlete in any cyclic sport:

- Maintaining individual physiological profile (IPP) for each team athlete, maintaining individual calendar for each team athlete specifying competition, non-competition and non-training days;

- Keeping physiological observations for each team athlete (requires sports laboratory with necessary measuring equipment), control the process of creating and using the PhA collection for each team athlete (PhAs are based on IPP initial data);

- Maintaining condition log for each team athlete. The log is filled with expert observations based on competition results or results of specially organized tests (estimates) close to real

competitions. TRIMP values obtained during physical exercises and competitions are also recorded in the log. Tabular log forms are compatible with tabular data forms from Garmin Training Center and Polar Flow software.

- Creating optimal training plans for each team athlete, as well as recalculation of these plans based on new data, i.e. implementation of adaptive training process planning. An example of the synthesis of the optimal training plan for an athlete X. Purpose: maintaining a maximum sports condition.



3 MAIN FEATURES

Implementation of training plans by dosing athlete's training load according to planned daily TRIMP value. This is served by a set of software and hardware tools implemented in the complex of training process planning.

Online TRIMP calculator is a tool for real-time TRIMP calculating during a training exercise with heart rate monitoring (cardio training). It enables to calculate athlete's current TRIMP value obtained during training process with constant real-time monitoring of heart rate (HR) by sensor. Offline TRIMP calculator is a tool for TRIMP calculating obtained by an athlete in the process of training with HR monitoring. The initial data for the calculation are the duration of the training exercises and the HR profile.

The inverse TRIMP calculator is a tool for calculating the ratio between HR and duration of training exercise to achieve a predetermined target TRIMP value during a workout with HR monitoring. The Coaching Toolkit for kayaking and canoeing implements an integrated training process control model, combining physiology, biomechanics, hydrodynamics, environmental influences and rowing analysis based on geometric and dynamic criteria with use of skeletal animation. The integrated model allows you to calculate optimal distribution of energy on course of competition.

4 ADVANTAGES

PhA sports applications solve the problem of determining the value of anaerobic threshold and VO₂ max that is traditional for modern sports gadgets like Garmin, Polar and others. The advantage of PhA technology is the accuracy of basic mathematical model and parametric identification of the athlete's individual physiological profile. To calculate these important indicators at comparable accuracy rates the PhA technology uses a set of measurement tools much cheaper compared to laboratories that use cardio-respiratory load diagnostics similar to METAMAX[®] 3B, METALYZER[®] from Cortex.

REFERENCES

Proshin, A.P. & Solodyannikov, Yu.V. (2018). Physiological Avatar Technology with Optimal Planning of the Training Process in Cyclic Sports. *Autom. Remote Control*, 79(5), 870–833.

DATA ANALYSIS IN EVALUATION THE EFFECTIVENESS OF GOVERNANCE IN SPORTS

Yuri Yu. Petrunin¹, Yulia A. Siluyanova²

¹ School of public administration, Lomonosov Moscow State University Moscow, Russia e-mail: petrunin@spa.msu.ru

² School of public administration, Lomonosov Moscow State University Moscow, Russia e-mail: Zernovaju@gmail.com

Keywords: data analysis, sport governance, effectiveness.

Abstract. In this study a model for assessing the effectiveness of governance in sports was developed.

1 INTRODUCTION

In recent years the researchers actively discuss the effectiveness of national sports organizations [Mu Yeh C., Taylor T., 2008; Petrunin, Ryazanov, 2015; Parent M., Hoye R., 2018]. In this study we developed a model for evaluating the effectiveness of governance in sports.

2 SAMPLE AND METHOD

2.1 Sample

This paper chooses the data of 4192 Russian Premier League matches in 2001-2017/2018 season as the samples. All data come from Russia Sports website <u>https://premierliga.ru/tournaments/championship</u>

2.2 Method

We offer a statistical model to analyze the efficiency of decision-making, basing on the results of last Russian football reform. This reform touched the timetable of Russian Premier League championship: since 2012 Russia implements the European calendar of games with season starting in late summer and ending in spring.

As key factors we used: position in FIFA national team rankings, position in UEFA Country Ranking, average attendance per match (AA), level of competition (CV). We used a parametric Student's t-test and a Mann-Whitney non-parametric test to define the dynamics of key indicators.

3 MAIN RESULTS

The analysis showed that most indicators are not statistically significant (p > 0.05). An exception is the level of competition (competitive balance) of Russian Premier League teams.

To evaluate this variable we used the coefficient of variation (CV) in the distribution of points in a tournament [Halicioğlu, 2005; Halicioğlu, 2009].

The analysis revealed that after calendar reform the competitive balance of Russian football decreased (table 1). We discovered a positive correlation between the results of national championships and the ranking of National team in international tournaments (table 2). Thus, we can state that the impact of reform on results of National team is rather negative.

Variable	Mean	Mean	p-level
	summer	winter	
FIFA	23.4	30.83	0.3
UEFA	10.56	6.83	0.13
AA	11990	11851	0.8
CV	0.31	0.34	0.014

Table 1: t-test results for the variable "coefficient of variation of points" (CV) for two groups: "summer" (springautumn season) and "winter" (autumn-spring season)

Variable	FIFA	UEFA	р
FIFA	1	0.62	p <0.05
UEFA	0.62	1	p <0.05

Table. 2: Correlation matrix for variables "UEFA Country Ranking" (UEFA) and "FIFA national team rankings" (FIFA) before 2018 world cup (N=55).

4 CONCLUSIONS

In further studies, it is necessary to increase the sample size and refine targets / indicators to assess the performance of sports organizations.

- Halicioğlu F. (2005) Can we predict the outcome of the international football tournaments? The case of Euro 2000 // Doğuş Üniversitesi Dergisi. 6 (1).
- Halicioğlu F. (2009) Research on the Prediction of the likely Winners of the Euro 2008 Football Tournament, *Journal of Quantitative Analysis in Sports*. 5 (3).
- Mu Yeh C., Taylor T. (2008) Issues of governance in sport organisations: a question of board size, structure and roles, *World Leisure Journal*, 50:1, 33-45, DOI: 10.1080/04419057.2008.9674525
- Parent M., Hoye R., (2018) The impact of governance principles on sport organisations' governance practices and performance: A systematic review. *Cogent Social Sciences*, 4: 1-24 https://doi.org/10.1080/23311886.2018.1503578
- Petrunin Yu. Yu., Ryazanov M.A. (2015) How to win the world championship. Soccermetrics for Public Managers. *Moscow: MaxPress* (in Russian).

12th International Symposium on the Computer Science in Sport IACSS 2019, Moscow, Russia, 8-10 July 2019

COMPLEX FOR OPTIMIZATION OF ROWING

Sergey V. Gontarev

P.P. Shirshov Institute of Oceanology, Russian Academy of Sciences 36 Nahimovsky pr., Moscow, 117997, Russia e-mail: sapsan_701@mail.ru

Keywords: rowing, optimization, sportsman movement, computer measurement

1 INTRODUCTION

Sport results may be improved by means of new optimization methods of the sportsman's movements. It is observed that sportsmen do not always effectively use potentialities of their bodies. This is due to the specific character to perceive information by the human brain. It is also known that under the stress situation changes in the types of movements is not always recognized by a sportsman. Training without the use of instrumental methods does not allow achieving the high-effective movements. Additional difficulty in optimizing of movements occurs when a sportsman moves at a long distance from a trainer. Thus, any further improvement of sport results requires introduction of special methods of measurements. The complex proposed in this report may be used to optimize the sportsman movements on mobile objects (boats).

2 COMPLEX STRUCTURE

The complex is designed for studying and optimization of the movements in the rowing sports. It consists of the onboard and onshore parts. (Fig. 1)



Fig 1: Structure of the complex.

The onboard part includes four registration channels. Speed channel includes the GPS system and a microprocessor (MCU). The speed of the boat is calculated from the GPS sensor data and converted into an analog signal by MCU for synchronous digitization of the ADC. It allows obtaining data on speed of the boat. The oar channel provides information about the paddle movement in the water. Myogram channel includes the electrode system and the myogram amplifiers. It makes possible to examine the sportsman movements. The signals of sensors: myograms, motion oar, and speed of boat synchronously digitized by the ADC. The last one produces the digital output signal in the TCP/IP protocol that allows transmitting of the information by means of the Internet system. TV camera makes possible of visual control of the sportsman movements at short distance. The onshore part consists of universal computer with the software for the data registration connected with radio channel device. For the data registration in this part the LGraph2-free multi-channel data recorder is used. Both parts are connected one to another through the radio channel "point to point". The onshore part of the complex is placed behind the boat at the start point.

3 COMPLEX POSSIBILITIES

The system provides measuring and recording of one channel with resolution of 16 bits with the conversion frequency up to 2 MHz. There is also a possibility to register up to 32 channels of information with a corresponding reduction in the frequency of conversions. If necessary to increase a number of channels or common conversion frequency, one may connect the second ADC in the synchronous mode.

The data logging program makes possible to display the parameters in a real time and to save them as files. It is also possible to write applications that will display information in real time and perform specialized data processing.

Using of the TCP/IP protocol for the information transmission makes possible to extend capability of the system by using the Internet network.

4 CONCLUSIONS

The developed complex allows joint optimization of movements of the boat and the sportsman as well as the oar movement in the water.

REFERENCES

http://en.lcard.ru/ldocs/E-502 User's Guide for E-502 module.

http://en.lcard.ru/node/1037 LGraph2 - free multi-channel data recorder for Windows.

FORECAST OF PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE OF SKYHALL SPORTSMEN BY INDICATORS OF HEART RATE VARIABILITY

Razinkin Sergey¹, Kish Anna¹, Mikhail Bragin¹, Mikhail Dvornikov², Timofey Matyshev²

¹Burnasyan FMBC of the FMBA of Russia 123182, Marshal Novikov street, 23, p. 2, Moscow, Russian Federation e-mail: rasinkin@mail.ru

² Scientific Research and Testing Center of Aerospace medicine and military ergonomics, Central Scientific Research Institute of Military Air Forces, MD RF, Moscow 127087, Petrovsko-razumovskay Avenue, 12A, Moscow, Russian Federation e-mail: dvormv@yandex.ru

Keywords: heart rate variability, high performance sport, load testing, correlation.

Abstract. The purpose of the work is to determine the possibility of predicting physical performance in terms of heart rate variability among skiers. When analyzing the results, weak (0.3 < r < 0.5) single correlations between physical performance and heart rate variability were determined. The findings suggest that there is no predictive value of physical performance in terms of heart rate variability for cyclical sports.

INTRODUCTION

In sports of higher achievements, new methods of research from various fields of medicine are increasingly being used, one of which is heart rate variability analysis (HRV), which reflects the work of the cardiovascular system and the mechanisms of regulation of the whole organism. Analysis of HRV can assess the ability of the organism to adapt to new conditions. However, in order to talk about the prognostic significance of HRV, it is necessary to determine its relationship with the indicators of physical performance. Thus, the purpose of the study was to assess the possibility of predicting physical performance in terms of HRV in athletes-skiers.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

The study involved 56 skiers: 30 men (average age 24.9 ± 1.00 years) and 26 women (average age 24 ± 0.87 years). The assessment of HRV was carried out on the agro-industrial complex "Diamed". For data analysis used 40 indicators. Load testing (NT) was carried out according to the Ramp protocol on a bicycle ergometer. The following NT parameters were recorded: load time, aerobic threshold time (AP), anaerobic metabolism threshold time (ANSP), maximum oxygen consumption (MPC), oxygen volume (VO₂) ANSP, heart rate (rest), HR AN, HR max, respiratory rate (R), Power, W. The calculations were carried out in an applied package of statistical analysis of STATISTICA 10 data. A normality check using a

calculation method was carried out according to the criteria of Kolmogorov-Smirnov and Shapiro-Wilk. The correlation coefficient in the case of parametric coupling was calculated by the Pearson method, in the case of non-parametric Spearman. The correlation force was determined by the Cheldock scale, in which a certain numerical value corresponds to the qualitative characteristic of the correlation coefficient (r).

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Load testing was carried out in the daytime on a bicycle ergometer. The average load time for men and women, respectively, was 643.47 ± 10.84 and 595.81 ± 9.52 . The failure heart rate in athletes of both sexes was in the range of 153-199 beats/min. High values MPC, 62.63 \pm 0.77 for men and 54.10 \pm 1.42 for women, testified to the maximum load of athletes during testing, which is confirmed by the values of the respiratory coefficient R>1.1. As a result, single weak correlations were identified. Currently, there is no unanimous opinion regarding the interpretation of the results of the analysis of HRV, therefore further interpretations may not coincide with the conclusions of other authors. The greatest number of connections is determined between heart rate at rest and indicators of statistical and autocorrelation analysis of HRV (the average value of the duration of the intervals -0.453, the maximum -0.456 and the minimum value -0.460, RMSSD -0.380, pNN50% -0.372, the indicator of the autocorrelation function SS 10.415, mode -0.451). There is also a weak relationship with the spectral analysis indices (HF power -0.384, LF 0.383 and LF/HF 0.445, IC 0.384, respectively). These correlations are due to the close values of the heart rate when tested on the agro-industrial complex "Diamed" and in front of NT on a bicycle ergometer. It should be noted the correlation of one of the most significant indicators of NT-IPC with a heart rate of -0.417 and the interpretation of average values of intervals (average value of intervals of 0.417, mode 0.385). These data confirm the dependence of the body's aerobic performance on pulse characteristics. Also noteworthy is the presence of a medium correlation of the indicator of activity of regulatory systems (PARS) with HRSS PANO 0.433 and HR max 0.410. Communication data shows the ability of the integral assessment of the functional state of the cardiovascular system to reflect the degree of centralization of heart rhythm management.

CONCLUSION.

Thus, weak correlations (0.3 < r < 0.5) of heart rate variability and exercise testing indicate that there is no predictive value for cyclical sports. Indicators were calculated by average values. At the same time, it is possible to forecast physical performance in terms of heart rate variability with their individual assessment in dynamics.

NEW METHODS FOR REAL TIME MONITORING OF VEGETATIVE BALANCE USING HEART RATE VARIABILITY

Tyuvaev I. N.¹, Anosov O. L.²

¹ Tsiolkovsky Kaluga State University, Kaluga, Russia e-mail: tri40rus@gmail.com

² Research group "HRV-Dynamics", Potsdam, Germany e-mail: oanosov@gmx.de

Keywords: heart rate variability, vegetative balance, real time monitoring

Abstract. We presents the results of the studies of new method for real time monitoring of vegetative-nervous system activity of sportsmen at rest and some dynamic exercise.

1 Introduction

To manage the training processes of sportsman is important to monitor the vegetative- nervous system activity at rest and during dynamic exercises. For these goals a new method that uses the dynamical analysis of a heart rate variability was developed. This method is based on a parameter HLF (high-to-low-frequency factor) that compares the high- (HF) and low-frequency (LF) components of a heart rate variability in dynamics: HLF(t) = HF(t)/LF(t). Variables were compared using filtering techniques. The widely used HL/HF-parameter (Shaffer & Ginsberg, 2017) evaluates the vegetative balance for stationary condition of vegetative-nervous system and development of HLF(t)-parameter makes it possible to study dynamics of vegetative balance at rest and its reaction to dynamical exercise. By using of mass-market heart rate sensors Polar H10 we study dynamics of HLF-parameter in the stationary condition and during some dynamic exercises of sportsmen.

2 Behavior of the vegetative balance during dynamic in steady state and during exercise.

To study the dynamics of vegetative balance in stationary condition of sportsmen we have analyzed HLF(t) -parameter calculated from the 30-minutes realizations of RR-intervals recorded at rest and during exercise test with flat heart rate. In the both cases the HLF(t)-parameter demonstrates often quasi-periodic fluctuations with 2-6 minutes periods (see examples at Fig.1.1 and Fig.1.2), this shows that the vegetative balance at rest and in stationary condition during exercises has some fluctuation dynamics. The behavior of the vegetative balance during dynamic exercises has been studied by the standard ramp and step-wise stress-test on the bicycleergometer(Anosov O., A.Patzak) and with treadmills (E. Wachter, 2010).

HLF(t)-parameter varies not principally under low exercise level and significantly increases under high exercise level. This significant increase correlates often with ventilatory threshold VT2 (see example at Fig.2). Thus, the study shows that a vegetative balance is changed significantly under high exercise level. This can be used to monitor and manage dynamic training and evaluate spirometric thresholds during the stress-tests.



Figure 1: Dynamics of the vegetative balance (HLF): (1) - in rest; (2) - during exercise. Here (a) - HR, (b) - HLF



Figure 2: HRV-behavior during a ramp exercise-test. (a) - hear rate HR, (b) - HLF. VT2 - ventilatory threshold.

3 Conclusion

Developed method can be used for analysis of behavior of the vegetative - nervous system activity at rest and during dynamic exercises and for management of training processes of sportsmen.

- Anosov O., A.Patzak, et al. High frequency oscillations of the heart rate during ramp load reflect human anaerobic threshold. *Eur. J. App. Physiol.*, 2000, 83(4/5), 388-394.
- Fred Shaffer, & J. P. Ginsberg. An Overview of Heart Rate variability Metrics and Norms. *Frontiers in Public Health, September 2017, Volume 5, Article 258, doi:10.3389/fpubh.2017.00258*
- E. Wachter. HRV- Schwellenbestimmung anhand Fahrradergometrie und Laufband im Verhltnis zu anaeroben Schwellen und Laktatschwellen. *Dissertation, Charit Universittsmedizin Berlin, Berlin, 2010*

TYPES OF MYOCAEDIAL REMODELING IN ATHLETES AND PHYSICALLY INACTIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH WOLF-PARKINSON-WHITE SYNDROME

Marina Sharoyko¹, Evgeniia Ketlerova², Varvara Noskova³, Elena Turova¹

¹Moscow Scientific and Practical Center for Sports Medicine, Moscow Russian Federation, Zemlianoi Val 53,

² Russian state university of physical education, sport, youth and tourism, Moscow, Russian Federation

 $^3\,$ Saint-Petersburg-Research institute for physical culture, Saint-Petersburg , Russian Federation

e-mail: marina.scharoiko@yandex.ru, ev.ket@mail.ru, varvara-noskova@yandex.ru

Keywords: phenomenon and syndrome WPW, heart rate variability, radiofrequency ablation **Abstract**. Wolff-Parkinson-White (WPW) is a cardiac conduction system disorder characterized by abnormal accessory conduction pathways between the atria and the ventricles. Symptomatic patients classically present with palpitations, presyncope, or syncope that results from supraventricular tachycardia. While rare, sudden cardiac death may be the first manifestation of underlying disease and occurs more frequently in exercising individuals.

1 INTRODUCTION

Purpose: to evaluate the intraventricular dyssynchrony in patients with phenomenon and syndrome WPW using realtime threedimensional echocardiography (RT3DE), heart rate variability and methods of nonlinear dynamics.

2 METHOD

20 healthy individuals $29,28\pm6,09$ years old, 16 patients with WPW phenomenon $29,42\pm4,70$ years old and 38 with WPW syndrome $32,70\pm15,48$ years old. All patients with WPW phenomenon qualified athletes of various sports disciplines.

3 MAIN RESULTS

All patients with WPW syndrome and phenomenon have hypersympathicotonia and inhibition of the vagus nerve, detected using heart rate variability (HRV) and methods of nonlinear dynamics. Vegetative disorders are a reflection of WPW syndrome. Operation radiofrequency ablation (RFA) leads to 99% recovery. We have identified recovery periods after operation: the early period 24 hours after RFA reliable activation of the sympathetic nervous system and inhibition of the parasympathetic; later after 2 months a gradual improvement in the regulation of heart rate and the period of a full recovery from 6 months to 1 year after surgery. Patients with WPW syndrome and phenomenon have significantly reduced
of the ejection fraction (EF) before the RFA. Ejection fraction in 1 year after RFA increases to normal. A correlation was found between duration of atrioventricular conduction and EF (r = 0,36). We have received the decision rule of differential diagnosis between healthy, phenomenon and WPW syndrome. It includes of the indicators echocardiography ECG, indicators of the heart rate variability and nonlinear dynamics of heart rhythm and parameters central hemodynamics.

4 CONCLUSIONS

Phenomenon and WPW syndrome are electrocardiographic finding, basically have complex pathophysiological mechanisms atrioventricular, intraventricular asynchrony and ventricular contractions. This asynchrony associated with reduced myocardial contractile function and violation of regulatory mechanisms. Tissue Doppler is a highly informative method of assessing intraventricular and interventricular asynchrony in patients with the syndrome and phenomenon WPW.

REFERENCES

Sarubbi B. The Wolff-Parkinson-White electrocardiogram pattern in athletes: how and when to evaluate the risk for dangerous arrhythmias. The opinion of the paediatric cardiology. J Cardiovasc Med. 2005;7:271-278

DO PANG OF CONSCIENCE AFFECT JUDGE'S BEHAVIOUR?

Yegor Zaitsev¹, Ilya Schurov¹

¹Higher School of Economics Shabolovka 26-2, 2202, Moscow, Russia e-mail: {ezaytsev,ischurov}@hse.ru

Keywords: behaviour, football, red card, punishment, bias, justice

Abstract. We consider pang of conscience as a source of bias that can affect sport judges decisions. Particularly, we study, do judge's attitude toward a team changes after awarding of a major punishment to that team.

Sport judges are supposed to be professional, objective and impartial. However, psychological factors can affect their behaviour and introduce biases. We study one of the possible sources of such bias: pang of conscience that can affect judge's behaviour after major punishment (like red card or penalty in football) awarded to one of the team. It is natural to assume that the judge will be feeling guilt toward the punished team and seek excuses to punish the opponent in a similar way.

To estimate whether this effect really exists or not we analyzed over 1.500 matches in Europes top-6 football championships with red card shown or penalty awarded during the game. Particularly, we found that the team that was shown the red card receives less yellow cards than opponent in the remaining part of the match on average. This can be seen as supporting "pang of conscience" hypothesis. However, this also can be explained by the change in team's behaviour. We are considering the number of fouls, yellow cards, red cards and penalties happened in each game for both teams to distinguish between these explanations.

1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The work is done in the Laboratory of Sport Studies in HSE.

TOWARDS THE HIGHEST PERFORMANCE IN SPORT: THE SCOPE FOR TARGET-ORIENTED MODELING IN CROSS-COUNTRY SKI

Angelica V. Lunina¹, Alexey G. Batalov¹, Alexander A. Grushin², Danil B. Akimov³, Andrey V. Golov⁴

¹Russian State University of Physical Education, Sport, Youth and Tourism (SCOLIPE) 4, Sirenevyi Boulevard, Moscow, Russia e-mail: a.v.lunina@gmail.com

² Russian Olympic Committee, 8, Luzhnetskaya Embankment, Moscow, Russia e-mail: a.grushin@olympic.ru

³ Russian Cross-Country Ski Federation, e-mail: danilakimov.flgr@mail.ru

⁴ Moscow Institute of Physics and Technology, e-mail: golov.andrey@hotmail.ru

Keywords: Modeling in Sport, High Performance Sport, Cross-Country Skier Training

Abstract. This study presents blueprint for technology of developing individualized training programs for athletes in high performance sport. Its theoretical foundation rests upon targetoriented modeling (TOM) approach to athlete preparation during yearlong or 4-years Olympic macro cycles, but goes beyond conventional fragmented modeling of various aspects of training by putting forward the broader framework of integrative modeling. To exemplify ways to deal with complexity in outdoor sports with varying sporting environment, the study uses the data from national cross-country (XC) ski team reported during 2014-2018.

1 INTRODUCTION

Since it was conceptualized by theorists in Principles of Sports Training (Matveev, 2000; Batalov, 2001) as the approach to designing an athlete's preparation during macro cycles, the target-oriented modeling has been effectively used by many Russian Olympic and World Championships medalists. Yet, its long-term periodization, as well as varied array of competition parameters inherent to outdoor sports (like in XC ski), puts the attainment of athlete's peak performance at a specific time in the future (in the most important competition) at risk. With the aim to overcome these challenges, the present study outlines draft technological scheme of integral planning and realization of individual training strategies for XC skiers striving for wins in major world races.

2 METHODS

The study is set in three stages: (i) selection of training (target) models to build upon a comprehensive "winning" framework for athlete preparation; (ii) analysis of participants' data (female members of XC ski Team Russia during 2014-2018 Olympic cycle) versus selected target models, and amendment of models if needed; (iii) drafting of individual forward-looking models aiming at surpassing the best previous athlete achievement.

3 RESULTS

- 3.1 The integrative technology framework for developing training patterns for elite XC skier has three consecutive steps: (i) modeling target competition performance; (ii) modeling training routine and dynamics of physiological capacity; (iii) modeling individual effective system of competition ahead of the main race (Burdina et al., 2007).
- 3.2 Examples of training data analysis vs target models (Grushin & Batalov, 2014) are shown in Figure 1 below.



Figure 1: Top part –target competition performance model; bottom left – the parameters of roller-ski course used for training vs target Olympic ski sprint course in PyeongChang-2018; bottom right – the annual training load in season 2016/17 vs "winning" model of 1995/98.

4 CONCLUSIONS

- The key benefit of TOM is its holistic approach, or the unity of: (i) conceptual planning of training program; (ii) thorough design and calculation of its components; (iii) control of its ultimate realization. If followed, this combination enables performance to targets.
- To successfully manage athlete's training in sports with varying parameters, eg. XC ski, there is need for technology-based innovation, interdisciplinary and mathematical tools.

5 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We thank Dr Sergey Vovk and Dr Marina Zhijyar (RSUPE, Moscow) for useful discussions about TOM fundamentals and its use in practice. We also thank Sergey Mamchur and Alexey Proshin (FORS Development Center) for designing the prototype automated analysis tools.

- Batalov, A. G. (2001). Target-oriented modeling approach to sports training of highly skilled athletes in cyclic winter sports. *Teoriia i praktika fizicheskoi kul'tu-ry. 2*, 8–13.
- Burdina, M. E., Bataloav A. G., & Grushin A. A. (2007). Modeling individual competitions for highly skilled female cross-country skiers in the year prior to Olympic Games and World Championships. *Sbornik nauchnykh trudov, Ros. gos. un-t fiz. kul'tury,* pp. 32-36.
- Grushin, A. A., & Batalov, A. A. (2014). Sport training of elite cross-country female skiers during their highest achievements: self-study textbook. Moscow: Fizicheskaia kul'tura.
- Matveev, L. P. (2000). Target-oriented modeling approach to preparation of athletes in sport. *Teoriia i praktika fizicheskoi kul'tu-ry*. 2, 28–37.

COMPLEX DYNAMIC ESTIMATION OF THE FUNCTIONAL CONDITION OF SPORTSMEN IN SPORTS: FROM JUNIOR TO CHAMPION

Klyuchnikov S.O., Zholinskiy A.V.

Centre of Sport Medicine, Federal Medical Biological Agency, Russia

ABSTRACT

Centre of Sport Medicine, Federal Medical Biological Agency, Russia To assess the functional state of athletes, a variety of parameters are investigated using a variety of stationary and portable instruments that are technically and methodically executed. However, the results obtained with their help are often difficult to compare with each other which makes it difficult in principle to form an objective characteristic of the athlete's body.

At the same time, the "users" quite boldly formulate fundamental conclusions about the health status of an athlete on the basis of this important but fragmentary information, which, due to the complex functionality of the body, can hardly claim to be a holistic and objective assessment which is so significant for the team.

On the basis of the Centre of Sport Medicine, FMBA of Russia, a survey of athletes of various sports, i.e. hockey, football, basketball, handball, athletics, jumping on a trampoline, artistic and gymnastics, synchronized swimming, shooting sports, bobsled, martial arts, figure skating, etc, is being conducted for several years under the guidance of professor S.O. Klyuchnikov using medical diagnostic APK Medical Soft. Olympic champions (Korea, 2018), European champions and world champions in volleyball (women), world champions (martial arts, 2018), World champion in athletics (2018), etc are among them.

The accumulated experience (more than 1000 juniors and athletes from 7 to 32 years old) suggests that the simultaneous use of four diagnostic technologies (HRV, bio-impedance, pulse oximetry and galvanic skin reaction) with subsequent computer processing of the results allows the physician in sports medicine to obtain an operational integrated and polysystem state characteristic of athletes' health. It is fundamentally important that the method allows an objective assessment of the individual characteristics of adaptation mechanisms, to identify the risk of their breakdown, the state of overtraining and early signs of the formation of diseases, including stressful cardiopathy ("sports heart"), as well as to determine the features of psychoemotional status.

A significant advantage of the method is the fact that diagnostics using the MS complex is possible both on an outpatient basis (for example, during ULV) and directly in the conditions of the training and competitive process (current and phased), which does not affect the final quality of the information received, while allowing the medical and coaching staff to quickly make decisions on the correction of the individual program and the optimal training of the athlete.

The possibility of obtaining objective information on the effectiveness and dynamic control of used drugs, vitamin-mineral complexes and / or rehabilitation measures, including HBO,

which is necessary for timely prevention of both the development of diseases and the failure of an athlete's adaptation resource at various stages of preparation, is of particular importance.

The above provisions have been repeatedly presented in the domestic special literature, theses, reports on domestic (SportMed, 2015-2017, Medicine for Sport, 2015-2018) and European specialised congresses (Essen, Germany, 2017; Dublin, Ireland, 2018).

PSYCHOLOGICAL TYPE OF HUMAN CONSTITUTION, THE RELATIONSHIP AND IMPACT ON THE TOLERANCE OF TRAINING LOADS. JUSTIFICATION PROBLEM

Eduard A. Zurin¹, Andrey S. Kriuchkov¹, Lilia S. Shuvalova¹

¹Federal State Budgetary Institution "Federal Science center for Physical Culture and Sport" (FSBI FSC VNIIFK) Elizavetinsky Lane 10/1, 1105005, Moscow, Russia

e-mail: info@vniifk.ru, rudra54@mail.ru, lilia9292@mail.ru

Keywords: training plan, psychological constitution of the person, tolerance of training loads.

Abstract. The article is devoted to the study of new methodological areas related to the optimization of the training process and improving athlete's performance. The direction of study reflects the relationship of the athlete's psychological type with the tolerance of training loads.

1 INTRODUCTION

In modern high performance sport, when the human motor abilities are on the verge of their performance, searching for new methodological approaches and directions for athlete's performance improving in their sport branch remains relevant. One of such directions in the planning of the annual training cycle is the individualization of the training process based on the psychological type of the athlete's constitution in interrelation with the tolerance of training loads of various directions.

During the analysis of scientific and methodical literature it was found out that type of the psychological constitution of the person are characterized by the types of the highest nervous activity, properties of a nervous system and their ratio, lines of temperament, genetic features, hormones and neurotransmitters (FET). At the present time, most of the applied methodological approaches and directions in the programming of the training process are based on the consideration of physiological, gender, age and genetic features, as well as the processes of recovery and adaptation. The least represented are the approaches reflecting the interrelation of the tolerance of training loads on the ability of the psyche to maintain the maximum mobilization of its functional capabilities, taking into account the psychological type of the athlete.

2 RESULTS

We consider that a promising direction in programming the training process, along with the generally accepted principles of planning and management (consideration of the functional state of the body, genetic features, biochemical processes, etc.), should take into account the psychological features of the athlete's constitution, leading personality traits interrelations

with tolerance of training load of a various orientation in an annual cycle of preparation and features of course of adaptation processes.

3 CONCLUSION

Psychological and physiological features of the athletes' organism adaptation to training loads can be identified as a result of dynamic observations during the one-year training cycle by examining the peculiarities of load distribution of various orientations in terms of volume and intensity in connection with the functional state and subjective perception of training severity. mating load in accordance with the leading psycho athlete. At the same time, it is necessary to analyze in detail the types and structure of applied microcycles, the method of training and the specific means used in training and competitive activity. Due to the large amount of data, for their qualitative systematization and analysis, we will use specialized computer software StatSoft Statistica.

- 1. Rusalov, V.M. & Trofimova, I.N. (2007) The Structure of temperament and its measurement. PSP: Psychological Services Press, Toronto.
- 2. Rusalov, V.M. (2012) Temperament in the structure of human individuality: psychophysiological studies. In Russian. Moscow, IPRAS, Russia.
- 3. Bompa,Tudor O.,Buzzichelli, Carlo A. (2019). Periodization: theory and methodology of training (six edition):Humav Kinetics.

EFFECT OF PLYOMETRIC EXERCISES FOR DEVELOPMENT OF SPEED AMONG CRICKETERS OF OSMANIA UNIVERSITY IN INDIA

Yerraguntla Emmanuel Shashi Kumar

Chairman, Indian Federation of Computer Science in Sports

Keywords: Plyometrics, Speed, Cricket.

ABSTRACT

Cricket is a bat-and-ball game played between two teams of 11 players on a field at the centre of which is a rectangular 22-yard long pitch. Each team takes it in turn to bat, attempting to score runs, while the other team fields. Each turn is known as an innings. Plyometrics is a catch all term for training methods that is used to improve the amount of force in muscles to generate the speed. The sample for the present study consists of 30 Male Cricketer of Osmania University out of which 15 are experimental group and 15 are controlled group. Plyometric Exercises such as hopping, bounding, depth jumps, hurdle jumps, box jumps, tuck jumps given to the experimental group along with the Cricket Training for six weeks and control group were given the general training of the cricket Pre Test and Post Test were conducted on 30 M flying Start Run to assess the speed to both the groups. This Study shows that due to the Plyometric training there is a improvement of speed among Experimental group compare the control group. A good training program for cricketers can easily incorporate plyometric methods as they don't require much special equipment. Plyometric workouts are not only a great way to improve explosive reaction for athletes in sports like tennis, boxing, hockey, cricket, volleyball, basketball, soccer, rugby and many other sports but this type of training is used more and more by everyday people wanting to improve their fitness and performance. It is concluded that due to plyometric training there is a improvement of speed among Cricketers. It is also recommended to coaches to include the Plyometrics program for Cricketers for enhancing the performance and speed.

EFFECT OF PLYOMETRIC EXERCISES FOR DEVELOPMENT OF SPEED AMONG HOCKEY PLAYERS OF GULBARGA UNIVERSITY

Dr. Hanmanth Jange

Asst. Director, Dept. of Physical Education Gulbarga University, Gulbarga, Karantaka, India

Keywords: Plyometric Exercises Speed, Hopping, bounding.

ABSTRACT

Plyometrics, also known as "jump training" or "plyos", are exercises in which muscles exert maximum force in short intervals of time, with the goal of increasing power (speed-strength). Plyometrics are primarily used by athletes, especially martial artists, sprinters and high jumpers, to improve performance and are used in the fitness field to a much lesser degree. The purpose of the present study is to find out the effect of plyometric exercises on development of speed among Hockey Players. The sample for the present study consists of 20 Male Hockey Players of Gulbarga University out of which 10 are experimental group and 10 are controlled group. Plyometric exercises such as hopping, bounding, depth jumps, tuck jumps, Pushups etc were given to experimental group on alternate days i.e. three sessions per week and controlled group were given the general training for six weeks. Pre Test and Post Test were conducted in 30 M Run to measure the speed among experimental group and controlled group. This study shows that due to the plyometric training there is a improvement of experimental group in the Speed and controlled group is decreased in performance of speed. It is concluded that due to plyometric exercises there will be improvement in speed among Hockey Players

MUSCULAR ENDURANCE, EXPLOSIVE STRENGTH AND SUPPLENESS: INFLUENCE OF TAEKWONDO DRILLS ON THE MALE SUBJECTS

Hamed Abu-Hilal and Syed Ibrahim

King Fahd University of Petroleum & Minerals Dhahran, 31261, Saudi Arabia e-mail: {abuhilal,sibrahim}@kfupm.edu.sa

Keywords: Muscular Endurance, Explosive Strength, Suppleness, Drills.

1 INTRODUCTION

The purpose of the study was to find out the impact of the taekwondo skills on the muscular strength (MS), explosive strength (ES) and flexibility (F) of male subjects. Taekwondo is the quintessential Korean martial art involving the style of hand-to-hand fighting. The sport is for everyone and is a great way to gain self-confidence, self-esteem and strength apart from developing discipline, leadership, flexibility, and develop quick reflexes and agility (Song & An, 2004). It is observed that the standard of physical fitness, techniques and strategies essential in Taekwondo is huge and enormous. Keeping in mind the above factors this study is an attempt to find out the effects of the skills of taekwondo on the health related fitness components.

2 METHOD

Sixty four college level students were selected as subjects for this study. The height, body mass and the BMI was measured for all the subjects before the start and at the end of the study. A pre and post-test was conducted for all the subjects before and after the training in MS, ES & F. The test items were sit ups (SU), standing long jump (SLJ) and sit & reach (SR). The training was for 12 weeks two times per week and for 40 minutes per session. The training program was footwork, Hand attacks, Kicks (Chagi), Blocks (Makgic burat), Patterns, Poomsae, Hyung, Tul and Self-defence. The training also included separate flexibility, cardio and strength exercises. Mean, standard deviation and paired t-test were used to analyze the data and the level of significance was fixed at 0.005.

3 RESULTS

Test	Pre (n=64)	Post (n=64)			Percent
Exercise	$M \pm SD$	$M \pm SD$	p-value	95% CI	Improvement
Standing L J	178.95 ± 42.43	196.38 ± 28.12	< 0.00001*	[-24.52, -10.33]	9.74
Sit Up	23.266 ± 4.462	27.156 ± 3.781	< 0.00001*	[-4.780, -3.001]	16.72
Sit & Reach	27.17 ± 8.99	$34.28\pm\!\!7.72$	< 0.00001*	[-8.146, -6.073]	26.17
*D 0.05					

*P>0.05

Table 1: showing the mean, standard deviation and t values of the study variables

The results indicated no significant difference in the body mass and BMI of all the subjects. The table 1 indicates that SLJ showed a significant difference from pre to post-test with the mean and SD of 178.95 ±42.43 and 196.38 ±28.12 respectively, p> 0.05. The percentage of improvement in the ES was 9.74%. The outcomes of the SU showed that the mean and SD was 23.266 ± 4.462) & 27.156 ± 3.781 from pre to post-test respectively which indicated that it is significant (p> 0.05). The percentage of improvement in the ME of the subjects was 16.72%. The analysis of the data for SR showed that the mean and SD was 27.17 ± 8.99 & 27.156 ± 3.781 from pre to post-test respectively which is the highest improvement in the F of the subjects was 26.17% which is the highest improvement of the three components of the study.

4 DISCUSSION

The results had observed significant changes in the SLJ, SU & SR indicating that there was a positive effect of the training of taekwondo skills on the ES, ME & F of the subjects. The studies of Ibrahim et al, (2013), Blair et al (2001) have found that there were improvements in the health related fitness of college students after the training, thus substantiating the results of the study. Nelson et al., (2007), Suni et al., (1998) found that F increased after 8 weeks of training. The results also are in line with the study outcomes thereby endorsing the improvements due to the training of the study which indicated the highest percentage of increase than the other components. Pescatello & ACSM (2014), Keating et al., (2009) found improvements in the ES of college students after administering the fitness tests. The results ratify that there will be major changes in the placid strength of students after the fitness tests. It is to be noted that skills in taekwondo has all the hallmark of fitness tests it can be corroborated as equivalent. This is because there are very few studies that have directly worked on the novice taekwondo subjects in improving the health related fitness, but have concentrated on the prominent players. But it is generally believed that they affect the components of health related fitness. There are a few shorting comings in this study and the first one is that there was no control group and the other is beginners taking up the training.

5 CONCLUSIONS

It was concluded that 8 weeks of taekwondo skill training will improve the health related fitness components of MS, ES & F of the male subjects.

- Song, K.Y., An, J.D. (2004). Premotor and motor reaction time of educable mentally retarded youths in a taekwondo program, *Perceptual and Motor Skills*, 99, 711–723.
- Ibrahim S., Almoslim H., Alameer A.H. (2013). The effect of physical education program on the physical fitness levels of the orientation students of King Fahd University of Petroleum & Minerals, *International Journal of Physical Education and Sports*, *13*(2), 203–208.
- Pescatello, L. S., & American College of Sports Medicine. (2014). ACSM's guidelines for exercise testing and prescription. Philadelphia, Wolters Kluwer/Lippincott Williams & Wilkins Health.
- Blair S.N., Cheng Y., Holder J.S. (2001). Is physical activity or physical fitness more important in defining health benefits, *Medicine & Science in Sports & Exercise*, 33, 379–399.

DIGITAL TECHNOLOGIES IN REFEREEING OF CHAMPIONSHIPS FOR SKILLS COMPETENCE "PHYSICAL EDUCATION, SPORT AND FITNESS" BASED ON THE STANDARDS AND REFEREEING CRITERIA OF WORLDSKILLS RUSSIA

Eduard A. Zurin¹, Elena N. Skarzhinskaya¹, Kristina A. Oblog¹, Anastasia P. Shchegoleva¹

¹ Federal State Budgetary Institution "Federal Science Center for Physical Culture and Sport" (FSBI FSC VNIIFK) Elizavetinsky Lane. 10/1, 105005, Moscow, Russia e-mail: zurin@vniifk.ru, skar_e@mail.ru, o-christina@yandex.ru, luuna93@mail.ru

Keywords: Worldskills, young professionals, physical education, sports, fitness, digital technologies, fitness trackers, championships refereeing, Worldskills competitions

Abstract. This article presents an approach to improving refereeing at the championships for skill competence "Physical education, sports and fitness" based on the standards and refereeing criteria of Worldskills Russia using the digital technologies.

1 INTRODUCTION

Assessment at the championships for skill competence "Physical education, sports and fitness", based on the standards and refereeing criteria of Worldskills Russia, divides into two parts - measurements and refereeing. It needs at least three experts for each type of assessment to organize the refereeing process. Some aspects are distributed between experts with special responsibility (for example, timing, percentage of motor activity and safety). In relation to competence development and preparing to represent this area of skills in international competitions, the tasks of partially automated assessment and language standardization are solved with the help of digital technologies.

Automated assessment is already used in some skill areas of Worldskills [1].

The specifics of this skill area cause difficulties in creating an automated assessment system. In the majority of modules of the competitive task for the competence "Physical culture, sport and fitness", the process of conducting a fragment of a training session with a group of volunteers by a contestant is assessed, but not the finished product as in the sphere of information and communication technologies. All the requirements for the knowledge and skills of the competitor as a specialist of physical education and sports are reflected in the Worldskills standards specification and correlated with the assessment criteria for each module.

2 RESULTS

As a result of the study, a model was developed for assessing the motor activity of an aerobic-dance fragment by the average number of steps using fitness trackers and a mobile application. Also, the option of assessment training loads value in exercises demonstrated by participants with the team of volunteers by heart rate zones is offered. The options of using fitness trackers in competitive tasks were also developed, considering the Worldskills standards.

3 CONCLUSION

Taking into account the improvement of the mobile application, a model of remote monitoring of indicators was proposed during the competitors' demonstration of the module of a competitive task with subsequent automatic processing and derivation of averages on one device. This removes the unnecessary burden on the experts' team, provides an impartial assessment of the contestants and reduces the time spent on refereeing.

REFERENCES

1. Union "Young professionals (Worldskills Russia)": [website]. URL: https://worldskills.ru/media-czentr/novosti/na-digitalskills-2018-primenyayutsya-avtomatizirovannyie-metodyi-oczenki-rabot-uchastnikov.html (date of request: 27.07.19).

MONITORIZATION OF A MALE BASKETBALL PLAYER AFTER RECONSTRUCTIVE ACL SURGERY: A CASE STUDY

İ. Bayram¹, H. Ertan²

¹Amasya University, Akbilek Mahallesi, Muhsin Yazıcıoğlu Cd., 05100, Amasya, Turkey i.bayram43@gmail.com

> ²Eskişehir Technical University,
> 2 Eylül Kampüsü, 26555, Tepebaşı, Eskişehir, Turkey hayriertan@gmail.com

Keywords: Anterior Curciate Ligament, Strength, Isokinetic, Proprioception

Abstract. Recovery and rehabilitation after Anterior Cruciate Ligaments (ACL) reconstruction is important for athletes not to experience a re-rupture. Especially strength and proprioception values of the athletes are good indicators for return to sport. Our case study aimed to give detailed strength and proprioception values of the athlete after reconstructive ACL surgery. Both legs of athlete were tested in 60⁰/sec, 180⁰/sec and 240⁰/sec angular velocities. For proprioception evaluation, a simple angle reproduction test made for a 65⁰ of target knee angle while flexion and extension. We observed strength improvements during the rehabilitation process and modified the training according to the results monthly. Our case study emphasizes the importance of proper training modifications and interventions to ongoing rehabilitation processes by means of monitorization.

1 INTRODUCTION

Athletes who practice contact sports such as soccer, football and basketball are more susceptible to injure their ACL due to instantaneous loads on the knee joint (Marx et al., 2003). This loads generally occur while changing direction rapidly, stopping suddenly, deceleration, incorrectly landing from a jump, direct contact or collusion. When the biomechanical limits of the knee are exceeded, a tear or rupture of the ligament is inevitable (Petersen and Zantop, 2006). Recovery and rehabilitation after ACL reconstruction should be planned carefully and monitorization is essential for appropriate modifications (Ardern et al., 2013).

This study intends to give a brief information about a university level basketball player's 6month rehabilitation process after an ACL reconstruction surgery. Our main aim was to monitorize the strength output and differences as well as to follow expected improvements during rehabilitation process between injured and non-injured legs during six months.

2 METHODS

2.1 Participant

The The athlete was 23 years old and his descriptive statistics were the following ones; height: 172cm, weight: 76kg and training age: 13 years. He had a 3rd grade sprain which means a total rupture.

2.2 Surgery

For the reconstruction of his ACL, 1/3 part of the tendons of musculus gracilis and musculus semitendinosus have been harvested from him by making a small incision on tibial tuberosity. The two tendons were then looped to create a stranded graft structure.

2.3 Training Process

The athlete was able to walk without support ten days after surgery. He performed some functional movements, stretching and massage. After the fifth week, the athlete was performing some pool activities, after the seventh week, all daily activities were normal and he started to perform low intensity jogs, BOSU ball activities and low intensity strength training. The content of the training was progressively increased and modified for the following months.

2.4 Measurements

Measurements were taken within a month interval. Isokinetic strength values (concentric/concentric) were measured for knee flexion/extension by using "Isomed2000 isokinetic dynamometer" (D&R Ferstl GmbH, Hemau, Germany). Both legs of athlete were tested in 60^{0} /sec (5 repetitions), 180^{0} /sec (10 repetitions) and 240^{0} /sec (10 repetitions) angular velocities. For proprioception evaluation, a simple angle reproduction test made for a 65^{0} of target knee angle while flexion and extension. Comparisons were made between first/last measurement and injured/non-injured legs.

3 RESULTS

3.1 Strength Values

Maximum flex/ex torques of injured leg were 63/114 Nm for 60^{0} /sec in the first test and increased to 154/235 Nm in the last test. Similarly, it increased from 73/94 to 132/192 Nm for 180^{0} /sec, and from 67/93 to 121/141 Nm for 240^{0} /sec for injured leg.

Strength values of non-injured leg were 130/220 Nm for 60^{0} /sec in the first test and increased to 157/229 Nm. It was 117/165 in the first test and 118/159 Nm for 180^{0} /sec in the last test. Lastly, it was 124/145 in the first test and 120/139 Nm for 240^{0} /sec for injured leg in the last test. **Table 1** shows all the values for each measurement taken monthly.

		Right (Injured)			Left (Non-Injured)			
	Months	Flex (Nm)	Ex (Nm)	H/Q	Flex (Nm)	Ex (Nm)	H/Q	
60 ⁰ /sec	1	63	114	0,55	130	220	0,59	
	2	100	186	0,53	144	238	0,60	
	3	129	223	0,57	150	252	0,59	
	4	132	238	0,55	156	255	0,61	
	5	139	237	0,58	151	235	0,64	
	6	154	235	0,65	157	229	0,68	
180 ⁰ /sec	1	73	94	0,77	117	165	0,70	
	2	103	130	0,79	137	161	0,85	
	3	126	162	0,77	156	181	0,86	
	4	120	183	0,65	126	178	0,70	

	5 6	133 132	186 192	0,71 0,68	123 118	162 159	0,75 0,74
240 ⁰ /sec	1	67	93	0,72	124	145	0,85
	2	96	127	0,75	134	155	0,86
	3	118	133	0,88	133	163	0,81
	4	124	154	0,80	127	159	0,79
	5	121	147	0,82	127	150	0,84
	6	112	141	0,79	120	139	0,86

Table 1: Maximum Torque values of both legs. Nm: Newton meter. H/Q: Hamstrings to Quadriceps Ratio

3.2 Proprioception Evaluation

For proprioception evaluation, it was 13^0 away from target angle during flexion and 18^0 away during extension in the first test. There was not a considerable improvement in the second measurement and it was still 9^0 away from target angle during flexion and 16^0 away during extension. Unlikely, proprioception sense was better on non-injured leg with a 5^0 of deviation during flexion and 7^0 during extension. Deviations from the target angle decreased for both legs to 2^0 during flexion and extension.

4 DISCUSSION

Low strength values of injured leg flexors and extensors at the beginning of the rehabilitation could indicate a muscle rehabilitation process of the gracilis and semitendinosus muscles due to tendon harvest. It is also thought that proprioception sense was not significantly different due to reconstructed joint integrity. Our case study emphasizes the importance of proper training modifications and interventions to ongoing rehabilitation processes by means of monitorization.

5 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Authors acknowledge their appreciation to the athlete for his dedicated collaboration that made the study possible.

- Marx, R. G., Jones, E. C., Angel, M., Wickiewicz, T. L., & Warren, R. F. (2003). Beliefs and attitudes of members of the American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons regarding the treatment of anterior cruciate ligament injury. Arthroscopy: The Journal of Arthroscopic & Related Surgery, 19(7), 762-770.
- Petersen, W., & Zantop, T. (2006). Partial rupture of the anterior cruciate ligament. Arthroscopy: The Journal of Arthroscopic & Related Surgery, 22(11), 1143-1145.
- Ardern, C. L., Taylor, N. F., Feller, J. A., Whitehead, T. S., & Webster, K. E. (2013). Psychological responses matter in returning to preinjury level of sport after anterior cruciate ligament reconstruction surgery. The American journal of sports medicine, 41(7), 1549-1558.

12th International Symposium on Computer Science in Sport, 8–10 July, 2019, Moscow, Russia Book of Abstracts

Edited by Alexander Danilov

Co-Edited by Martin Lames, Egor Timme, Yuri Vassilevski

 \bigcirc 2019 by the authors of the abstracts

ISBN: 978-5-901854-24-2